


















































1 

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT 

OF 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED 

AND 

ITS SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS 

UNDER SECTION 230 TO SECTION 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  

PART A – GENERAL 

PREAMBLE 

This scheme of arrangement (‘Scheme’, as more particularly defined hereunder) is presented under 

Section 230 – Section 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act (as defined below) between 

Tata Motors Limited (‘Company’, as more particularly defined hereunder) and its shareholders and 

creditors. The Scheme provides inter alia for the (a) reduction through cancellation of the ‘A’ 

Ordinary Shares (as defined below) and the consequent issuance and allotment of the Ordinary 

Shares (the Ordinary Shares issued by the Company as the consideration pursuant to this Scheme 

is hereinafter referred to as ‘New Ordinary Shares’ and such term is more particularly defined in 

Clause 6.5), as consideration other than cash for such reduction; (b) amendments to the 

memorandum of association of the Company (“MoA”), articles of association of the Company 

(“AoA”) and authorised share capital of the Company; and (c) various other matters incidental to, 

consequential to and/ or otherwise connected with the above, under Section 230 – Section 232 and 

other applicable provisions of the Act, the SEBI Scheme Circular (as defined below) and the SEBI 

Scheme Circular – Debt (as defined below).  

I. INTRODUCTION

TATA MOTORS LIMITED is a public limited company incorporated under the laws of

India bearing corporate identification number L28920MH1945PLC004520 and having its

registered office at Bombay House, 24, Homi Mody Street, Mumbai - 400001

(“Company”). Its ‘A’ Ordinary Shares, Ordinary Shares (as defined below) and NCDs (as

defined below) are listed on the NSE (as defined below) and BSE Limited (as defined

below). The Company, directly and indirectly through its subsidiaries and joint ventures, is

engaged inter alia in the business of design, development, manufacturing and sale of a wide

range of commercial, passenger and electric vehicles and parts thereof within India and

abroad.

II. RATIONALE AND PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME

1. The Company issued the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares in 2008 as part of a rights issue with the

objective of inter alia funding certain overseas investments. The ‘A’ Ordinary Shares were

issued at a discount to the Ordinary Shares.

2. The rights attached to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares are similar to the rights attached to the

Ordinary Shares in all respects except as to voting and dividend, as detailed in Clause

1.1(e).

Annexure 1
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3. This was the first issuance of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares by the Company and as on the date of 

issuance of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares, there were limited instances of issuances of equity 

shares with differential rights as to voting and dividend by Indian listed companies of the 

Company’s market capitalization and size.  

4. Subsequent regulatory changes restricted the issuance of shares with differential voting 

rights, resulting in a narrow market for similar instruments. The discount in the price at 

which the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares trade vis-à-vis the Ordinary Shares has increased since the 

date of listing of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares. This has the effect of significantly understating 

the Company’s market capitalization, contributes to a complex capital structure and 

increases administrative complexity vis-à-vis maintaining 2 (two) separate classes of 

shares.  

5. In light of this background, the Company seeks to reorganise its share capital in accordance 

with Section 230 – Section 232 of the Act by cancelling and extinguishing ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares and paying consideration to the holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares in the form of 

New Ordinary Shares. The reorganization of share capital envisaged by this Scheme is 

expected to:  

(a) simplify and consolidate the Company’s capital structure and preserve liquidity for 

the Company’s growth; and 

(b) be value accretive and beneficial for all shareholders of the Company and allow the 

holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and Ordinary Shares to continue to participate in 

the Company’s performance.  

6. The networth of the Company as on June 30, 2023, is INR 21,167 Cr. The reduction of the 

‘A’ Ordinary Shares contemplated by this Scheme will not affect the ability or liquidity of 

the Company to meet any of its financial obligations/ commitments. The Scheme will not 

have any adverse impact on the creditors as further elaborated in Clause 11.  

7. The Scheme will be in the best interest of the concerned stakeholders of the Company, 

including the holders of Ordinary Shares and the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares. 

III. PARTS OF THE SCHEME 

This Scheme is divided into the following parts: 

(a) PART A deals with the background of the Company, rationale and objective of the 

Scheme; 

(b) PART B deals with the definitions, interpretation and share capital; 

(c) PART C deals with the capital reorganisation of the Company; and 

(d) PART D deals with the general terms and conditions applicable to the Scheme. 

PART B – DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION AND SHARE CAPITAL 

1. DEFINITIONS  

1.1 In this Scheme, unless the context or meaning otherwise requires: (a) terms defined in the 

introductory paragraphs and recitals shall have the same meanings throughout this Scheme; 

and (b) the following words and expressions, wherever used (including in the recitals and 

the introductory paragraphs above), shall have the following meanings:  
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(a) “3(a)(10) Exemption” shall have the meaning set out in Clause 6.13; 

(b) “Accounting Standards” means the Indian Accounting Standards as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India or made applicable to the 

Company;   

(c) “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules, regulations, circulars, 

notifications, clarifications, orders or guidelines issued thereunder and as amended 

from time to time and include any statutory replacement or re-enactment thereof, 

if the context so requires and as may be applicable; 

(d) “Adjustment Amount” shall have the meaning set out in Clause 6.5;  

(e) “‘A’ Ordinary Shares” means the equity shares of the Company with differential 

rights as to voting and dividend as set out below and having a face value of INR 2 

(Indian Rupees Two only) each and bearing ISIN IN9155A01020:  

(i) Dividend: The holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares receive dividend for a 

financial year at 5 (five) percentage points more than the aggregate rate of 

dividend declared on Ordinary Shares for that financial year; and 

(ii) Voting: The holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares have the right to attend general 

meetings and class meetings of all holders of Ordinary Shares, and their 

voting rights at such meetings are as follows: 

(A) if a resolution is put to vote by a show of hands, each holder of ‘A’ 

Ordinary Shares is entitled to 1 (one) vote, i.e., the same number 

of votes as available to holders of Ordinary Shares; and 

(B) if a resolution is put to vote by poll or postal ballot, each holder of 

‘A’ Ordinary Shares is entitled to 1 (one) vote for every 10 (ten) 

‘A’ Ordinary Shares held. Fractional voting rights of holders of 

‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall be ignored;  

 

(f) “AoA” shall have the meaning set out in the Preamble; 

(g) “Applicable Law” or “Law” means with respect to any Person, any binding 

federal, state, national or local statute, law, ordinance, notification, rule, regulation, 

order, writ, injunction, directive, judgment or decree, or other requirement of any 

governmental authority applicable to such Person or any of their respective 

properties or assets;  

(h) “Appointed Date” means the Effective Date;  

(i) “Board of Directors” or “Board” in relation to the Company means the board of 

directors of the Company, and shall include a committee (existing or to be 

constituted subsequently by the Board) or any other delegate(s) duly authorised for 

the purposes of the matters pertaining to this Scheme and / or to take decisions 

prescribed under the Scheme and / or to decide or act on any other matter relating 

thereto; 

(j) “BSE” means BSE Limited; 
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(k) “Capital Reduction Consideration” shall have the meaning set out in Clause 6.4; 

(l) “Company” shall have the meaning set out in paragraph I of Part A of the Scheme; 

(m) “Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares” shall have the meaning 

determined in accordance with the AoA and the MoA; 

(n) “Effective Date” means the date on which the certified copy of the order of the 

NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed by the Company with the Registrar of 

Companies;  

References in this Scheme to the date of ‘coming into effect of this Scheme’ or the 

‘effectiveness of this Scheme’ or the ‘Scheme coming into effect’ shall mean the 

Effective Date;  

(o) “Employee Stock Option Scheme” means the: (i) Tata Motors Limited 

Employees Stock Options Scheme 2018; and/ or (ii) Tata Motors Limited Share-

based Long Term Incentive Scheme 2021 and/ or (iii) any other employee stock 

option schemes to be introduced by the Company;  

(p) “INR” or “Rs.” means Indian Rupees, the lawful currency of the Republic of India; 

(q) “MoA” shall have the meaning set out in the Preamble; 

(r) “NCD” means the outstanding non-convertible debentures of the Company listed 

on the Stock Exchanges from time to time, and includes the non-convertible 

debentures of the Company as listed in Annexure A;  

(s) “NCLT” means the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, as 

constituted and authorised as per the applicable provisions of the Act for approving 

any scheme of arrangement, compromise or reconstruction of companies under 

Section 230 – Section 232 of the Act; 

(t) “New Ordinary Shares” shall have the meaning set out in Clause 6.5;  

(u) “NSE” means National Stock Exchange of India Limited; 

(v) “Ordinary Shares” means the equity shares of the Company having a face value 

of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each and bearing ISIN INE155A01022;  

(w) “Person” means any individual (including in his capacity as trustee), entity, joint 

venture, company, corporation, partnership (whether limited or unlimited), 

proprietorship or other enterprise (whether incorporated or not), Hindu undivided 

family, trust, union, association of persons, governmental authority, or any agency, 

department, authority or political subdivision thereof, and shall include their 

respective successors and in case of an individual shall include his/her legal 

representatives, administrators, executors and heirs and in case of a trust shall 

include the trustee or the trustees and the beneficiary or beneficiaries from time to 

time; 

(x) “Preamble” shall mean the preamble of this Scheme; 

(y) “Record Date” means the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors for the purpose 

of determining the names of the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares who shall be 

entitled to receive consideration under Clause 6;   
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(z) “Registrar of Companies” means the Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction 

over the Company; 

(aa) “Relevant Shareholders” shall have the meaning set out in Clause 6.3; 

(bb) “Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “Scheme of Arrangement” 

means this scheme of arrangement in its present form or as amended or with any 

modification(s) approved or imposed or directed by the NCLT or any other 

governmental authorities, pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 – Section 232 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act; 

(cc) “SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992; 

(dd) “SEBI LODR Regulations” means the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including all circulars and notifications issued 

thereunder, as amended from time to time; 

(ee) “SEBI Regulations” means any acts, rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, 

clarifications, orders or guidelines issued by SEBI and as amended from time to 

time and include any statutory replacement or re-enactment thereof, if the context 

so requires and as may be applicable; 

(ff) “SEBI Scheme Circular” means the SEBI master circular bearing no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 ‘Master Circular on (i) Scheme of 

Arrangement by Listed Entities and (ii) Relaxation under Sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of 

the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957’ dated June 20, 2023, as 

amended from time to time or any other circulars issued by SEBI applicable to 

schemes of arrangement from time to time;  

(gg) “SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt” means circular no. 

SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/108 dated July 29, 2022 issued by SEBI, as 

amended from time to time; 

(hh) “Securities Act” shall have the meaning set out in Clause 6.13;  

(ii) “Stock Exchanges” means collectively the BSE and the NSE; 

(jj) “Tax Laws” means all Applicable Laws dealing with Taxes including but not 

limited to income-tax, wealth tax, sales tax / value added tax, service tax, goods 

and service tax, excise duty, customs duty or any other levy of similar nature;   

(kk) “Taxes” means all forms of taxes and statutory, governmental, state, provincial, 

local governmental or municipal impositions, duties, contributions and levies, 

whether levied by reference to income, profits, book profits, gains, dividend, net 

wealth, asset values, turnover, added value, goods and services or otherwise and 

shall further include payments in respect of or on account of tax, whether by way 

of deduction at source, collection at source, advance tax, goods and services tax, 

securities transaction tax or any other transfer taxes or otherwise, in each case 

attributable directly or primarily to the Company or any other Person and all 

surcharge, cess penalties, charges, costs and interest relating thereto; and 

(ll) “Trust” means the irrevocable determinate trust constituted under the Indian 

Trusts Act, 1882 by the Company, having an independent trustee, for the purposes 

of receiving the New Ordinary Shares from the Company on behalf and for the 
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benefit of each of the Relevant Shareholders, selling the requisite number of New 

Ordinary Shares to discharge obligations in relation to Taxes, distributing the 

remaining New Ordinary Shares to the Relevant Shareholders, and undertaking all 

other related matters as detailed in this Scheme, including in Clause 6.  

2. INTERPRETATION 

2.1 References to clauses, unless otherwise provided, are to the clauses to this Scheme. 

2.2 Headings, sub-headings, titles, subtitles to clauses, sub-clauses, sections and paragraphs are 

for information only and shall not form part of the operative provisions of this Scheme or 

the schedules hereto and shall be ignored in construing the same. 

2.3 All references in this Scheme to statutory provisions shall be construed as meaning and 

including references to: 

(a) any statutory modification, consolidation or re-enactment made after the date of 

approval of this Scheme by the Board and for the time being in force; 

(b) all subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision (whether or 

not amended, modified, re-enacted or consolidated); 

(c) all statutory instruments or orders made pursuant to a statutory provision; and 

(d) any statutory provisions of which these statutory provisions are a consolidation, re-

enactment or modification. 

2.4 Unless the context otherwise requires: 

(a) the singular shall include the plural and vice versa, and references to one gender 

include all genders; 

(b) references to a person include any individual, firm, body corporate (whether 

incorporated or not), government, state or agency of a state or any joint venture, 

association, partnership, works council or employee representative’s body (whether 

or not having separate legal personality); 

(c) reference to days, months and years are to calendar days, calendar months and 

calendar years, respectively; 

(d) any reference to “writing” shall include printing, typing, lithography and other 

means of reproducing words in visible form; 

(e) the words “include” and “including” are to be construed without limitation and 

(f) where a wider construction is possible, the words “other” and “otherwise” shall not 

be construed ejusdem generis with any foregoing words. 

3. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE 

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) approved or 

imposed or directed by NCLT shall be operative and effective from the Effective Date.  

4. SHARE CAPITAL 

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on June 30, 
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2023 is as under: 

Particulars Amount in INR 

Authorised Share Capital  

4,00,00,00,000 (Four Hundred Crore) Ordinary Shares of 

INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

8,00,00,00,000 

1,00,00,00,000 (One Hundred Crore) ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of 

INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

2,00,00,00,000 

30,00,00,000 (Thirty Crore) Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares of INR 100 (Indian Rupees One Hundred 

only) each 

30,00,00,00,000 

Total 40,00,00,00,000 

Issued Share Capital  

3,32,19,83,141 (Three Hundred Thirty Two Crore Nineteen 

Lakh Eighty Three Thousand One Hundred and Forty One) 

Ordinary Shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only)  each 

6,64,39,66,282 

50,87,36,110 (Fifty Crore Eighty Seven Lakh Thirty Six 

Thousand One Hundred and Ten) ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of 

INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

1,01,74,72,220 

Total 7,66,14,38,502 

Subscribed Share Capital  

3,32,14,90,582 (Three Hundred Thirty Two Crore Fourteen 

Lakh Ninety Thousand Five Hundred and Eighty Two) 

Ordinary Shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

6,64,29,81,164 

50,85,02,896 (Fifty Crore Eighty Five Lakh Two Thousand 

Eight Hundred and Ninety Six) ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of INR 

2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

1,01,70,05,792 

Total 7,65,99,86,956 

Paid-up Share Capital  

3,32,14,90,582 (Three Hundred Thirty Two Crore Fourteen 

Lakh Ninety Thousand Five Hundred and Eighty Two) 

Ordinary Shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

6,64,34,58,669* 

50,85,02,896 (Fifty Crore Eighty Five Lakh Two Thousand 

Eight Hundred and Ninety Six) ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of INR 

2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

1,01,70,05,792 

Total 7,66,04,64,461* 

* The paid-up share capital of the Company is subject to the following adjustments viz. (a) 
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addition of INR 4,77,945 (Indian Rupees Four Lakh Seventy Seven Thousand Nine 

Hundred and Forty Five only) on account of share forfeiture, being paid-up value of partly-

paid Ordinary Shares forfeited in the financial year 1998-1999 and financial year 1999-

2000 for the non-receipt of call monies and remaining unissued as on June 30, 2023 (b) 

less INR 440 (Indian Rupees Four Hundred and Forty only) on account of calls in arrear 

towards 310 (Three Hundred and Ten) Ordinary Shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) 

each (INR 1 (Indian Rupees One only) outstanding on each) and 260 (Two Hundred and 

Sixty) Ordinary Shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each (INR 0.50 (Indian Rupees 

Fifty paise only) outstanding on each). To clarify, without such adjustments, the paid-up 

share capital of the Company as on June 30, 2023 aggregates to INR 7,65,99,86,956 

(Indian Rupees Seven Hundred and Sixty Five Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Eighty Six 

Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty Six only). 

Note: The Company has outstanding employee stock options and performance share units 

under its Employee Stock Option Scheme, the exercise of which may result in an increase 

in its number of Ordinary Shares and its issued and paid-up capital from time to time. The 

total number of Ordinary Shares that can be issued under: (a) Tata Motors Limited 

Employees Stock Option Scheme 2018; and (b) Tata Motors Limited Share-based Long 

Term Incentive Scheme 2021 shall not exceed 0.406% (point four zero six percent) and 

0.235% (point two three five percent), respectively, of the issued share capital of the 

Company.  

PART C – CAPITAL REORGANISATION OF THE COMPANY 

5. REDUCTION OF THE ‘A’ ORDINARY SHARES 

5.1 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the share capital of the Company pertaining to the 

‘A’ Ordinary Shares (including the subscribed, issued and paid up share capital pertaining 

to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares) as on the Effective Date will be reduced on the Effective Date, 

i.e., by cancelling and extinguishing all ‘A’ Ordinary Shares held by the relevant holders 

of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares as on the Record Date, for the consideration mentioned in Clause 

6.  

5.2 The reduction of the share capital of the Company to the extent of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

as aforesaid will not involve any diminution of liability in respect of the unpaid share 

capital.  

5.3 The reduction of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall be effected pursuant to and as an integral 

part of this Scheme per the provisions of Section 230 – Section 232 of the Act pursuant to 

the order of the NCLT, and the provisions of Section 66 of the Act shall not apply to such 

reduction. The order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order 

under the applicable provisions of the Act confirming the reduction of the ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares.  

5.4 The approvals obtained by the Company in relation to this Scheme (including approvals 

from the shareholders of the Company pursuant to Section 230 – Section 232 of the Act) 

shall deemed to be sufficient approval(s) for giving effect to the provisions of Clause 5 and 

Clause 6 of this Scheme and for the avoidance of doubt, the Company shall not be required 

to obtain any separate approvals under Section 52, Section 66 and the other related 

provisions of the Act to effect the reduction by way of cancellation and extinguishment of  

‘A’ Ordinary Shares. The Company shall not, nor shall be obliged to: (a) in addition to the 

approvals obtained by the Company in relation to this Scheme, call for a separate meeting 

of its shareholders and creditors for obtaining their approval for sanctioning the reduction 

of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares or any other steps contemplated under this Scheme; or (b) obtain 

any additional approvals / compliances, under Section 66 of the Act.  
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5.5 The Scheme will not have any adverse impact on the creditors as further elaborated in 

Clause 11. There will be no change in the general reserves of the Company as a result of 

the reduction of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares pursuant to this Clause 5 of the Scheme. The Company 

shall not be required to add the words “And Reduced” as a suffix to its name consequent 

upon such reduction.  

5.6 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, and without the requirement for any further 

application, act, deed, consent or other actions from the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

(including surrendering of share certificates and/ or sending appropriate instructions to the 

depository participants), the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall stand cancelled, extinguished and 

rendered invalid in accordance with this Scheme.  

6. CONSIDERATION  

6.1 The consideration for reduction of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares pursuant to Clause 5, is payable 

by way of consideration other than cash. Upon effectiveness of the Scheme and in 

accordance with the terms hereof, including Clause 5, the Company shall issue New 

Ordinary Shares to the holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares as consideration for the reduction 

and cancellation of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares. The issuance of consideration in the form of 

New Ordinary Shares rather than cash will have various benefits, including: (a) preserving 

liquidity for the Company’s growth; (b) allowing the holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares to 

continue to participate in the Company’s performance; and (c) the benefits set out in 

paragraph II.5 of Part A of the Scheme. 

6.2 For the purposes of, inter alia, transfer of the Capital Reduction Consideration (as defined 

below) by the Company to the Relevant Shareholders (as defined below), the Company 

shall, prior to the Effective Date have settled the Trust. The Trust will receive the New 

Ordinary Shares from the Company on behalf and for the benefit of each of the Relevant 

Shareholders as contemplated in Clause 6.4, and will thereafter, post-sale of the requisite 

number of New Ordinary Shares to discharge obligations in relation to Total Adjustment 

Amounts (as defined below) and completion of the other actions more specifically 

enumerated in this Clause 6, inter alia, distribute the remaining New Ordinary Shares to 

the Relevant Shareholders in terms of this Scheme. 

6.3 In this regard, following the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Company shall, issue New 

Ordinary Shares on behalf and for the benefit of each holder of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

whose shares have been cancelled in accordance with Clause 5 and whose names appear in 

the register of members (including register and index of beneficial owners maintained by a 

depository under Section 11 of the Depositories Act, 1996) of the Company on the Record 

Date or to such of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal 

representative or other successors in title as on the Record Date (“Relevant 

Shareholders”), without any further application, act or deed, save for: (a) any documents 

required from the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares pursuant to this Scheme; and (b) the 

actions required from the Trust pursuant to this Scheme.   

6.4 The consideration specified under this Clause 6, for every 10 cancelled and extinguished 

fully paid-up ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of face value of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each 

shall be:  

“7 fully paid-up Ordinary Share(s) of face value of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two 

only) each.” (“Capital Reduction Consideration”) 

Immediately post issuance and allotment, the Company shall take necessary steps for 

obtaining the listing and trading approvals for the issued shares in accordance with this 

Scheme. 
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6.5 The Ordinary Shares issued by the Company as the consideration pursuant to this Scheme 

are referred to as the “New Ordinary Shares”. The New Ordinary Shares shall be issued/ 

transferred to the Relevant Shareholders pursuant to Clause 6 in the manner set out below:  

(a) Upon effectiveness of this Scheme, the Company shall issue and allot the New 

Ordinary Shares to the Trust, which shall hold the New Ordinary Shares on behalf 

and for the benefit of each Relevant Shareholder.  

(b) The Company shall notify the Trust of:  

(i) the details of the demat account, bank account and other details of each 

Relevant Shareholder, as available in the records of the Company;  

(ii) the number of New Ordinary Shares issued in respect of each Relevant 

Shareholder; and 

(iii) the amount to be withheld from the consideration attributable to each 

Relevant Shareholder under Applicable Law (including Tax Laws) 

(“Adjustment Amount”).  

(c) the Trust shall, upon allotment of the New Ordinary Shares, sell such number of 

New Ordinary Shares on the Stock Exchanges, as may be required to: (i) realise 

the aggregate Adjustment Amount notified by the Company pursuant to Clause 

6.5(b); and (ii) discharge costs attributable to capital gains tax, securities 

transaction tax, transaction cost(s), brokerage charges, and any other expenses akin 

to the foregoing payable solely with respect to the sale of New Ordinary Shares 

pursuant to this Clause (collectively with sub-clause (i) of this Clause 6.5(c), the 

“Total Adjustment Amount”). For the avoidance of doubt, costs attributable to 

the fees payable to advisors (including legal, tax, merchant banker and accounting), 

the fees payable to the trustee of the Trust and any other expenses akin to the 

foregoing costs, pursuant to this Clause 6 shall be borne by the Company, inter 

alia, through the Trust’s corpus and/ or through the Trust invoicing the Company. 

The Trust shall determine the number of New Ordinary Shares to be sold, the 

timing of the sale and the Stock Exchange on which such sale should be undertaken 

based on the advice of a merchant banker appointed by the Trust in this regard, 

provided however that such sale shall be concluded before the end of the calendar 

month as in which the Record Date falls, unless otherwise decided by the Board in 

accordance with the Applicable Law;   

(d) promptly following completion of such sale, the Trust shall:  

(i) immediately thereafter, remit the aggregate Adjustment Amount to the 

Company;  

(ii) within 7 (seven) days from the date of such sale, transfer the New Ordinary 

Shares to the demat account of each Relevant Shareholder based on the 

Capital Reduction Consideration, less any New Ordinary Shares sold by 

the Trust to realise the Total Adjustment Amount in respect of such 

Relevant Shareholder; 

(iii) within 7 (seven) days from the date of such sale, remit excess cash (if any) 

realized by the Trust in respect of the New Ordinary Shares sold by it. Such 

amounts shall be distributed pro rata to the New Ordinary Shares sold in 

respect of the Relevant Shareholders; and   
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(iv) undertake such additional action as may be required under Applicable 

Law, including any filings in relation to the Foreign Exchange 

Management (Mode of Payment and Reporting of Non-debt Instruments) 

Regulations, 2019.   

(e) the Company shall deposit the aggregate Adjustment Amount with the relevant 

governmental authority in the manner prescribed under Applicable Law (including 

Tax Laws) and shall provide each Relevant Shareholder such documents as are 

required to be provided by the Company under Applicable Law to evidence such 

payment.   

(f) The Company may, through its investor outreach/ communication made separately 

to the Relevant Shareholders, seek such information or documents from holders of 

‘A’ Ordinary Shares as may be required to effect the transactions contemplated in 

this Clause 6, including to determine the Adjustment Amount and to enable credit 

of the New Ordinary Shares and the determined amount of cash to the demat 

account and bank account of the Relevant Shareholders. If such information or 

documents requested is not provided by such Relevant Shareholder to the 

Company’s satisfaction, and within the timelines prescribed by the Company, the 

Company shall be entitled to deduct or withhold amounts from the consideration 

payable to such Relevant Shareholder under Clause 6 at the highest rate specified 

under Applicable Law, prior to issuing the New Ordinary Shares to such holders 

of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares. 

(g) if the Company does not receive details of the demat accounts or bank accounts of 

any Relevant Shareholder, or if the details furnished by any Relevant Shareholder 

do not permit electronic credit of the New Ordinary Shares or the cash payments, 

then the New Ordinary Shares relatable to such Relevant Shareholder shall be held 

by the Trust until the New Ordinary Shares and cash amounts are transferred to the 

escrow accounts as contemplated under Clause 6.5(h) below and will only be 

credited to the respective depository participant account/ bank account of the 

Relevant Shareholder when the details of such Relevant Shareholder’s accounts 

with the depository participant and/ or bank are intimated in writing to the 

Company.  

(h) if any New Ordinary Shares, including cash payments pursuant to Clause 6 have 

not been claimed by or paid to a Relevant Shareholder as on March 15 of the 

relevant financial year on which the Record Date falls, such amounts and New 

Ordinary Shares shall be transferred by the Trust to non-interest bearing escrow 

account and a demat escrow account respectively, in each case opened and 

maintained by the Company in this regard, and will be remitted to such Relevant 

Shareholders when the details of such Relevant Shareholder’s bank account/ demat 

account are intimated in writing to the Company. Any unclaimed New Ordinary 

Shares, along with the dividend accrued on such unclaimed New Ordinary Shares 

(if any) shall be treated as ‘unclaimed shares’ and ‘unclaimed dividend’ for the 

purposes of the Act, including for the purposes of Section 124 and Section 125 of 

the Act, and shall be treated in the manner prescribed under the Act for ‘unclaimed 

shares’ and ‘unclaimed dividend’.  

(i) the Trust shall complete all actions required by it within the periods set out in 

Clause 6, which period may be extended by the Board if it so deems fit, provided 

that no extension by the Board shall result in the time period extending beyond 90 

(ninety) days from the date of allotment of such New Ordinary Shares by the 

Company.  
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(j) the Trust shall stand dissolved upon completion of its obligations under Clause 6, 

and the Trust and/ or the Board shall be entitled to undertake any and all actions as 

may be required to give effect to such dissolution in accordance with the terms of 

the trust deed. Any amounts pending with the Trust subsequent to fulfillment of its 

purpose and completion of its obligations under Clause 6 shall be dealt with in the 

manner set out in the trust deed.  

6.6 The New Ordinary Shares shall be subject to the Scheme, the MoA and AoA of the 

Company and Applicable Laws, and shall rank pari passu with the Ordinary Shares of the 

Company, including with respect to dividend. 

6.7 No New Ordinary Shares shall be allotted in respect of fractional entitlements by the 

Company to which the Relevant Shareholders may be entitled on allotment as per Clause 

6. If any Relevant Shareholder is entitled to fractional entitlements on account of the Capital 

Reduction Consideration applicable to him/ her/ it, subject to receipt of appropriate 

approvals, if any, the Company shall consolidate such fractional entitlements and thereupon 

allot the New Ordinary Shares in lieu thereof to the Trust who shall hold the New Ordinary 

Shares in trust on behalf and for the benefit of each of the Relevant Shareholders entitled 

to fractional entitlements with the express understanding that the Trust shall sell the New 

Ordinary Shares so allotted on the Stock Exchanges at such time or times and at such price 

or prices and to such Person, as the Trust deems fit (which sale shall be undertaken before 

the end of the month as in which the Record Date falls unless otherwise decided by the 

Board in accordance with the Applicable Law, provided that no extension by the Board 

shall result in the time period extending beyond 90 (ninety) days from the date of allotment 

of such New Ordinary Shares by the Company), and shall distribute the net sale proceeds 

in cash, subject to tax deductions and other expenses as applicable in line with Clause 

6.5(c), to the Relevant Shareholders in proportion to their respective fractional entitlements 

(along with such documents as applicable to the Relevant Shareholder as are required to be 

provided under Applicable Law to evidence such payment). In case the aggregate number 

of such New Ordinary Shares to be allotted to the Trust (as contemplated above) as part of 

the applicable Capital Reduction Consideration, by virtue of consolidation of fractional 

entitlements, is a fraction, it shall be rounded off to the next higher integer. 

6.8 All the Relevant Shareholders who hold the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares in physical form shall also 

receive the New Ordinary Shares to be transferred from the Trust in dematerialized form 

provided the details of their account with the depository participant are intimated in writing 

to the Company and/ or its registrar within the timeline prescribed by the Company in its 

communications to the Relevant Shareholders and the details of the same shall be intimated 

to the Trust.  

6.9 The amount payable in cash pursuant to Clause 6 shall be discharged by issue of cheque, 

draft, pay order/ warrant or demand draft, electronic transfer of funds, NEFT/ RTGS/ IMPS, 

as may be decided by the Trust, based on the bank details of such holder of ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares as available with the Company or its registrar within the timeline prescribed by the 

Company in its communications to the Relevant Shareholders, the details of which shall be 

intimated to the Trust.  

6.10 In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of 

any Relevant Shareholders, the Board shall be empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or 

even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in the 

registered holder were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties 

arising to the transferor or transferee of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares, after the effectiveness of this 

Scheme. The Board shall be empowered to remove such difficulties as may arise in the 

course of implementation of this Scheme and registration of new shareholders as holders 
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of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares, as required, on account of difficulties faced in the transaction 

period. 

6.11 To the extent cash is payable to the Relevant Shareholders who are non-residents, the 

Company and the Trust shall comply with the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 

and the rules and regulations made thereunder and may seek any information from such 

Relevant Shareholders as on the Record Date to comply with the said provisions. If the 

payment of cash to any Relevant Shareholders pursuant to the Scheme is subject to approval 

of a governmental authority, and such approval has not been obtained after satisfaction of 

all the conditions to this Scheme, the Trust may complete the payment of such cash only 

after the relevant approval is obtained.  

6.12 The New Ordinary Shares to be issued to the Trust and any cash payments held in trust on 

behalf and for the benefit of the Relevant Shareholders pursuant to Clause 6 in respect of 

any ‘A’ Ordinary Shares which are held in abeyance under Applicable Laws (including the 

provisions of Section 126 of the Act) or which the Company is unable to issue due to non-

receipt of relevant approvals or due to Applicable Laws or otherwise (“Relevant Shares/  

Cash”) shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of NCLT or otherwise, 

be held in abeyance by the Company, provided however if any such Relevant Shares/ Cash 

continue to be held in abeyance by the Company as on March 15 of the relevant financial 

year on which the Record Date falls, such Relevant Shares/ Cash shall be transferred by the 

Trust to a demat escrow account and non-interest bearing escrow account respectively, in 

each case opened and maintained by the Company, and will be remitted to such Relevant 

Shareholders upon receipt of the necessary approvals or upon allotment or settlement of the 

relevant dispute by order of the NCLT or otherwise, as the case may be, in each case, in 

accordance with Applicable Law. Any unclaimed Relevant Shares/ Cash, along with the 

dividend accrued on such unclaimed Relevant Shares/ Cash (if any) shall be treated as 

‘unclaimed shares’ and ‘unclaimed dividend’ for the purposes of the Act, including for the 

purposes of Section 124 and Section 125 of the Act, and shall be treated in the manner 

prescribed under the Act for ‘unclaimed shares’ and ‘unclaimed dividend’.     

6.13 The New Ordinary Shares issued and distributed pursuant to this Scheme shall not be 

registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 as amended (“Securities Act”), 

in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act 

provided by Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act (“3(a)(10) Exemption”) and shall not 

constitute a “public offer” or a “public issue” as such term may be defined under the SEBI 

Regulations. The order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme will be relied upon by the 

Company for the purpose of qualifying the issuance and distribution of New Ordinary 

Shares pursuant to and as a result of this Scheme and the Section 3(a)(10) Exemption. 

Approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Company shall be deemed to be due 

compliance of the provisions of Section 42, Section 62 and other relevant and applicable 

provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder. Nothing contained under this Scheme 

shall be deemed to constitute an invitation/ offer to acquire and/ or an invitation/ offer to 

sell securities by the Company or the Trust. 

6.14 The New Ordinary Shares will be listed and/ or admitted to trading on the Stock Exchanges, 

and the Company will initiate the necessary steps in this regard immediately upon issuance 

of the New Ordinary Shares. The Company shall enter into such arrangements and give 

such confirmations and/ or undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with 

Applicable Laws or regulations with the formalities of the said Stock Exchange. The New 

Ordinary Shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories 

system till listing and trading permission is given by the designated Stock Exchange. 

 

PART D –GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
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7. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE COMPANY   

The Company shall abide by the Accounting Standards, for giving effect to the Scheme. 

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Company shall:  

(a) account for the reduction of the ‘A’ Ordinary Share capital in its books of accounts 

in accordance with the requirement of the Accounting Standards by debiting the 

‘A’ Ordinary Share capital account by the face value of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares, 

debiting the securities premium account for the difference between face value and 

fair value of the “A” Ordinary shares and crediting share adjustment account;  

(b) account for the issuance and allotment of the New Ordinary Shares in its books of 

accounts in accordance with the requirement of the Accounting Standards by 

crediting the Ordinary Share capital account by the face value of the New Ordinary 

Shares, crediting the securities premium account for the difference between face 

value and fair value of the New Ordinary shares and debiting share adjustment 

account; and  

(c) account for the expenses incurred on the reduction of the ‘A’ ordinary share capital 

in the retained earnings and the expenses on the listing of the New Ordinary Shares 

on Stock Exchanges in the statement of profit and loss, in accordance with the 

requirement of the Accounting Standards.  

8. AMENDMENTS TO THE MOA OF THE COMPANY  

8.1 Amendments to authorised share capital   

(a) As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the 

authorised share capital of the Company in relation to its ‘A’ Ordinary Shares as 

specified in Clause 4, i.e., INR 2,00,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Crore 

only) divided into 1,00,00,00,000 (One Hundred Crore) ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of 

INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each shall stand reclassified and consolidated 

along with the existing Ordinary Shares share capital, such that post effectiveness 

of the Scheme the authorized share capital of the Company is INR 10,00,00,00,000 

(Indian Rupees One Thousand Crore only) divided into 5,00,00,00,000 (Five 

Hundred Crore) Ordinary Shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) each; 

(b) Further, as an integral part of the Scheme, and upon coming into effect of the 

Scheme all provisions and references which relate to ‘A’ Ordinary Shares under 

the MoA, shall stand deleted/ modified/ substituted to Ordinary Shares (as may be 

applicable), without any further act, instrument or deed on the part of the Company; 

(c) In order to give effect to the reclassification of share capital of the Company as 

specified in Clause 8.1(a), Clause V of the MoA shall be altered as set out below, 

upon coming into effect of the Scheme and without any further act or deed: 

“V. The authorized share capital of the Company is INR 10,00,00,00,000 

(Indian Rupees One Thousand Crore only) Ordinary Shares divided into 

5,00,00,00,000 (Five Hundred Crore) Ordinary Shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees 

Two only) each and 30,00,00,000 (Thirty Crore) Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares of INR 100/- (Indian Rupees One Hundred only) each.”  

(d) In the event the authorised capital of the Company undergoes any change prior to 

the date on which this Scheme comes into effect, the clauses specified in this 
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Scheme to replace the existing Clause V of the MoA shall be modified accordingly 

to take into account the effect of any such change;  

(e) Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company shall file the requisite forms with the 

Registrar of Companies for alteration of its authorized share capital; and  

(f) The amendments pursuant to this Clause 8.1 shall become operative on the Scheme 

becoming effective by virtue of the fact that the shareholders of the Company, 

while approving the Scheme as a whole, have approved and accorded the relevant 

consents as required under the Act for reclassification of the share capital of the 

Company, and amendment of the MoA and shall not be required to pass separate 

resolutions under the applicable provisions of the Act. 

8.2 It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of Clause 8.1: 

(a) the consent of the shareholders of the Company to the Scheme shall be deemed 

sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above amendment to the MoA and/ or 

reclassification of share capital of the Company, and no further resolution under 

Section 13, Section 61, Section 62 and Section 64 of the Act or any other applicable 

provisions of the Act, would be required to be separately passed; 

(b) pursuant to the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Company shall file the requisite 

forms with the Registrar of Companies for alteration of its MoA; and 

(c) the filing fees and stamp duty, if any already paid by the Company in relation to its 

authorised share capital pertaining to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall be set off and 

be deemed to have been so paid by the Company on the reclassified authorised 

share capital of the Company pertaining to the Ordinary Shares. The Company shall 

not be required to pay any filing fees or stamp duty to the extent set off and 

accordingly, shall be required to pay only the balance amount on the stamp duty, if 

any, in relation to the increased authorised share capital after setting off the stamp 

duty already paid by the Company on the authorised share capital pertaining to the 

‘A’ Ordinary Shares.   

8.3 Issue and allotment of securities 

(a) Where any securities are to be allotted to the heirs, executors, administrators, legal 

representatives or other successors in title, as the case may be, of any security 

holders, the concerned heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives or 

other successors in title shall be obliged to produce evidence of title, satisfactory 

to the Board of the Company as a condition to such allotment. 

(b) In the event of there being any pending share transfer, whether lodged or 

outstanding, of any member of the Company, the Board shall be empowered even 

subsequent to the Effective Date, to effectuate such transfer as if such changes in 

the registered holder were operative from the Effective Date, in order to remove 

any difficulties arising to the transferor or the transferee of equity shares (either ‘A’ 

Ordinary Shares or Ordinary Shares) in the Company after the Scheme becomes 

effective. The Board shall be empowered to remove such difficulties as may arise 

in the course of implementation of the Scheme and registration of new shareholders 

in the Company, on account of difficulties faced in the transaction period. 

9. AMENDMENTS TO THE AOA  
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9.1        As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the following 

provisions of the AoA shall stand deleted without any further act, instrument or deed on the 

part of the Company:  

(a) “7A Issue of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

(i) The Board may issue Ordinary Shares with differential rights as to voting 

and/ or dividend (hereinafter referred to as ‘A’ Ordinary Shares) upto an 

amount not exceeding 25% of the total issued Ordinary Share Capital of 

the Company or such other limit as may be prescribed by applicable 

laws/regulations. Such issue of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall be in accordance 

with the Act, other applicable laws, Article 67A and other terms and 

conditions that may be specified at the time of issue. 

(ii) The ‘A’ Ordinary Shares so issued by the Company will stand to be in the 

same class as the Ordinary Shares. The ‘A’ Ordinary Shares issued by the 

Company will enjoy all rights and privileges that are attached to Ordinary 

Shares in law and by the provisions of these presents, except as to voting 

and/ or dividend, as provided in these Articles and as may be permitted 

under applicable law from time to time. 

(iii) The Board may issue ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of more than one series carrying 

differential rights as to voting and/ or dividend, as the case may be. 

(iv) The Board shall have the power and authority to remove any difficulties, 

and do such other acts and deeds, in relation to the applicability of this 

Article to the rights and obligations of the holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares, including, but not limited to the issue and deciding the stock 

exchanges on which the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares will be listed. 

(v) The Board shall follow the general principles set out under Article 7A (ii) 

at all times whilst making any decision in regard to ‘A’ Ordinary Shares.” 

(b) “67A Provisions in case of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares  

Notwithstanding anything contained in these presents, the rights, powers and 

preferences relating to ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and the qualifications, limitations and 

restrictions thereof are as follows: 

(a) Voting  

 

(i) The holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall be entitled to such rights of 

voting and/ or dividend and such other rights as per the terms of the 

issue of such shares, provided always that: 

 

- in the case where a resolution is put to vote on a poll, such 

voting entitlement (excluding fractions, if any) will be 

applicable to holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares. 

 

- in the case where a resolution is put to vote in the meeting and 

is to be decided on a show of hands, the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares shall be entitled to the same number of votes as 

available to holders of Ordinary Shares in accordance with 

Article 111(1). 
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(ii) The holders of Ordinary Shares and the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares shall vote as a single class with respect to all matters submitted 

to a vote of shareholders of the Company and shall exercise such votes 

in proportion to the voting rights attached to such Shares including in 

relation to any scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Act. 

 

(b) Dividend Entitlement  

 

The holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall be entitled to dividend on each ‘A’ 

Ordinary Share which may be equal to or higher than the amount per 

Ordinary Share declared by the Board for each Ordinary Share, and as may 

be specified at the time of the issue. Different series of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

may carry different entitlements to dividend to the extent permitted under 

applicable law and as prescribed under the terms applicable to such issue. 

(c) (i)    Where the Company proposes to make a rights issue of Ordinary 

Shares or any other securities convertible into Ordinary Shares, the 

Company shall simultaneously make an offer to the holders of ‘A’ 

Ordinary Shares in the same proportion of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares to 

Ordinary Shares prior to the issue. The holders of ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares shall receive further ‘A’ Ordinary Shares whereas holders of 

Ordinary Shares shall receive further Ordinary Shares. 

 

(ii) Where the Company proposes to make a bonus issue of Ordinary 

Shares, the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares shall, subject to the terms 

of such issue, receive further ‘A’ Ordinary Shares whereas the holders 

of Ordinary Shares shall receive further Ordinary Shares to the end 

and intent that the proportion of Ordinary Shares to ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares after such offer, shall, as far as possible remain unaffected. 

 

(d) Conversion 

 

The ‘A’ Ordinary Shares issued in accordance with these presents will not 

be convertible into Ordinary Shares at any time. 

(e) Mergers, Amarlgamations, etc.  

 

In the event of any scheme, arrangement or amalgamation in accordance 

with the Act, and subject to other approvals and other applicable laws and 

these presents for amalgamation of the Company with or into any other entity 

and which results in a share swap or exchange, the holders of the ‘A’ 

Ordinary Shares shall receive allotment as per the terms of the scheme and 

as far as possible, unless specified to the Company in such scheme, the said 

holders shall receive Ordinary Shares with differential rights to voting or 

dividend of such entity. 

(f) Substantial acquisition of shares 

 

(i) Where an offer is made to purchase the outstanding Ordinary Shares 

or voting rights or equity capital or share capital or voting capital of 

the Company in accordance with the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 and other applicable laws, 
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the applicability of such regulation on ‘A’ Ordinary Shares will result 

in an offer also being made to purchase ‘A’ Ordinary Shares in the 

same proportion as the offer to purchase Ordinary Shares. 

 

Illustration: In accordance with the said Regulations where an offer 

is made to purchase twenty (20) percent of the outstanding Ordinary 

Shares or voting rights or equity capital or share capital or voting 

capital of the Company, such offer shall be deemed to include an offer 

for twenty (20) percent of the outstanding Ordinary Shares and also 

an offer for twenty (20) percent of the outstanding ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares. 

(ii) The pricing guidelines and other provisions as specified in the SEBI 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 

shall mutatis mutandis apply to an offer for ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and 

the percentage premium offered for the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares to its 

floor price shall be equal to the percentage premium offered for the 

Ordinary Shares to its floor price. All consideration to be received by 

holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares in accordance with any offer as stated 

in sub-clause (i) above shall be paid in the same form and at the same 

time as that received by holders of Ordinary Shares. 

 

Explanation: For the purposes of the said Regulations, the terms 

“shares”, “voting rights”, “equity capital”, “share capital” or 

“voting capital” shall mean and include Ordinary Shares and ‘A’ 

Ordinary Shares as the case may be. 

(g) Delisting  

 

Where the promoter (as provided in the last quarterly filing with the stock 

exchanges prior to making the offer) or any other acquirer proposes at any 

time to voluntarily delist the Ordinary Shares of the Company in accordance 

with the SEBI (Delisting of Securities) Guidelines, 2003 from the stock 

exchanges on which such Ordinary Shares are listed, such promoter or 

acquirer shall also make a delisting offer for the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and 

the percentage premium offered for the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares to its floor price 

shall be equal to the percentage premium offered for the Ordinary Shares to 

its floor price.  

(h) Buyback of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares by the Company 

 

Subject to Article 66, Article 66A and Article 68, the Company when 

exercising its power under these presents to buyback the Ordinary Shares of 

the Company, will offer to buyback ‘A’ Ordinary Shares in the same 

proportion and on equitable pricing terms as offered to the holders of 

Ordinary Shares, in accordance with applicable laws including the SEBI 

(Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998. 

(i) Modification of rights pertaining to ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

 

(i) Any alteration proposed by the Company to this Article 67A which 

affects the rights pertaining to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares is required to 
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be approved by not less than three-fourths of the holders of the 

outstanding ‘A’ Ordinary Shares present and voting. 

 

(ii) For the purposes of (i) above, the Company will call a separate 

meeting of holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares.” 

 

9.2 As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon Scheme becoming effective, Article 67B of 

the AoA shall stand replaced as set out below without any further act, instrument or deed 

on the part of the Company: 

(a) “67B Issue of Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares  

The Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares for the time being in the 

capital of the Company may be issued either with the sanction of the 

Company in General Meeting or by the Board.  

The rights, privileges and conditions attached to the Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each shall be as follows:- 

(a) The Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares shall confer on the 

holders thereof, the right to a fixed preferential dividend at a rate as 

may be determined by the Board at the time of the issue, on the 

capital for the time being paid up and/ or credited as and from time 

to time paid up thereon. 

(b) The Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares shall rank for 

capital and dividend (including all dividends undeclared upto the 

commencement of winding up) and for repayment of capital in a 

winding up, pari passu inter se and in priority to the Ordinary 

Shares of the Company but shall not confer any further or other right 

to participate either in profits or assets and that preferential rights 

shall automatically cease on conversion of these shares into 

Ordinary Shares. 

(c) The Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares shall be converted 

into Ordinary Shares as per the terms determined by the Board at 

the time of issue; as and when converted, such Ordinary Shares shall 

rank pari passu with the then existing Ordinary Shares of the 

Company in all respects as the case may be. 

(d) The holders of the Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares shall 

have the right to receive all notices of general meetings of the 

Company, but will not have the right to vote at any meetings of the 

Company, except to the extent and in the manner provided in the Act. 

(e) The Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares shall not confer any 

right on the holders thereof, to participate in any offer or invitation 

by way of rights or otherwise to subscribe for additional Ordinary 

Shares in the Company, nor shall the Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares confer on the holders thereof any right to 

participate in any issue of bonus shares or shares issued by way of 

capitalization of reserves (except that the conversion price would be 

appropriately adjusted in the event of bonus/rights issues). 

(f) The Board shall be authorised to fix the terms and conditions of the 
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Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares including but not limited 

to the terms pertaining to dividend, conversion and/ or redemption, 

if any. The rights and terms attached to the Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares may be modified or dealt with by the Board in 

accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the 

Company.” 

9.3 It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of this Clause 9:  

 

(a) the consent of the shareholders of the Company to the Scheme shall be deemed 

sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above amendment and no further 

resolution under Section 14 of the Act or any other applicable provisions of the 

Act, would be required to be separately passed; and 

(b) pursuant to the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Company shall file the requisite 

forms with the Registrar of Companies for alteration of its AoA.  

10. EMPLOYEES  

The reduction and reorganization of share capital to the extent of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

as set out in Part C of this Scheme shall not adversely affect the employees of the Company, 

as there is no transfer of employees contemplated under the Scheme. On the Scheme 

becoming effective, all the employees of the Company shall continue with their 

employment, without any break or interruption in their services, on the same terms and 

conditions on which they are engaged as on the Effective Date.  

11. CREDITORS  

The reduction of the Company’s share capital as set out in Part C of this Scheme will not 

alter or modify the rights of the creditors and hence will not have any material impact on 

the creditors. The creditors of the Company shall in no way be affected by the proposed 

reduction of capital, as there is no reduction in the amount payable to any of the creditors, 

there is no cash outflow from the Company and no compromise or arrangement is 

contemplated with the creditors. Thus, the proposed reduction of the Company’s share 

capital will not, in any way, adversely affect the operations of the Company or the ability 

of the Company to honour its commitments or to pay its debts in the ordinary course of 

business.  

12. COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS  

The Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the provisions under the Tax Laws to the 

extent applicable as on the date of filing of the Scheme. 

13. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all suits, actions, administrative proceedings, 

tribunals proceedings, show cause notices, demands and legal proceedings of whatsoever 

nature by or against the Company pending and/ or arising on or before the Effective Date 

or which may be instituted any time thereafter shall not abate or be discontinued or be in 

any way prejudicially affected by reason of the Scheme or by anything contained in the 

Scheme but shall be continued and be enforced by or against the Company.  

14. APPLICATIONS  

The Company shall make application(s) under Section 230 – Section 232 and other 
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applicable provisions of the Act to the NCLT for sanctioning this Scheme. Further, the 

Company (through its Board) shall have the authority to undertake all acts and deeds 

necessary to give effect to this Scheme.  

15. CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY 

15.1 Without prejudice to the generality of the Scheme, during the period between the date of 

approval of the Scheme by the Board and up to and including the date of issuance of the 

consideration payable under Clause 6 pursuant to the Scheme, the Company shall not make 

any change in its capital structure, whether by way of increase (including by issue of equity 

shares (either ‘A’ Ordinary Shares or Ordinary Shares) on a rights basis, issue of bonus 

shares or otherwise) decrease, reduction, reclassification, sub-division or consolidation, re-

organisation of share capital, or in any other manner which may, in any way, affect the 

payment of the consideration as per Clause 6, except under any of the following 

circumstances:  

(a) by way of a resolution passed by the Board; or  

(b) on account of issuance of any Ordinary Shares pursuant to the exercise of the 

employee stock options and/ or the performance share units pursuant to the 

Employee Stock Option Scheme; or  

(c) as may be expressly permitted under this Scheme. 

15.2 In the event of any such change in share capital of the Company before the payment of the 

consideration to the holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares pursuant to Clause 6, the Capital 

Reduction Consideration shall be appropriately adjusted, if required, to take into account 

the effect of such issuance or corporate actions.  

16. MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THIS SCHEME 

16.1 The Company (through its Board), may, in its full and absolute discretion, assent to any 

alteration or modification to this Scheme which the Board deems fit, including such 

conditions which the NCLT and/ or any other governmental authority may deem fit to 

approve or impose. 

16.2 The Company (through its Board), may give such directions as they may consider necessary 

to settle any question or difficulty arising under this Scheme or in regard to and of the 

meaning or interpretation of this Scheme or implementation hereof or in any matter 

whatsoever connected therewith, or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of 

various conditions to this Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those (to the extent 

permissible under Applicable Law). 

17. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 

17.1 The effectiveness of the Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:  

(a) receipt of the observation letter or the no-objection letter from the Stock Exchanges 

in respect of the Scheme, pursuant to Regulation 11, Regulation 37, Regulation 

59A, Regulation 94 and Regulation 94A of the SEBI LODR Regulations read with 

the SEBI Scheme Circular and SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt, and the terms of such 

observation letters being acceptable to the Board;  

(b) the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the various 

classes of members and creditors (where applicable) of the Company, as required 
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under the Act and SEBI Scheme Circular and SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt, subject 

to any dispensation that may be granted by the NCLT;  

(c) the Scheme being approved by the public shareholders of the Company through e-

voting as required under the SEBI Scheme Circular. The Scheme shall be acted 

upon only if votes cast by the public shareholders of the Company in favour of the 

proposal are more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders of the 

Company against it; 

(d) the Scheme being approved by the holders of NCDs through e-voting as required 

under the SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt (where applicable);  

(e) the Company having received such approvals and sanctions, including consent of 

any government authority as may be required by Applicable Law in respect of the 

Scheme and on terms and conditions acceptable to the Board;  

(f) the Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT in terms of Section 230 – Section 232 

and other relevant provisions of the Act on terms acceptable to the Company; and 

(g) the certified copy of the NCLT order approving the Scheme being filed with the 

Registrar of Companies by the Company.  

17.2 Any of the conditions precedent set out in Clause 17.1 above may, subject to Applicable 

Law, be waived wholly or partly by the Board, at their sole discretion and without any 

further approvals from any Person or without any amendment to the Scheme.  

17.3 It is hereby clarified that submission of the Scheme to the NCLT and to the governmental 

authorities for their respective approval is without prejudice to all rights, interests, titles or 

defences that the Company may have under or pursuant to all Applicable Laws. 

17.4 On the approval of the Scheme by the shareholders of the Company such shareholders shall 

also be deemed to have resolved and accorded all relevant consents under the Act or SEBI 

LODR Regulations or otherwise to the same extent applicable in relation to the proposal 

set out in this Scheme, related matters including those set out herein and the Scheme itself. 

18. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEBI SCHEME CIRCULAR – DEBT 

The additional disclosures that are required to be included in this Scheme in terms of the 

SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt in relation to the NCDs are set out in Annexure A.  

19. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS AND WITHDRAWAL OF THIS 

SCHEME  

19.1 The Company acting through its Board shall be at liberty to withdraw this Scheme with 

prior approval of the NCLT (if filed with the NCLT), in the following instances: 

(a) in case any condition or alteration imposed by any appropriate authority/ Person is 

unacceptable to any of them or makes the Scheme unviable to implement; or  

(b) they are of the view that coming into effect of this Scheme could have adverse 

implications on the Company; or  

(c) for any reason they may deem fit. 
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19.2 In the event of revocation / withdrawal under Clause 19.1 above, no rights or liabilities 

whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the Company and its shareholders or 

creditors or employees or any other person.  

20. SEVERABILITY 

If any part and/ or provisions of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason 

whatsoever, the same shall not, subject to the decision of the Company, affect the validity 

or implementation of the other parts and/ or provisions of this Scheme. 

21. ACCOUNTS  

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, if required under Applicable Law, the accounts of 

the Company, as on the Appointed Date, shall be reconstructed in accordance with the 

terms of this Scheme. 

22. REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES 

The Company through its Board may give such directions and agree to take steps, as may 

be necessary, desirable or proper, to resolve all doubts, difficulties or questions arising 

under this Scheme, whether by reason of any orders of NCLT or of any directive or orders 

of any governmental authority, under or by virtue of this Scheme in relation to the 

arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and/ or matters concerning or connected 

therewith or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of this Scheme or 

implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever connected therewith, or to review the 

position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of this Scheme and if necessary, 

to waive any of those to the extent permissible under Applicable Laws, and also do all such 

acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme 

into effect. 

23. NO CAUSE OF ACTION 

No third party claiming to have acted or changed his position in anticipation of this Scheme 

taking effect, shall get any cause of action against the Company or its directors or officers, 

if the Scheme does not take effect or is withdrawn, amended or modified for any reason 

whatsoever. 
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ANNEXURE A 

Additional disclosures in terms of the SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt in relation to the NCDs 

Details of 

the NCDs 

E26-B  E26-C E26-F E28-A 

Tranche II 

E28-A 

Tranche III  

E-28B 

Tranche I 

E-28B 

Tranche II 

E30-A E30-B 

ISIN  INE155A08

191 

INE155A08

209 

INE155A08

241 

INE155A08

373 

INE155A08

399 

INE155A08

407 

INE155A08

415 

INE155A08

423 

INE155A08

431 

Face Value 

(INR) 

10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 

Principal 

(INR cr) 

INR 300 cr INR 200 cr  INR 400 cr INR 200 cr  INR 100 cr  INR 250 cr INR 250 cr INR 500 cr INR 500 cr 

Coupon (%) 9.81% 9.77% 9.35% 9.31% 9.54% 8.50% 8.50% 6.60% 6.95% 

Coupon 

payment 

frequency 

Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual 

Credit rating  AA AA AA AA AA AA AA AA AA 

Tenure/Matu

rity 

Aug 20th 

2024 

Sept 12th 

2024 

Nov 10th 

2023 

September 

29th 2023 

June 28th 

2024 

Dec 30th 

2026 

January 29th 

2027 

May 29th 

2026 

March 31st 

2026 

Redemption 

terms  

Bullet payment at maturity. No option for early redemption. Only option is to give open offer to repurchase the NCDs   
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Safeguards 

for protection 

of holders of 

NCDs  

Acceleration 

of payment 

in case of  

event of 

default; 

Events of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law; 

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in case of  

event of 

default; 

Events of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law; 

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in case of  

event of 

default; 

Events of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law; 

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in the case of 

event of 

default;  

Event of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law ;   

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in the case of 

event of 

default;  

Event of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law ;   

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in the case of 

event of 

default;  

Event of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law ;   

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in the case of 

event of 

default;  

Event of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law ;   

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in case of  

event of 

default; 

Events of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law; 

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 

Acceleration 

of payment 

in case of  

event of 

default; 

Events of 

default 

includes 

default in 

payment of 

coupon or 

principle or 

in the event 

of Company 

proceeding 

with any 

voluntary 

proceeding 

under any 

applicable 

bankruptcy, 

insolvency, 

winding up 

or other 

similar law; 

In case of 

delay in 

payment of 

interest an 

additional 

interest 
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@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

@2% p.a is 

required to 

be paid to 

the delayed 

period  

Exit offer for 

dissenting 

holders of 

NCDs 

Not applicable 

Other 

embedded 

features (put 

option, call 

option, dates, 

notification 

times, etc) 

Not 

applicable 

Not 

applicable 

Not 

applicable 

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

Step up and 

step down in 

coupon by 

25bps in 

case of 

change in 

ratings  

Not 

applicable 

Not 

applicable 

Other terms 

of the 

instruments  

All NCDs are unsecured. Company to appoint a debenture trustee for the benefit of the holders of NCDs. Company to maintain a 

Debenture Redemption Reserve account to the extent of 15% of the amount of NCDs maturing in the next financial year  
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Latest 

audited 

financials 

along with 

notes to 

accounts and 

any audit 

qualifications 

Please refer to the following URL on the website of the Company: [●] 

Auditors’ 

certificate 

certifying the 

payment/ 

repayment 

capability of 

the Company 

Please refer to the following URL on the website of the Company: [●] 

Fairness 

report 
Please refer to the following URL on the website of the Company: [●] 

Any other 

information/ 

details 

pertinent to 

the holders of 

NCDs 

Not applicable 

Certified to be true

Maloy Kumar Gupta
Company Secretary
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Ref: NSE/LIST/36808_I                                       December 21, 2023 

The Company Secretary 

Tata Motors Limited 

Bombay House, 

24 Homi Mody Street, 

Mumbai- 400001                                    

Kind Attn.: Mr. Maloy Kumar Gupta 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

Sub: Observation Letter for draft scheme of arrangement of Tata Motors Limited and its 

shareholders and creditors under section 230 to Section 232 and other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

We are in receipt of draft scheme of arrangement of Tata Motors Limited and its shareholders and 

creditors under section 230 to Section 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 vide application dated August 03, 2023. 

 

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/36808 dated November 15, 2023, submitted to SEBI 

pursuant to SEBI Master Circulars dated June 20, 2023 and November 17, 2022 read with Regulation 

37, 59A, 94(2) & 94A (2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (LODR Regulations) SEBI vide its letter dated December 20, 2023, has inter alia given the 

following comment(s) on the draft scheme of arrangement:  

 

Comments under Regulation 37(1) of SEBI Master Circular dated June 20, 2023 

 

a) The Company shall ensure that proposed composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement shall 

be in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 11 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

b) The Company shall ensure to discloses all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, 

prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its 

promoters, and directors, before Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approval of the 

Scheme. 

c) Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company after filing the 

Scheme with the Stock Exchanges, from the date of receipt of this letter, is displayed on the websites 

of the listed Company and the Stock Exchanges. 

d) The Company shall ensure that no changes shall be made to the draft scheme subsequent to filing the 

draft scheme with SEBI by the Stock Exchanges, except those mandated by the regulators/authorities/ 

tribunals. 

 

 



 

 

Continuation Sheet 

e) The Company shall ensure compliance with the SEBI circulars issued from time to time. The 

Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the SEBI Master Circular dated June 20, 2023. 

 

f) The Company shall ensure that information pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies involved in the 

scheme, shall be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of 

Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal 

accompanying resolution to be passed, which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval. 

 

g) The Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for 

valuation report are not for period more than 6 months old. 

 

h) The Company shall disclose the following as a part of the explanatory statement or notice or proposal 

accompanying resolution to be passed to be forwarded by the company to the shareholders while 

seeking approval u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act 2013, so that public shareholders can make 

an informed decision in the matter. 

i Need and rationale for the reduction of 'A' Ordinary Share Capital of the TML. 

ii Effect of the scheme on the equity shareholders of TML. 

iii Brief on salient features and benefits of the scheme. 

iv Details of Tax Liabilities arising out of the reduction of capital to the TML and to shareholders 

holding 'A' Ordinary Shares. 

v Rationale for setting up Trust for transfer of Consideration to the relevant shareholders. 

vi Detailed process involved in calculation of actual number of shares to be allotted to relevant 

shareholders by Trust after meeting the tax liabilities along with illustrations. 

vii TML to provide a pictorial/diagrammatic presentation of proposed process of allotment of shares 

to relevant shareholders for better understanding of proposed scheme by shareholders. 

 

i) The Company shall prominently disclose the details of the proposed scheme under consideration as 

provided to the Stock Exchange in the notice sent to the Shareholders. 

 

j) The Company shall ensure that the proposed equity shares to be issued in terms of the “Scheme” 

shall mandatorily be in demat form only.  

 

k) The Company shall ensure that the “Scheme” shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying 

with the relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document. 

 

l) The Company shall ensure that no changes shall be made to the draft scheme except those mandated 

by the regulators/ authorities/ tribunals without specific written consent of SEBI. 

 

m) The Company shall ensure that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in 

the petition to be filed before NCLT and the Company is obliged to bring the observations to the 

notice of NCLT.  
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n) The Company shall ensure to comply with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013, 

rules and regulations issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the 

proposed scheme.  

 

o) The Company shall ensure that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT after processing 

and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/Stock Exchange. Hence, the 

Company is not required to sent notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of 

Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/ observations/ representations. 

 

Comments in accordance with Regulation 59A of SEBI LODR Regulations read with SEBI Circular 

dated November 17, 2022. 

 

p) The Company shall not provide any misstatement or furnish false information with regard to 

disclosures to be made in the draft scheme of amalgamation as per provisions of Chapter XII of the 

Operational Circular dated 29 July, 2022. 

 

q) The Company shall include information pertaining to the unlisted entity in the format specified for 

abridged prospectus as provided in Part B of Schedule I of the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non 

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, in the notice or proposal to be sent to the holders of NCDs/ 

NCRPS while seeking approval for the scheme. The accuracy and adequacy of such disclosures shall 

be certified by the SEBI registered merchant banker after following the due diligence process. 

 

r) The Company shall ensure that the proposed scheme have complied with the relevant provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and Covenants of the Debenture Trust Deeds entered with the Debenture Trustee(s) and any 

other relevant regulations and circulars. 

 

s) The listed entity shall disclose the No Objection letter of the Stock Exchange(s) on its website within 

24 hours of receiving the same. 

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and 

communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBl/ Stock exchange. Hence, the 

company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of 

Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its 

comments/observations/representations. 

Please note that the submission of documents/information, in accordance with the Circular to SEBI and 

National Stock Exchange of India (NSE), should not in any way be deemed or construed that the same 

has been cleared or approved by SEBI and NSE. SEBI and NSE does not take any responsibility either 

for the financial soundness of any scheme or for the correctness of the statements made or opinions 

expressed in the documents submitted. 

 

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given 

in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No objection” in 
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terms of Regulation 37 and 59A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to 

file the draft scheme with NCLT. 

 

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted 

to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, 

Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations issued by 

statutory authorities. 

 

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from December 21, 2023, within which the 

Scheme shall be submitted to NCLT. 

 

Kindly note, this Exchange letter should not be construed as approval under any other Act 

/Regulation/rule/bye laws (except as referred above) for which the Company may be required to obtain 

approval from other department(s) of the Exchange. The Company is requested to separately take up 

matter with the concerned departments for approval, if any. 

 

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each 

point of Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS > Issue 

> Scheme of arrangement > Reg 37 of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter to 

Compliance Status.  

 

Yours faithfully,  

For National Stock Exchange of India Limited  

  

Dipti Chinchkhede 

Senior Manager 

 

 

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following                                        

URL:https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist  

http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
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http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm
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1.

Particulars Yes* No*
1 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares? Yes
2 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities or Warrants? No
3 Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipts are issued? Yes
4 Whether the Listed Entity has any shares in locked-in? Yes
5 Whether any shares held by promoters are pledge or otherwise encumbered? Yes
6 Whether company has equity shares with differential voting rights? Yes

4. Declaration: The Listed entity is required to submit the following declaration to the extent of submission of information:-

Pe Shareholding Pattern under Regulation 31 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

 Name of Listed Entity:   Tata Motors Limited - Ordinary Shares
2. Scrip Code/Name of Scrip/Class of Security:  500570
3. Share Holding Pattern Filed under: Reg. 31(1)(a)/Reg. 31(1)(b)/Reg.31(1)(c)

* If the Listed Entity selects the option ‘No’ for the questions above, the columns for the partly paid up shares, Outstanding Convertible
Securities/Warrants, depository receipts, locked-in shares, No of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered by promoters, as applicable, shall
not be displayed at the time of dissemination on the Stock Exchange website. Also wherever there is ‘No’ declared by Listed Entity in above
table the values will be considered as ‘Zero’ by default on submission of the format of holding of specified securities.

a. If under 31(1)(b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending: June 30, 2023
b. If under 31(1)(c) then indicate date of allotment/extinguishment

Annexure 7a

Certified True Copy

Maloy Kumar Gupta
Company Secretary



(A) Promoter & Promoter Group 8 1540885009 0 0 1540885009 46.39 1540885009 3900294 1544785303 45.81 0 46.39 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 1540885009
(B) Public 3502400 1734879926 570 45725077 1780605573 53.61 1780605573 46949988 1827555561 54.19 0 53.61 0 0.00 NA NA 1766916461
(C) Non Promoter - Non Public 0 0 0 0.00 NA NA
(C1) Shares Underlying DRs 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
(C2) Shares Held By Employee Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0

Total 3502408 3275764935 570 45725077 3321490582 100.00 3321490582 50850282 3372340864 100.00 0 100.00 231333871 6.96 28062500 0.84 3307801470

Tata Motors Limited - Ordinary Shares
Table I - Summary Statement holding of specified securities

Category Category of shareholder
Nos. of 

sharehold
ers 

No. of fully 
paid up 
equity 

shares held

No. of 
Partly 

paid-up 
equity 
shares 
held

No. of 
shares 

underlyin
g 

Depositor
y Receipts

Total nos. 
shares held

Shareholding 
as a % of total 
no. of shares 
(calculated as 

per SCRR, 
1957)

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of 
securities

No of Voting Rights

Class eg: X Class eg: y Total

(XI)= (VII)+(X) As a 
% of (A+B+C2)

(XII)

Total as a 
% of 

(A+B+C)

No. of 
Shares 

Underlying 
Outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
Warrants)

Shareholding , as 
a % assuming full 

conversion of 
convertible 

securities ( as a 
percentage of 
diluted share 

capital)

Number of Locked in 
shares

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

(VI)
(VII) = 

(IV)+(V)+ (VI)
(VIII) As a % 
of (A+B+C2)

(IX) (X)(I) (II) (III) (IV) (V) (XIII) (XIV)

Number of Shares 
pledged or otherwise 

encumbered

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

Number of 
equity shares 

held in 
dematerialise

d form



1 Indian
(a) Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(b) Central Government / State Government(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(c) Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(d) Any Other (Specify) 8 1540885009 0 0 1540885009 46.39 1540885009 3900294 1544785303 45.81 0 46.39 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 1540885009

(i) Bodies Corporate 8 1540885009 0 0 1540885009 46.39 1540885009 3900294 1544785303 45.81 0 46.39 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 1540885009
Tata Sons Private Limited      Promoter Group 1 1452113801 0 0 1452113801 43.72 1452113801 3851128 1455964929 43.17 0 43.72 231333871 15.93 28062500 1.93 1452113801
Tata Industries Limited     Promoter Group 1 72203630 0 0 72203630 2.17 72203630 0 72203630 2.14 0 2.17 0 0.00 0 0.00 72203630
Tata Investment Corporation Limited    Promoter Group 1 11000000 0 0 11000000 0.33 11000000 0 11000000 0.33 0 0.33 0 0.00 0 0.00 11000000
Ewart Investments Limited    Promoter Group 1 3084542 0 0 3084542 0.09 3084542 44064 3128606 0.09 0 0.09 0 0.00 0 0.00 3084542
Tata Chemicals Limited      Promoter Group 1 1966294 0 0 1966294 0.06 1966294 0 1966294 0.06 0 0.06 0 0.00 0 0.00 1966294
The Tata Power Company Limited     Promoter Group 1 357159 0 0 357159 0.01 357159 5102 362261 0.01 0 0.01 0 0.00 0 0.00 357159
Tata Steel Limited      Promoter Group 1 100000 0 0 100000 0.00 100000 0 100000 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 100000
Simto Investment Company Limited       Promoter Group 1 59583 0 0 59583 0.00 59583 0 59583 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 59583
Tata Consumer Products Limited Promoter Group 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Sub Total (A)(i) 8 1540885009 0 0 1540885009 46.39 1540885009 3900294 1544785303 45.81 0 46.39 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 1540885009

(ii) Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(i) Sir Ratan Tata Trust
Mr. R.N. Tata
Mr. V. Srinivasan 
Mr. V. Singh
Mr. J.N. Tata
Mr. R.K. Krishna Kumar 
Mr. N.N. Tata
Mr. Jehangir H.C. Jehangir

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(ii)  Sir Dorabji Tata Trust
 Mr. R.N. Tata 
Mr. V. Srinivasan
Mr. V. Singh
Mr. R.K. Krishna Kumar 
Mr. Pramit Jhaveri

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(iii)  J R D Tata Trust
Mr. R.N. Tata
Mr. V. Srinivasan 
Mr. V. Singh 

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(iv)  Lady Tata Memorial Trust
 Mr. F.K. Kavarana
Dr. P.B. Desai
Dr. M. Chandy

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Sub Total (A)(ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Sub Total (A)(I + ii) 8 1540885009 0 0 1540885009 46.39 1540885009 3900294 1544785303 45.81 0 46.39 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 1540885009

2   Foreign

(a) Individuals (Non-Resident Individuals / Foreign Individuals) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(b) Government 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(c) Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(d) Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(e) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Total Shareholding Of Promoter And Promoter Group (A)= 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 8 1540885009 0 0 1540885009 46.39 1540885009 3900294 1544785303 45.81 0 46.39 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 1540885009

Tata Motors Limited - Ordinary Shares
Table II - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group

Category & Name of the shareholders Entity Type PAN
Nos. of 

sharehold
ers 

No. of fully 
paid up 

equity shares 
held

Partly 
paid-up 
equity 
shares 
held

No. of 
shares 

underlyin
g 

Depositor
y Receipts

Total nos. 
shares held

Shareholding 
% calculated 
as per SCRR, 

1957 As a % of 
(A+B+C2)

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of 
securities

No of Voting Rights

Class eg: X Class eg: y Total

Total as a 
% of Total 

Voting 
Rights

No. of Shares 
Underlying 

Outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
Warrants)

Shareholding , as 
a % assuming full 

conversion of 
convertible 

securities ( as a 
percentage of 
diluted share 

capital)

Number of Locked in 
shares

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

Number of Shares 
pledged or otherwise 

encumbered

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

Number of 
equity shares 

held in 
dematerialise

d form

(I) (II) (III) (IV) (V) (VI)
(VII) = (IV)+(V)+ 

(VI)
(VIII) As a % of 

(A+B+C2)
(IX) (X)

(XI)= (VII)+(X) As a 
% of (A+B+C2)

(XII) (XIII) (XIV)

Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.

Note :
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s)
(2) The term 'Encumbrance' has the same meaning as assigned under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

I I 



1   Institutions (Domestic)
(a) Mutual Fund 44 288658951 0 0 288658951 8.69 288658951 14654322 303313273 8.99 0 8.69 0 0 NA NA 288598911 0 0 0

Sbi Nifty 50 Etf  1 74759118 0 0 74759118 2.25 74759118 869993 75629111 2.24 0 2.25 0 0 NA NA 74759118 0 0 0
(b) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(c) Alternate Investment Funds 21 2881555 0 0 2881555 0.09 2881555 129746 3011301 0.09 0 0.09 0 0 NA NA 2881555 0 0 0
(d) Banks 47 1212339 0 0 1212339 0.04 1212339 17 1212356 0.04 0 0.04 0 0 NA NA 1028664 0 0 0
(e) Insurance Companies 34 263251667 0 0 263251667 7.93 263251667 499756 263751423 7.82 0 7.93 0 0 NA NA 263250867 0 0 7847859

Life Insurance Corporation Of India  1 168437256 0 0 168436456 5.07 168436456 0 168436456 4.99 0 5.07 0 0 NA NA 168436456 0 0 0
(f) Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 1 20970948 0 0 20970948 0.63 20970948 0 20970948 0.62 0 0.63 0 0 NA NA 20970948 0 0 0
(G) Asset Reconstruction Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(h) Sovereign Wealth Funds 2 2760004 0 0 2760004 0.08 2760004 965743 3725747 0.11 0 0.08 0 0 NA NA 2760004 0 0 0
(i) NBFCs registered with RBI 9 27190 0 0 27190 0.00 27190 231077 258267 0.01 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 27190 0 0 0
(j) Other Financial Institutions 2 1750 0 0 1750 0.00 1750 0 1750 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0 0 0 0
(k) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

Sub Total (B)(1) 160 579764404 0 0 579764404 17.45 579764404 16480661 596245065 17.68 0 17.45 0 0 NA NA 579518139 0 0 0
2   Institutions (Foreign)
(a) Foreign Direct Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(b) Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(c) Sovereign Wealth Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(d) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category I 698 578055341 0 0 578055341 17.40 578055341 9466373 587521714 17.42 0 17.40 0 0 NA NA 578055341 0 0 0

Government Of Singapore  1 35370975 0 0 35370975 1.06 35370975 770408 36141383 1.07 0 1.06 0 0 NA NA 35370975 0 0 0
(e) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category II 53 10649207 0 0 10649207 0.32 10649207 12168 10661375 0.32 0 0.32 0 0 NA NA 10649207 0 0 0

(f)
Overseas Depositories(holding DRs) (balancing 
figure) 3 0 0 45725077 45725077 1.38 45725077 0 45725077 1.36 0 1.38 0 0 NA NA 45704827 0 0 0
Citibank N.A. New York, Nyadr Department  1 0 0 45704827 45704827 1.38 45704827 0 45704827 1.36 0 1.38 0 0 NA NA 45704827 0 0 0

(g) Any Other (Specify) 35 26340 0 0 26340 0.00 26340 0 26340 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 2210 0 0 0
Foreign Institutional Investors 31 24290 0 0 24290 0.00 24290 0 24290 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 350 0 0 0
Foreign Bank 4 2050 0 0 2050 0.00 2050 0 2050 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 1860 0 0 0
Sub Total (B)(2) 789 588730888 0 45725077 634455965 19.10 634455965 9478541 643934506 19.09 0 19.10 0 0 NA NA 634411585 0 0 0

3 Central Government/ State Government(s)
(a) Central Government / President of India 1 16500 0 0 16500 0.00 16500 4031 20531 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 16500 0 0 0
(b) State Government / Governor 6 2011950 0 0 2011950 0.06 2011950 0 2011950 0.06 0 0.06 0 0 NA NA 1973945 0 0 0

(C)
Shareholding by Companies or Bodies Corporate 
where Central / State Government is a promoter 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 NA NA 0
Sub Total (B)(3) 7 2028450 0 0 2028450 0.06 2028450 4031 2032481 0.06 0 0.06 0 0 NA NA 1990445 0 0 0

4   Non-Institutions 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(a) Associate companies / Subsidiaries 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(b)
Directors and their relatives (excluding 
Independent Directors and nominee Directors) 4 263582 0 0 263582 0.01 263582 0 263582 0.01 0 0.01 0 0 NA NA 263582 0 0 0

(C) Key Managerial Personnel 1 103820 0 0 103820 0.00 103820 0 103820 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 103820 0 0 0

(D)

Relatives of promoters (other than 'immediate 
relatives' of promoters disclosed under 
'Promoter and Promoter Group' category) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(E)

Trusts where any person belonging to 'Promoter 
and Promoter Group' category is 
'trustee','beneficiary', or 'author of the trust'' 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(f) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 1 5579343 0 0 5579343 0.17 5579343 2070 5581413 0.17 0 0.17 0 0 NA NA 5579343 0 0 0

(g)
i. Resident Individual holding nominal share
capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs. 3441898 416715048 570 0 416715618 12.55 416715618 12320336 429035954 12.72 0 12.55 0 0 NA NA 405505488 0 0 0

(h)
ii. Resident individual holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs. 49 87873017 0 0 87873017 2.65 87873017 4706436 92579453 2.75 0 2.65 0 0 NA NA 87764652 0 0 0
Rekha Rakesh Jhunjhunwala  52256000 0 0 52256000 1.57 52256000 977500 53233500 1.58 0 1.57 0 0 NA NA 52256000 0 0 0

(i) Non Resident Indians (NRIs) 34318 23797715 0 0 23797715 0.72 23797715 775572 24573287 0.73 0 0.72 0 0 NA NA 21982483 0 0 0

Tata Motors Limited - Ordinary Shares
Table III - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Public shareholder

Category & Name of the shareholders PAN
Nos. of 

sharehold
ers 

No. of fully 
paid up 
equity 

shares held

Partly 
paid-up 
equity 
shares 
held

No. of 
shares 

underlying 
Depository 

Receipts

Total nos. 
shares held

Shareholding % 
calculated as 

per SCRR, 1957 
As a % of 
(A+B+C2)

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of 
securities

No of Voting Rights

Class eg: X Class eg: y

Number of 
equity shares 

held in 
dematerialise

d form

Sub-categorization of shares

Shareholding(No. of shares) 
under

Sub-
category(

i)

Sub-
category(

ii)

Sub-
category(

iii)

(I) (II) (III) (IV)

Number of Shares 
pledged or otherwise 

encumbered

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)Total

Total as a 
% of Total 

Voting 
Rights

No. of Shares 
Underlying 

Outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
Warrants)

Shareholding , as a 
% assuming full 
conversion of 

convertible 
securities ( as a 
percentage of 
diluted share 

capital)

Number of Locked in 
shares

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

(XV)(X)
(XI)= (VII)+(X) As a 

% of (A+B+C2)
(XII) (XIII) (XIV)(V) (VI)

(VII) = 
(IV)+(V)+ (VI)

(VIII) As a % of
(A+B+C2)

(IX)



(j) Foreign Nationals 11 22160 0 0 22160 0.00 22160 15 22175 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 22160 0 0 0
(k) Foreign Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(l) Bodies Corporate 3707 16423217 0 0 16423217 0.49 16423217 2070142 18493359 0.55 0 0.49 0 0 NA NA 16211272 0 0 0
(m) Any Other (Specify) 21455 13578282 0 0 13578282 0.41 13578282 1112184 14690466 0.44 0 0.41 0 0 NA NA 13563492 0 0 0

Trusts 101 2846532 0 0 2846532 0.09 2846532 44953 2891485 0.09 0 0.09 0 0 NA NA 2844782 0 0 0
Body Corp-Ltd Liability Partnership 309 1780601 0 0 1780601 0.05 1780601 296842 2077443 0.06 0 0.05 0 0 NA NA 1780601 0 0 0
Hindu Undivided Family 21012 8887984 0 0 8887984 0.27 8887984 711459 9599443 0.28 0 0.27 0 0 NA NA 8874944 0 0 0
Unclaimed Shares 1 920 0 0 920 0.00 920 0 920 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 920 0 0 0
Clearing Member 31 62045 0 0 62045 0.00 62045 58930 120975 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 62045 0 0 0
Other Directors / Relatives 1 200 0 0 200 0.00 200 0 200 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 200 0 0 0
Sub Total (B)(4) 3501444 564356184 570 0 564356754 16.99 564356754 20986755 585343509 17.36 0 16.99 0 0 NA NA 550996292 0 0 0
Total Public Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3)+b(4) 3502400 1734879926 570 45725077 1780605573 53.61 1780605573 46949988 1827555561 54.19 0 53.61 0 0 NA NA 1766916461 0 0 0

No. of shareholders No. of Shares %
35 -Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited 7847859 0.24

Details of the shareholders acting as persons in Concert including their Shareholding (No. and %):

Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.
No. of shareholders No. of Shares
1 920

Note :
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s). 
(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the names of the shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of shares of the listed entity. Column no.(XIII)is not applicable in the above format.

(iii) Shareholders acting as persons in concert with promoters.

(3) W.r.t. the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available and the balance to be disclosed as held by custodian.
(4) Categorization and disclosure of each shareholder category should be carried out in the order prescribed in the above format. If a shareholder is falling under more than one category, then the same shall be classified in the category falling first in the order prescribed in the above 
(5) Sub-categorization of shares under column no.(XV) will be based on shareholding(no. of shares)under the following sub-categories:
(i) Shareholder who are represented by a nominee Director on the board of the listed entity or have the right to nominate a representative(i.e. Director)on the board of the listed entity.
(ii) Shareholder who have entered into shareholder agreement with the listed entity.
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1 Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

2

Employee Benefit Trust / Employee Welfare Trust under SEBI 
(Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
Total Non-Promoter- Non Public Shareholding (C)= 
(C)(1)+(C)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

Tata Motors Limited - Ordinary Shares
Table IV - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Non Promoter- Non Public shareholder

Category & Name of the shareholders PAN
Nos. of 

sharehold
ers 

No. of 
fully paid 
up equity 

shares 
held

Partly 
paid-up 
equity 
shares 
held

No. of 
shares 

underlyin
g 

Depositor
y Receipts

Total nos. 
shares held

Shareholding % 
calculated as 

per SCRR, 1957 
As a % of 
(A+B+C2)

Number of Voting Rights held in each class 
of securities

No of Voting Rights

Class eg: X Class eg: y Total

Total as a 
% of 

(A+B+C)

No. of Shares 
Underlying 

Outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
Warrants)

Shareholding , as a 
% assuming full 
conversion of 

convertible 
securities ( as a 
percentage of 
diluted share 

capital)

Number of Locked in 
shares

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

Number of Shares 
pledged or otherwise 

encumbered

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

Number 
of equity 

shares 
held in 

demateria
lised form

 (I) (II) (III) (IV) (V) (VI)
(VII) = 

(IV)+(V)+ (VI)
(VIII) As a % of 

(A+B+C2)
(IX) (X)

(XI)= (VII)+(X) As a 
% of (A+B+C2)

(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the names of the shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of shares of the listed entity. Column no.(XIII)is not applicable in the above format.
(3) W.r.t. the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available.

(XII) (XIII) (XIV)

Note :
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s). 



Name PAN Nationality Name PAN Nationality
Number of 

shares
Shareholding as a % of total no. of shares (calculated 

as per SCRR, 1957) As a % of (A+B+C2)

Table V- Statement showing details of significant beneficial owners

Sr .No Details of the significant beneficial owner (I) Details of the registered owner (II) Particulars of the shares in which significant beneficial interest is held 
by the beneficial owner (III)

Date    of creation / acquisition of significant 
beneficial interest (IV)

NIL

Note: Tata Sons Private Limited ('TSPL') being core investment company as an investment vehicle is exempt from the Companies (Significant Beneficial Owners) Rules, 2018, on the investment made by TSPL.



Board approved limits Limits utilized
As on shareholding date [30.06.2023] 35% 19.82%
As on the end of previous 1st quarter 35% 17.65%
As on the end of previous 2nd quarter 35% 18.93%
As on the end of previous 3rd quarter 35% 19.78%
As on the end of previous 4th quarter 35% 19.41%

Annexure B

Table VI - Statement showing foreign ownership limits



1.

Particulars Yes* No*
1 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares? No
2 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities or Warrants? No
3 Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipts are issued? No
4 Whether the Listed Entity has any shares in locked-in? No
5 Whether any shares held by promoters are pledge or otherwise encumbered? No
6 Whether company has equity shares with differential voting rights? No

* If the Listed Entity selects the option ‘No’ for the questions above, the columns for the partly paid up shares, Outstanding Convertible
Securities/Warrants, depository receipts, locked-in shares, No of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered by promoters, as applicable, shall
not be displayed at the time of dissemination on the Stock Exchange website. Also wherever there is ‘No’ declared by Listed Entity in above
table the values will be considered as ‘Zero’ by default on submission of the format of holding of specified securities.

a. If under 31(1)(b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending: June 30, 2023
b. If under 31(1)(c) then indicate date of allotment/extinguishment

4. Declaration: The Listed entity is required to submit the following declaration to the extent of submission of information:-

Pre Shareholding Pattern under Regulation 31 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

 Name of Listed Entity:   Tata Motors Limited - 'A' Ordinary Shares
2. Scrip Code/Name of Scrip/Class of Security:  570001
3. Share Holding Pattern Filed under: Reg. 31(1)(a)/Reg. 31(1)(b)/Reg.31(1)(c)

Annexure 7B



(A) Promoter & Promoter Group 3 39002948 0 0 39002948 7.67 3900294 0 3900294 7.67 0 7.67 0 0 0 0 39002948
(B) Public 463963 469499948 0 0 469499948 92.33 46949988 0 46949988 92.33 0 92.33 0 0 NA NA 469387978
(C) Non Promoter - Non Public 0 0 0 0 NA NA
(C1) Shares Underlying DRs 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(C2) Shares Held By Employee Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

Total 463966 508502896 0 0 508502896 100.00 50850282 0 50850282 100.00 0 100.00 0 0 0 0 508390926

(VI)
(VII) =

(IV)+(V)+ (VI)
(VIII) As a % of 

(A+B+C2)
(IX)(I) (II) (III) (IV) (V) (XIII) (XIV)

Number of Shares 
pledged or otherwise 

encumbered

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

Number of 
equity 

shares held 
in 

dematerialis
ed form

(X)
(XI)= (VII)+(X) As 
a % of (A+B+C2)

(XII)

Total as a 
% of 

(A+B+C)

No. of 
Shares 

Underlying 
Outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
Warrants)

Shareholding , 
as a % assuming 
full conversion 
of convertible 

securities ( as a 
percentage of 
diluted share 

capital)

Number of Locked in 
shares

No. (a)

As a % of 
total 

Shares 
held(b)

Tata Motors Limited - 'A' Ordinary Shares
Table I - Summary Statement holding of specified securities

Category Category of shareholder
Nos. of 

sharehold
ers 

No. of fully 
paid up 
equity 

shares held

No. of 
Partly 

paid-up 
equity 
shares 
held

No. of 
shares 

underlyin
g 

Depositor
y Receipts

Total nos. 
shares held

Shareholding 
as a % of total 
no. of shares 
(calculated as 

per SCRR, 
1957)

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of 
securities

No of Voting Rights

Class eg: X Class eg: y Total



1   Indian
(a) Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
(b) Central Government / State Government(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
(c) Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
(d) Any Other (Specify) 3 39002948 0 0 39002948 7.67 3900294 0 3900294 7.67 0 7.67 0 0 0 0 39002948

Bodies Corporate 3 39002948 0 0 39002948 7.67 3900294 0 3900294 7.67 0 7.67 0 0 0 0 39002948
Tata Sons Private Limited    Promoter Group 1 38511281 0 0 38511281 7.57 3851128 0 3851128 7.57 0 7.57 0 0 0 0 38511281
Ewart Investments Limited    Promoter Group 1 440645 0 0 440645 0.09 44064 0 44064 0.09 0 0.09 0 0 0 0 440645
The Tata Power Company Limited    Promoter Group ` 1 51022 0 0 51022 0.01 5102 0 5102 0.01 0 0.01 0 0 0 0 51022
Sub Total (A)(1) 3 39002948 0 0 39002948 7.67 3900294 0 3900294 7.67 0 7.67 0 0 0 0 39002948

2   Foreign

(a) Individuals (Non-Resident Individuals / Foreign Individuals) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
(b) Government 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
(c) Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
(d) Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
(e) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding Of Promoter And Promoter Group (A)= 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 3 39002948 0 0 39002948 7.67 3900294 0 3900294 7.67 0 7.67 0 0 0 0 39002948

(XIV)

Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.

Note :
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s)
(2) The term 'Encumbrance' has the same meaning as assigned under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.
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Tata Motors Limited - 'A' Ordinary Shares
Table II - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group

Category & Name of the shareholders Entity Type PAN
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(II)

1   Institutions (Domestic)
(a) Mutual Fund 14 146543228 0 0 146543228 28.82 14654322 0 14654322 28.82 0 28.82 0 0 NA NA 146543228 0 0 0

Icici Prudential Equity & Debt Fund   1 98377219 0 0 98377219 19.35 9837721 0 9837721 19.35 0 19.35 0 0 NA NA 98377219 0 0 0
Sbi Long Term Equity Fund 1 8699932 0 0 8699932 1.71 869993 0 869993 1.71 0 1.71 0 0 NA NA 8699932 0 0 0
Franklin India Flexi Cap Fund  1 7700000 0 0 7700000 1.51 770000 0 770000 1.51 0 1.51 0 0 NA NA 7700000 0 0 0
Uti - Hybrid Equity Fund   1 7528050 0 0 7528050 1.48 752805 0 752805 1.48 0 1.48 0 0 NA NA 7528050 0 0 0

(b) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(c) Alternate Investment Funds 8 1297465 0 0 1297465 0.26 129746 0 129746 0.26 0 0.26 0 0 NA NA 1297465 0 0 0
(d) Banks 2 170 0 0 170 0.00 17 0 17 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 170 0 0 0
(e) Insurance Companies 5 4997565 0 0 4997565 0.98 499756 0 499756 0.98 0 0.98 0 0 NA NA 4997565 0 0 0
(f) Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(G) Asset Reconstruction Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(h) Sovereign Wealth Funds 2 9657431 0 0 9657431 1.90 965743 0 965743 1.90 0 1.90 0 0 NA NA 9657431 0 0 0

Post Office Life Insurance Fund  1 6971870 0 0 6971870 1.37 697187 0 697187 1.37 0 1.37 0 0 NA NA 6971870
(i) NBFCs registered with RBI 5 2310770 0 0 2310770 0.45 231077 0 231077 0.45 0 0.45 0 0 NA NA 2310770 0 0 0
(j) Other Financial Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(k) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

Sub Total (B)(1) 36 164806629 0 0 164806629 32.41 16480661 0 16480661 32.41 0 32.41 0 0 NA NA 164806629 0 0 0
2   Institutions (Foreign)
(a) Foreign Direct Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(b) Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(c) Sovereign Wealth Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(d) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category I 101 94663730 0 0 94663730 18.62 9466373 0 9466373 18.62 0 18.62 0 0 NA NA 94663730 0 0 0

eries Of Vanguard International Equity Index FundsVanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund, A S    1 16637869 0 0 16637869 3.27 1663786 0 1663786 3.27 0 3.27 0 0 NA NA 16637869
Government Pension Fund Global  1 15524589 0 0 15524589 3.05 1552458 0 1552458 3.05 0 3.05 0 0 NA NA 15524589
Government Of Singapore    1 7704084 0 0 7704084 1.52 770408 0 770408 1.52 0 1.52 0 0 NA NA 7704084
Franklin Templeton Investment Funds    1 7627359 0 0 7627359 1.50 762735 0 762735 1.50 0 1.50 0 0 NA NA 7627359

(e) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category II 4 121688 0 0 121688 0.02 12168 0 12168 0.02 0 0.02 0 0 NA NA 121688 0 0 0

(f)
Overseas Depositories(holding DRs) (balancing 
figure) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(g) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
Sub Total (B)(2) 105 94785418 0 0 94785418 18.64 9478541 0 9478541 18.64 0 18.64 0 0 NA NA 94785418 0 0 0

3   Central Government/ State Government(s)
(a) Central Government / President of India 1 40317 0 0 40317 0.01 4031 0 4031 0.01 0 0.01 0 0 NA NA 40317 0 0 0
(b) State Government / Governor 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(C)

Shareholding by Companies or Bodies 
Corporate where Central / State Government is 
a promoter 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
Sub Total (B)(3) 1 40317 0 0 40317 0.01 4031 0 4031 0.01 0 0.01 0 0 NA NA 40317 0 0 0

4   Non-Institutions 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(a) Associate companies / Subsidiaries 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(b)
Directors and their relatives (excluding 
Independent Directors and nominee Directors) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(C) Key Managerial Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(D)

Relatives of promoters (other than 'immediate 
relatives' of promoters disclosed under 
'Promoter and Promoter Group' category) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
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Tata Motors Limited - 'A' Ordinary Shares
Table III - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Public shareholder
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(E)

Trusts where any person belonging to 
'Promoter and Promoter Group' category is 
'trustee','beneficiary', or 'author of the trust'' 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(f) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 1 20702 0 0 20702 0.00 2070 0 2070 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 20702 0 0 0

(g)
i. Resident Individual holding nominal share 
capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs. 450978 123203361 0 0 123203361 24.23 12320336 0 12320336 24.23 0 24.23 0 0 NA NA 123104525 0 0 0

(h)
ii. Resident individual holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs. 115 47064368 0 0 47064368 9.26 4706436 0 4706436 9.26 0 9.26 0 0 NA NA 47064368 0 0 0
Rekha Rakesh Jhunjhunwala                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 AAEPJ2191B 9775000 0 0 9775000 1.92 977500 0 977500 1.92 0 1.92 0 0 NA NA 9775000

(i) Non Resident Indians (NRIs) 5407 7755721 0 0 7755721 1.53 775572 0 775572 1.53 0 1.53 0 0 NA NA 7752772 0 0 0
(j) Foreign Nationals 1 150 0 0 150 0.00 15 0 15 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 150 0 0 0
(k) Foreign Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(l) Bodies Corporate 1347 20701420 0 0 20701420 4.07 2070142 0 2070142 4.07 0 4.07 0 0 NA NA 20691235 0 0 0
(m) Any Other (Specify) 5972 11121862 0 0 11121862 2.19 1112184 0 1112184 2.19 0 2.19 0 0 NA NA 11121862 0 0 0

Trusts 22 449533 0 0 449533 0.09 44953 0 44953 0.09 0 0.09 0 0 NA NA 449533 0 0 0
Body Corp-Ltd Liability Partnership 147 2968426 0 0 2968426 0.58 296842 0 296842 0.58 0 0.58 0 0 NA NA 2968426 0 0 0
Hindu Undivided Family 5785 7114595 0 0 7114595 1.40 711459 0 711459 1.40 0 1.40 0 0 NA NA 7114595 0 0 0
Clearing Member 18 589308 0 0 589308 0.12 58930 0 58930 0.12 0 0.12 0 0 NA NA 589308 0 0 0
Sub Total (B)(4) 463821 209867584 0 0 209867584 41.27 20986755 0 20986755 41.27 0 41.27 0 0 NA NA 209755614 0 0 0
Total Public Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3)+b(4) 463963 469499948 0 0 469499948 92.33 46949988 0 46949988 92.33 0 92.33 0 0 NA NA 469387978 0 0 0

No. of shareholders No. of Shares %
0

(3) W.r.t. the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available and the balance to be disclosed as held by custodian.
(4) Categorization and disclosure of each shareholder category should be carried out in the order prescribed in the above format. If a shareholder is falling under more than one category, then the same shall be classified in the category falling first in the order prescribed in the 
(5) Sub-categorization of shares under column no.(XV) will be based on shareholding(no. of shares)under the following sub-categories:
(i) Shareholder who are represented by a nominee Director on the board of the listed entity or have the right to nominate a representative(i.e. Director)on the board of the listed entity.
(ii) Shareholder who have entered into shareholder agreement with the listed entity.

0 0

Note :
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s). 
(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the names of the shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of shares of the listed entity. Column no.(XIII)is not applicable in the above format.

Details of the shareholders acting as persons in Concert including their Shareholding (No. and %):

Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.
No. of shareholders No. of Shares



1 Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0

2

Employee Benefit Trust / Employee Welfare Trust under 
SEBI (Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Total Non-Promoter- Non Public Shareholding (C)= 
(C)(1)+(C)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0

(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the names of the shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of shares of the listed entity. Column no.(XIII)is not applicable in the above format.
(3) W.r.t. the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available.

(XII) (XIII) (XIV)

Note :
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s). 
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Tata Motors Limited - 'A' Ordinary Shares
Table IV - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Non Promoter- Non Public shareholder

Category & Name of the shareholders PAN
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Name PAN Nationality Name PAN Nationality
Number of 

shares
Shareholding as a % of total no. of shares (calculated 

as per SCRR, 1957) As a % of (A+B+C2)

Table V- Statement showing details of significant beneficial owners

Sr .No Details of the significant beneficial owner (I) Details of the registered owner (II) Particulars of the shares in which significant beneficial interest is held 
by the beneficial owner (III)

Date    of creation / acquisition of significant 
beneficial interest (IV)

Nil

Tata Sons Private Limited ('TSPL') being core investment company as an investment vehicle is exempt from the Companies (Significant Beneficial Owners) Rules, 2018, on the investment made by TSPL.



Board approved limits Limits utilized
As on shareholding date [30.06.2023] 75% 20.17%
As on the end of previous 1st quarter 75% 18.41%
As on the end of previous 2nd quarter 75% 17.89%
As on the end of previous 3rd quarter 75% 18.67%
As on the end of previous 4th quarter 75% 18.33%

Annexure B

Table VI - Statement showing foreign ownership limits



Anenxure 7`

1.

Particulars Yes* No*
1 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares? Yes
2 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities or Warrants? No
3 Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipts are issued? Yes
4 Whether the Listed Entity has any shares in locked‐in? Yes
5 Whether any shares held by promoters are pledge or otherwise encumbered? Yes
6 Whether company has equity shares with differential voting rights? Yes

* If the Listed Entity selects the option ‘No’ for the questions above, the columns for the partly paid up shares, Outstanding Convertible
Securities/Warrants, depository receipts, locked‐in shares, No of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered by promoters, as applicable, shall
not be displayed at the time of dissemination on the Stock Exchange website. Also wherever there is ‘No’ declared by Listed Entity in above
table the values will be considered as ‘Zero’ by default on submission of the format of holding of specified securities.

GENERATED ON :04/07/2023                NSDL : 30/06/2023               CDSL :30/06/2023 

a. If under 31(1)(b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending: June 30, 2023
b. If under 31(1)(c) then indicate date of allotment/extinguishment

4.  Declaration: The Listed entity is required to submit the following declaration to the extent of submission of information:‐

POST Shareholding Pattern under Regulation 31 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

 Name of Listed Entity:   Tata Motors Limited ‐ Ordinary Shares
2.  Scrip Code/Name of Scrip/Class of Security:  500570
3.  Share Holding Pattern Filed under: Reg. 31(1)(a)/Reg. 31(1)(b)/Reg.31(1)(c) 



No of Voting 
Rights

(A) Promoter & Promoter Group 8 1568187073 0 0 1568187073 42.64 1568187073 42.64 0 42.64 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 1540885009
(B) Public 3502400 2063556233 570 45725077* 2109281310 57.36 2109281310 57.36 0 53.61 0 0.00 NA NA 1766916461
(C) Non Promoter ‐ Non Public 0 0 0.00 NA NA
(C1) Shares Underlying DRs 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
(C2) Shares Held By Employee Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0

Total 3502408 3631743306 570 45725077* 3677468383 100.00 3677468383 100.00 0 100.00 231333871 6.96 28062500 0.84 3307801470

*The Company has voluntary delisted the American Depositary Shares (the “ADSs”), representing Ordinary Shares of the Company, from the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”), effective close of trading on the NYSE on January 23, 2023. As a
consequence of the delisting becoming effective, the ADSs stopped trading on NYSE and no over‐the‐counter market trading of the ADSs in the United States was allowed due to regulatory restrictions under Indian law.

The ADS holders could surrender their ADSs to the Depositary in exchange for the underlying Ordinary Shares of the Company at any time on or prior to July 24, 2023. The Depositary will sell the underlying Ordinary Shares on the Indian stock 
exchanges held on deposit upon the terms described in the notice of termination of ADS facility as provided for in the Deposit Agreement.

Since the Scheme would become effective on a date subsequent to the sale of underlying shares by the Depository which will be held by other classes of Shareholders, there will be no impact on the Sheme of Arrangement under consideration in 
this regard.
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Tata Motors Limited ‐ Ordinary Shares
Table I ‐ Summary Statement holding of specified securities
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1 Indian

(a)
Individuals / Hindu Undivided 
Family 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(b)
Central Government / State 
Government(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(c) Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(d) Any Other (Specify) 8 1568187073 0 0 1568187073 42.64 1568187073 42.64 0 42.64 231333871 14.75 28062500 1.79 ############
(i) Bodies Corporate 8 1568187073 0 0 1568187073 42.64 1568187073 42.64 0 42.64 231333871 14.75 28062500 1.79 ############

Tata Sons Private Limited             Promoter Group 1 1479071698 0 0 1479071698 40.22 1479071698 40.22 0 40.22 231333871 15.64 28062500 1.90 1479071698
Tata Industries Limited Promoter Group 1 72203630 0 0 72203630 1.96 72203630 1.96 0 1.96 0 0.00 0 0.00 72203630
Tata Investment Corporation 
Limited Promoter Group 1 11000000 0 0 11000000 0.30 11000000 0.30 0 0.30 0 0.00 0 0.00 11000000
Ewart Investments Limited          Promoter Group 1 3392994 0 0 3392994 0.09 3392994 0.09 0 0.09 0 0.00 0 0.00 3392994
Tata Chemicals Limited                Promoter Group 1 1966294 0 0 1966294 0.05 1966294 0.05 0 0.05 0 0.00 0 0.00 1966294
The Tata Power Company 
Limited Promoter Group 1 392874 0 0 392874 0.01 392874 0.01 0 0.01 0 0.00 0 0.00 392874
Tata Steel Limited Promoter Group 1 100000 0 0 100000 0.00 100000 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 100000
Simto Investment Company 
Limited Promoter Group 1 59583 0 0 59583 0.00 59583 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 59583
Tata Consumer Products 
Limited Promoter Group 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Sub Total (A)(i) 8 1,56,81,87,073 0 0 1,56,81,87,073 42.64 1,56,81,87,073 42.64 0 42.64 231333871 14.75 28062500 1.79 ############

(ii) Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(i) Sir Ratan Tata Trust
Mr. R.N. Tata
Mr. V. Srinivasan
Mr. V. Singh
Mr. J.N. Tata
Mr. R.K. Krishna Kumar
Mr. N.N. Tata
Mr. Jehangir H.C. Jehangir

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
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(ii) Sir Dorabji Tata Trust
Mr. R.N. Tata
Mr. V. Srinivasan
Mr. V. Singh
Mr. R.K. Krishna Kumar
Mr. Pramit Jhaveri

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(iii) J R D Tata Trust
Mr. R.N. Tata
Mr. V. Srinivasan
Mr. V. Singh

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(iv) Lady Tata Memorial Trust
Mr. F.K. Kavarana
Dr. P.B. Desai
Dr. M. Chandy

Promoter Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Sub Total (A)(ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Sub Total (A)(I + ii) 8 1568187073 0 0 1568187073 42.64 1568187073 42.64 0 42.64 231333871 14.75 28062500 1.79 1568187073

2   Foreign

(a)

Individuals (Non‐Resident 
Individuals / Foreign 
Individuals) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(b) Government 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(c) Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(d) Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(e) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Total Shareholding Of 
Promoter And Promoter 
Group (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 8 1,56,81,87,073 0 0 1,56,81,87,073 46.39 1,56,81,87,073 42.64 0 46.39 231333871 15.01 28062500 1.82 ############

No
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s)
(2) The term 'Encumbrance' has the same meaning as assigned under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed 



No of Voting 
Rights

1   Institutions (Domestic)
(a) Mutual Fund 44 391239211 0 0 391239211 10.64 391239211 10.64 0 10.64 0 0 NA NA 391179171 0 0 0
(b) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(c) Alternate Investment Funds 21 3789781 0 0 3789781 0.10 3789781 0.10 0 0.10 0 0 NA NA 3789781 0 0 0
(d) Banks 47 1212458 0 0 1212458 0.03 1212458 0.03 0 0.03 0 0 NA NA 1028783 0 0 0
(e) Insurance Companies 34 266749963 0 0 266749963 7.25 266749963 7.25 0 7.25 0 0 NA NA 266749163 0 0 7847859
(f) Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 1 20970948 0 0 20970948 0.57 20970948 0.57 0 0.57 0 0 NA NA 20970948 0 0 0
(G) Asset Reconstruction Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(h) Sovereign Wealth Funds 2 9520206 0 0 9520206 0.26 9520206 0.26 0 0.26 0 0 NA NA 9520206 0 0 0
(i) NBFCs registered with RBI 9 1644730 0 0 1644730 0.04 1644730 0.04 0 0.04 0 0 NA NA 1644730 0 0 0
(j) Other Financial Institutions 2 1750 0 0 1750 0.00 1750 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0 0 0 0
(k) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

Sub Total (B)(1) 160 695129047 0 0 695129047 18.90 695129047 18.90 0 18.90 0 0 NA NA 694882782 0 0 0
2   Institutions (Foreign) 0.00
(a) Foreign Direct Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(b) Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(c) Sovereign Wealth Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(d) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category I 698 644319952 0 0 644319952 17.52 644319952 17.52 0 17.52 0 0 NA NA 644319952 0 0 0
(e) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category II 53 10734389 0 0 10734389 0.29 10734389 0.29 0 0.29 0 0 NA NA 10734389 0 0 0

(f)
Overseas Depositories(holding DRs) 
(balancing figure) 3 0 0 45725077 45725077 1.24 45725077 1.24 0 1.24 0 0 NA NA 45704827 0 0 0

(g) Any Other (Specify) 35 26340 0 0 26340 0.00 26340 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 2210 0 0 0
Foreign Institutional Investors 31 24290 0 0 24290 0.00 24290 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 350 0 0 0
Foreign Bank 4 2050 0 0 2050 0.00 2050 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 1860 0 0 0
Sub Total (B)(2) 789 655107021 0 45725077 700832098 19.06 700832098 19.06 0 19.06 0 0 NA NA 700763588 0 0 0

3
Central Government/ State 
Government(s) 0.00

(a) Central Government / President of  1 44722 0 0 44722 0.00 44722 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 16500 0 0 0
(b) State Government / Governor 6 2011950 0 0 2011950 0.05 2011950 0.05 0 0.05 0 0 NA NA 1973945 0 0 0

(C)

Shareholding by Companies or Bodies 
Corporate where Central / State 
Government is a promoter 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
Sub Total (B)(3) 7 2056672 0 0 2056672 0.06 2056672 0.06 0 0.06 0 0 NA NA 1990445 0 0 0

4   Non‐Institutions 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(a) Associate companies / Subsidiaries 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(b)

Directors and their relatives (excluding 
Independent Directors and nominee 
Directors) 4 263582 0 0 263582 0.01 263582 0.01 0 0.01 0 0 NA NA 263582 0 0 0

(C) Key Managerial Personnel 1 103820 0 0 103820 0.00 103820 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 103820 0 0 0
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(D)

Relatives of promoters (other than 
'immediate relatives' of promoters 
disclosed under 'Promoter and 
Promoter Group' category) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(E)

Trusts where any person belonging to 
'Promoter and Promoter Group' 
category is 'trustee','beneficiary', or 
'author of the trust'' 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(f)
Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF) 1 5593834 0 0 5593834 0.15 5593834 0.15 0 0.15 0 0 NA NA 5593834 0 0 0

(g)
i. Resident Individual holding nominal 
share capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs. 3441898 502957401 570 0 502957401 13.68 502957971 13.68 0 13.68 0 0 NA NA 491747841 0 0 0

(h)
ii. Resident individual holding nominal 
share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs. 49 120818075 0 0 120818075 3.29 120818075 3.29 0 3.29 0 0 NA NA 120709710 0 0 0

(i) Non Resident Indians (NRIs) 34318 29226720 0 0 29226720 0.79 29226720 0.79 0 0.79 0 0 NA NA 27411488 0 0 0
(j) Foreign Nationals 11 22265 0 0 22265 0.00 22265 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 22265 0 0 0
(k) Foreign Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
(l) Bodies Corporate 3707 30914211 0 0 30914211 0.84 30914211 0.84 0 0.84 0 0 NA NA 30702266 0 0 0
(m) Any Other (Specify) 21455 21363585 0 0 21363585 0.58 21363585 0.58 0 0.58 0 0 NA NA 21348795 0 0 0

Trusts 101 3161205 0 0 3161205 0.09 3161205 0.09 0 0.09 0 0 NA NA 3159455 0 0 0
Body Corp‐Ltd Liability Partnership 309 3858499 0 0 3858499 0.10 3858499 0.10 0 0.10 0 0 NA NA 3858499 0 0 0
Hindu Undivided Family 21012 13868201 0 0 13868201 0.38 13868201 0.38 0 0.38 0 0 NA NA 13855161 0 0 0
Unclaimed Shares 1 920 0 0 920 0.00 920 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 920 0 0 0
Clearing Member 31 474561 0 0 474561 0.01 474561 0.01 0 0.01 0 0 NA NA 474561 0 0 0
Other Directors / Relatives 1 200 0 0 200 0.00 200 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 200 0 0 0
Sub Total (B)(4) 3501444 711263493 570 0 711263493 19.34 711264063 19.34 0 19.34 0 0 NA NA 697903601 0 0 0
Total Public Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3)+b(4) 3502400 2063556233 570 45725077 2109281310 57.36 2109281310 57.36 0 57.36 0 0 NA NA 2095540416 0 0 0



1 Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

2

Employee Benefit Trust / Employee Welfare Trust under 
SEBI (Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0
Total Non‐Promoter‐ Non Public Shareholding (C)= 
(C)(1)+(C)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0 NA NA 0

(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the names of the shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of shares of the listed entity. Column no.(XIII)is not applicable in the above format.
(3) W.r.t. the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available.

(XII) (XIII) (XIV)

Note 
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s). 
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Name PAN Nationality Name PAN Nationality Number of 
shares

Shareholding as a % of total no. of shares (calculated 
as per SCRR, 1957) As a % of (A+B+C2)

NIL

Table V- Statement showing details of significant beneficial owners

Sr .No Details of the significant beneficial owner (I) Details of the registered owner (II) Particulars of the shares in which significant beneficial interest is held 
by the beneficial owner (III)

Date    of creation / acquisition of significant 
beneficial interest (IV)



Board approved limits Limits utilized
As on shareholding date [30.06.2023] 35% 19.82%
As on the end of previous 1st quarter 35% 17.65%
As on the end of previous 2nd quarter 35% 18.93%
As on the end of previous 3rd quarter 35% 19.78%
As on the end of previous 4th quarter 35% 19.41%

Table VI ‐ Statement showing foreign ownership limits
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July 24, 2023 

The Board of Directors 

Tata Motors Limited  

Bombay House, 24, Homi Mody Street 

Mumbai - 400001 

Members of the Board: 

You have requested our opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares (as defined in the ‘Draft Scheme’, as defined below) of Tata Motors Limited (“TML”), solely in their 

capacity as holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and disregarding any interest any holder of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares may 

have in any other equity securities of TML, of the Capital Reduction Consideration (defined below) in connection 

with the proposed reorganisation of the share capital through reduction and cancellation of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

(the “Reduction”) pursuant to a scheme of arrangement proposed to be entered into between TML and its 

shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and related rules 

and regulations (the “Scheme of Arrangement”). 

This opinion is issued pursuant to the Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93, dated June 20, 

2023, as amended, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Scheme Circular”) and the 

Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/108, dated July 29, 2022, as amended, issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Scheme Circular – Debt”) and is being delivered at TML’s 

request in connection with its obligations under the SEBI Scheme Circular and SEBI Scheme Circular – Debt. 

As more fully described in the Draft Scheme: 

(i) The share capital of the Company pertaining to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares (including the subscribed, issued

and paid up share capital pertaining to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares) as on the Effective Date (as defined in

the Draft Scheme) will be cancelled and extinguished on the Effective Date;

(ii) TML will, as consideration for the Reduction, issue and allot to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Share(s) of

TML as on the Record Date (as defined in the Draft Scheme) whose shares have been cancelled in

accordance with para (i) above  (such shareholders, the “Relevant Shareholders”) 0.7 fully paid up

Ordinary Share(s) (as defined in the Draft Scheme) of TML of face value of INR 2 each for every 1 fully

paid up ‘A’ Ordinary Share(s) of TML of face value of INR 2 each held by the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary

Share(s) of TML as on the Record Date (the “Capital Reduction Consideration”). For ease of reference,

the Ordinary Shares issued as consideration for the Reduction are hereinafter referred to as the “New

Ordinary Shares”; and

(iii) The New Ordinary Shares will be issued and transferred inter alia in the manner set out below:

(a) Upon effectiveness of the Scheme of Arrangement, TML will issue and allot the New Ordinary
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Shares to an irrevocable determinate trust constituted under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 by TML, 

having an independent trustee (the “Trust”), which will hold the New Ordinary Shares on behalf 

and for the benefit of each Relevant Shareholder; 

 

(b) The Trust will, on behalf of and for the benefit of the Relevant Shareholders, inter alia sell the 

requisite number of New Ordinary Shares to realize an amount of cash equal to the Total 

Adjustment Amount (as defined in the Draft Scheme) and, after undertaking the necessary actions 

set forth in the Draft Scheme, distribute to the Relevant Shareholders the remaining New Ordinary 

Shares and any excess cash realized by the Trust in respect of the New Ordinary Shares sold.  

 

The Capital Reduction Consideration may be subject to adjustment by TML to the extent of the Adjustment 

Amount (as defined in the Draft Scheme) and the Total Adjustment Amount, as to which we express no opinion. 

 

Such Capital Reduction Consideration has been recommended by PwC Business Consulting Services LLP (the 

“Valuer”) pursuant to their appointment by TML in their report dated July 24, 2023 (the “Report”).  

 

In arriving at our opinion, we reviewed (i) the Report and (ii) the draft of the Scheme of Arrangement received by 

us on July 24, 2023 (the “Draft Scheme”) We have also held discussions with certain senior officers, directors 

and other representatives and advisors of TML on relevant matters in relation to the proposed Reduction. We also 

examined certain publicly available market-related information relating to TML. We reviewed the financial terms 

of the Reduction as set forth in the Draft Scheme in relation to, among other things: current and historical market 

prices and trading volumes of the Ordinary Shares and the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML and the historical 

capitalization of TML, including dividends paid by TML in relation to Ordinary Shares and ‘A’ Ordinary Shares. 

We considered, to the extent publicly available, the financial terms of certain other transactions which we 

considered relevant in evaluating the Reduction and analyzed certain financial, stock market and other publicly 

available information relating to the businesses of other companies with multiple classes of publicly traded equity 

securities in evaluating those of TML. In addition to the foregoing, we conducted such other analyses and 

examinations and considered such other information and financial, economic and market criteria as we deemed 

appropriate in arriving at our opinion. The issuance of our opinion has been authorized by our fairness opinion 

committee.   

 

In rendering our opinion, we have assumed and relied, without independent verification, upon the accuracy and 

completeness of all financial and other information and data in relation to TML publicly available or provided 

to or otherwise reviewed by or discussed with us and upon the assurances of the management of TML that they 

are not aware of any relevant information that has been omitted or that remains undisclosed to us that would 

make the information or data examined by, provided to, reviewed by, or discussed with, us inaccurate or 

misleading in any respect or that would otherwise be relevant in arriving at this opinion. With respect to 

information and data relating to TML provided to or otherwise reviewed by or discussed with us, we have been 

advised by the management of TML that such information and data were reasonably prepared on bases 

reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the management of TML. Further, the 

management of TML has communicated to us that our reliance on such information and data is reasonable. We 

do not assume any responsibility or liability with respect to such information and data. Our opinion does not 

address, and we have not assessed, any existing or potential contingent liabilities and any ongoing or threatened 
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litigation (including taxation proceedings, regulatory actions and any possible unasserted claims) to which TML 

or its affiliates is or may be a party to or is or may be subject to or which may have an impact, adverse or 

otherwise, on the business, operations or prospects of TML or its affiliates or any underlying assumptions, 

forecasts or views of the management of TML. We have relied upon and not independently verified or validated, 

nor do we express any opinion on, the market-related data provided to or obtained by us. 

 

We have assumed, with your consent, that the Reduction will be consummated in accordance with its terms as set 

out in the Draft Scheme, without waiver, modification or amendment of any material term, condition or agreement 

and that, in the course of obtaining the necessary regulatory or third party approvals (including in relation to the 

New Ordinary Shares to be allotted to the holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML and approvals of holders of 

all classes of securities or creditors of TML or its affiliates, as applicable), consents and releases for the Reduction, 

no delay, limitation, restriction or condition will be imposed that would have an adverse effect on TML or the 

contemplated benefits of the Reduction. We have further assumed, with your consent, that such approvals, 

consents and releases will be duly obtained as required pursuant to applicable laws and contractual obligations, 

without any delays. Representatives of TML have advised us, and we further have assumed, that the final terms 

of the Reduction will not vary from those set forth in the Draft Scheme reviewed by us. Further, we have assumed, 

with your consent, that there will not be any adverse rulings or proceedings whatsoever (whether of any court, 

regulatory body or otherwise) arising out of or in relation to the Reduction. Furthermore, as you are aware, the 

credit, financial and stock markets are currently experiencing and may continue to experience volatility, and we 

express no view or opinion as to any potential effects of such volatility on the basis for our analysis or evaluation. 

We have also assumed, with your consent, that the Reduction will not result in any adverse effect on TML or its 

businesses, whether under tax or other laws or under the terms of any contract, indebtedness, license or approval.  

 

We are not expressing any opinion as to what the value of the Ordinary Shares actually will be when issued 

pursuant to the Reduction. We have not made or been provided with an independent evaluation or appraisal of the 

assets or liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of TML nor have we made any physical inspection of the properties 

or assets of TML. We express no opinion as to fair value of assets and properties of TML under any laws, or 

otherwise, or the realizable value of the properties or assets of TML or its affiliates. Our opinion is not to be treated 

as a valuation of any securities of TML or its affiliates under any laws or otherwise.  

 

Our opinion does not address, and we have not assessed, any legal, regulatory, taxation or accounting matters, 

including, without limitation, as to tax consequences resulting from the Reduction (including the Adjustment 

Amount, the Total Adjustment Amount and the structure of and actions to be taken by the Trust to realize such 

amounts). We have also assumed that all aspects of the Reduction and any other transaction contemplated in the 

Draft Scheme would be in compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and we have issued this opinion on 

the understanding that we would not in any manner verify, or be responsible for ensuring, such compliance. 

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, we express no opinion and have assumed that the Reduction 

will be in compliance with applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and the applicable 

rules and regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as 

amended, the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated 

thereunder, and the rules and regulations of the New York Stock Exchange. Our opinion is restricted to the 

fairness, from a financial point of view, of the Capital Reduction Consideration as recommended by the Valuer 

and as set forth in the Report, to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML, and does not address any matters 
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otherwise than as expressly stated herein.  

 

We were not requested to, and we did not, participate in the negotiation or structuring of the Reduction, nor 

were we requested to, and we did not, solicit third-party indications of interest in any possible transaction 

involving all or a part of TML. We express no view as to, and our opinion does not address, the underlying 

business decision of TML to effect the Reduction, the relative merits of the Reduction as compared to any 

alternative business strategies that might exist for TML or the effect of any other transaction in which TML 

might engage. We also express no view as to, and our opinion does not address, the fairness (financial or 

otherwise) of the amount or nature or any other aspect of any compensation to any officers, directors or 

employees of any parties to the Reduction, or any class of such persons, relative to the Capital Reduction 

Consideration or otherwise. We express herein no view or opinion as to any terms or other aspects of the 

Reduction (other than the Capital Reduction Consideration set out herein). Our opinion is necessarily based 

upon information available to us, and financial, stock market and other conditions and circumstances existing, 

as of the date hereof. 

 

Citigroup Global Markets India Private Limited has been engaged as a financial advisor by TML in connection 

with the proposed Reduction only for the purposes of our opinion and will receive a fee for our services in 

connection with the delivery of this opinion. In addition, TML has agreed to indemnify us and related parties 

against certain liabilities arising out of our engagement. Please note that Citigroup Global Markets India Private 

Limited is a financial services company engaged in the securities and financial advisory businesses. Our 

securities business is engaged in securities underwriting, trading and brokerage activities, as well as providing 

investment banking, financing and financial advisory services. We and our affiliates have provided in the past 

and currently provide financial advisory and/ or capital markets related services to TML and its affiliates in the 

ordinary course of business (including in relation to delisting of certain securities of TML listed outside India), 

and are acting as the book running lead manager in connection with the initial public offerings of the affiliates 

of TML, respectively, in each case unrelated to the proposed Reduction, for which services, we and our affiliates 

have received and expect to receive compensation. We have also had certain discussions with TML in the past 

in relation to its capital re-structuring for which no compensation has been paid, or is due, to us. In the future, 

Citi may continue to provide other financial advisory services and/or capital markets related services to TML 

and its affiliates for which we may receive compensation. In the ordinary course of our business, we and our 

affiliates may actively trade or hold the securities of TML for our own account or for the account of our 

customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in such securities. In addition, we 

and our affiliates (including Citigroup Inc. and its affiliates) may maintain relationships with TML and its 

affiliates. 

 

Our opinion expressed herein is provided for the information of the Board of Directors of TML in its evaluation 

of the proposed Reduction, and may not be used by or relied upon by any other person for any purpose. Our 

opinion is not intended to be and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder, creditor or other person 

as to how such shareholder, creditor or other person should vote or act on any matters relating to the proposed 

Reduction or any other matter. This opinion may not be disclosed, referred to, or communicated (in whole or in 

part) to any third party, nor shall any public reference to us be made, for any purpose whatsoever except (i) with 

our prior written consent in each instance, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; (ii) as required to be 

disclosed by TML in relation to the Scheme of Arrangement (including inter alia, to the relevant stock exchanges, 
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the Registrar of Companies and National Company Law Tribunal or other judicial, regulatory or government 

authorities, as may be required from time to time); and (iii) as required to be disclosed on the website of TML and 

the stock exchanges solely to the extent required in terms of applicable laws including the SEBI Scheme Circular 

and SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt and as a part of the explanatory statement to be circulated to the shareholders 

and/ or creditors of TML. We accept no responsibility to any person other than the Board of Directors of TML in 

relation to the contents of this opinion even if it is disclosed to such person with our consent or otherwise in 

accordance with the preceding sentence. It is understood that this opinion is given only as of the date hereof and 

we do not have any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this opinion. 

 

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, our experience as investment bankers, our work as described above and 

other factors we deemed relevant, we are of the opinion that, as of the date hereof, the Capital Reduction 

Consideration, as determined by the Valuer pursuant to their valuation exercise and as set forth in the Report, is 

fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML solely in their capacity as 

holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and disregarding any interest any holder of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares may have in any 

other equity securities of TML.  
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July 24, 2023 

 

The Board of Directors 

Tata Motors Limited  

Bombay House, 24, Homi Mody Street 

Mumbai - 400001 

 

Members of the Board: 

 

You have requested our opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary 

Shares (as defined in the ‘Draft Scheme’, as defined below) of Tata Motors Limited (“TML”), solely in their 

capacity as holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and disregarding any interest any holder of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares may 

have in any other equity securities of TML, of the Capital Reduction Consideration (defined below) in connection 

with the proposed reorganisation of the share capital through reduction and cancellation of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares 

(the “Reduction”) pursuant to a scheme of arrangement proposed to be entered into between TML and its 

shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and related rules 

and regulations (the “Scheme of Arrangement”). 

 

This opinion is issued pursuant to the Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93, dated June 20, 

2023, as amended, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Scheme Circular”) and the 

Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/108, dated July 29, 2022, as amended, issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Scheme Circular – Debt”) and is being delivered at TML’s 

request in connection with its obligations under the SEBI Scheme Circular and SEBI Scheme Circular – Debt. 

 

As more fully described in the Draft Scheme:  

 

(i) The share capital of the Company pertaining to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares (including the subscribed, issued 

and paid up share capital pertaining to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares) as on the Effective Date (as defined in 

the Draft Scheme) will be cancelled and extinguished on the Effective Date; 

 

(ii) TML will, as consideration for the Reduction, issue and allot to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Share(s) of 

TML as on the Record Date (as defined in the Draft Scheme) whose shares have been cancelled in 

accordance with para (i) above  (such shareholders, the “Relevant Shareholders”) 0.7 fully paid up 

Ordinary Share(s) (as defined in the Draft Scheme) of TML of face value of INR 2 each for every 1 fully 

paid up ‘A’ Ordinary Share(s) of TML of face value of INR 2 each held by the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary 

Share(s) of TML as on the Record Date (the “Capital Reduction Consideration”). For ease of reference, 

the Ordinary Shares issued as consideration for the Reduction are hereinafter referred to as the “New 

Ordinary Shares”; and 

 

(iii) The New Ordinary Shares will be issued and transferred inter alia in the manner set out below: 

 

(a) Upon effectiveness of the Scheme of Arrangement, TML will issue and allot the New Ordinary 
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Shares to an irrevocable determinate trust constituted under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 by TML, 

having an independent trustee (the “Trust”), which will hold the New Ordinary Shares on behalf 

and for the benefit of each Relevant Shareholder; 

 

(b) The Trust will, on behalf of and for the benefit of the Relevant Shareholders, inter alia sell the 

requisite number of New Ordinary Shares to realize an amount of cash equal to the Total 

Adjustment Amount (as defined in the Draft Scheme) and, after undertaking the necessary actions 

set forth in the Draft Scheme, distribute to the Relevant Shareholders the remaining New Ordinary 

Shares and any excess cash realized by the Trust in respect of the New Ordinary Shares sold.  

 

The Capital Reduction Consideration may be subject to adjustment by TML to the extent of the Adjustment 

Amount (as defined in the Draft Scheme) and the Total Adjustment Amount, as to which we express no opinion. 

 

Such Capital Reduction Consideration has been recommended by PwC Business Consulting Services LLP (the 

“Valuer”) pursuant to their appointment by TML in their report dated July 24, 2023 (the “Report”).  

 

In arriving at our opinion, we reviewed (i) the Report and (ii) the draft of the Scheme of Arrangement received by 

us on July 24, 2023 (the “Draft Scheme”) We have also held discussions with certain senior officers, directors 

and other representatives and advisors of TML on relevant matters in relation to the proposed Reduction. We also 

examined certain publicly available market-related information relating to TML. We reviewed the financial terms 

of the Reduction as set forth in the Draft Scheme in relation to, among other things: current and historical market 

prices and trading volumes of the Ordinary Shares and the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML and the historical 

capitalization of TML, including dividends paid by TML in relation to Ordinary Shares and ‘A’ Ordinary Shares. 

We considered, to the extent publicly available, the financial terms of certain other transactions which we 

considered relevant in evaluating the Reduction and analyzed certain financial, stock market and other publicly 

available information relating to the businesses of other companies with multiple classes of publicly traded equity 

securities in evaluating those of TML. In addition to the foregoing, we conducted such other analyses and 

examinations and considered such other information and financial, economic and market criteria as we deemed 

appropriate in arriving at our opinion. The issuance of our opinion has been authorized by our fairness opinion 

committee.   

 

In rendering our opinion, we have assumed and relied, without independent verification, upon the accuracy and 

completeness of all financial and other information and data in relation to TML publicly available or provided 

to or otherwise reviewed by or discussed with us and upon the assurances of the management of TML that they 

are not aware of any relevant information that has been omitted or that remains undisclosed to us that would 

make the information or data examined by, provided to, reviewed by, or discussed with, us inaccurate or 

misleading in any respect or that would otherwise be relevant in arriving at this opinion. With respect to 

information and data relating to TML provided to or otherwise reviewed by or discussed with us, we have been 

advised by the management of TML that such information and data were reasonably prepared on bases 

reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the management of TML. Further, the 

management of TML has communicated to us that our reliance on such information and data is reasonable. We 

do not assume any responsibility or liability with respect to such information and data. Our opinion does not 

address, and we have not assessed, any existing or potential contingent liabilities and any ongoing or threatened 
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litigation (including taxation proceedings, regulatory actions and any possible unasserted claims) to which TML 

or its affiliates is or may be a party to or is or may be subject to or which may have an impact, adverse or 

otherwise, on the business, operations or prospects of TML or its affiliates or any underlying assumptions, 

forecasts or views of the management of TML. We have relied upon and not independently verified or validated, 

nor do we express any opinion on, the market-related data provided to or obtained by us. 

 

We have assumed, with your consent, that the Reduction will be consummated in accordance with its terms as set 

out in the Draft Scheme, without waiver, modification or amendment of any material term, condition or agreement 

and that, in the course of obtaining the necessary regulatory or third party approvals (including in relation to the 

New Ordinary Shares to be allotted to the holders of the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML and approvals of holders of 

all classes of securities or creditors of TML or its affiliates, as applicable), consents and releases for the Reduction, 

no delay, limitation, restriction or condition will be imposed that would have an adverse effect on TML or the 

contemplated benefits of the Reduction. We have further assumed, with your consent, that such approvals, 

consents and releases will be duly obtained as required pursuant to applicable laws and contractual obligations, 

without any delays. Representatives of TML have advised us, and we further have assumed, that the final terms 

of the Reduction will not vary from those set forth in the Draft Scheme reviewed by us. Further, we have assumed, 

with your consent, that there will not be any adverse rulings or proceedings whatsoever (whether of any court, 

regulatory body or otherwise) arising out of or in relation to the Reduction. Furthermore, as you are aware, the 

credit, financial and stock markets are currently experiencing and may continue to experience volatility, and we 

express no view or opinion as to any potential effects of such volatility on the basis for our analysis or evaluation. 

We have also assumed, with your consent, that the Reduction will not result in any adverse effect on TML or its 

businesses, whether under tax or other laws or under the terms of any contract, indebtedness, license or approval.  

 

We are not expressing any opinion as to what the value of the Ordinary Shares actually will be when issued 

pursuant to the Reduction. We have not made or been provided with an independent evaluation or appraisal of the 

assets or liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of TML nor have we made any physical inspection of the properties 

or assets of TML. We express no opinion as to fair value of assets and properties of TML under any laws, or 

otherwise, or the realizable value of the properties or assets of TML or its affiliates. Our opinion is not to be treated 

as a valuation of any securities of TML or its affiliates under any laws or otherwise.  

 

Our opinion does not address, and we have not assessed, any legal, regulatory, taxation or accounting matters, 

including, without limitation, as to tax consequences resulting from the Reduction (including the Adjustment 

Amount, the Total Adjustment Amount and the structure of and actions to be taken by the Trust to realize such 

amounts). We have also assumed that all aspects of the Reduction and any other transaction contemplated in the 

Draft Scheme would be in compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and we have issued this opinion on 

the understanding that we would not in any manner verify, or be responsible for ensuring, such compliance. 

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, we express no opinion and have assumed that the Reduction 

will be in compliance with applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and the applicable 

rules and regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as 

amended, the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated 

thereunder, and the rules and regulations of the New York Stock Exchange. Our opinion is restricted to the 

fairness, from a financial point of view, of the Capital Reduction Consideration as recommended by the Valuer 

and as set forth in the Report, to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML, and does not address any matters 
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otherwise than as expressly stated herein.  

 

We were not requested to, and we did not, participate in the negotiation or structuring of the Reduction, nor 

were we requested to, and we did not, solicit third-party indications of interest in any possible transaction 

involving all or a part of TML. We express no view as to, and our opinion does not address, the underlying 

business decision of TML to effect the Reduction, the relative merits of the Reduction as compared to any 

alternative business strategies that might exist for TML or the effect of any other transaction in which TML 

might engage. We also express no view as to, and our opinion does not address, the fairness (financial or 

otherwise) of the amount or nature or any other aspect of any compensation to any officers, directors or 

employees of any parties to the Reduction, or any class of such persons, relative to the Capital Reduction 

Consideration or otherwise. We express herein no view or opinion as to any terms or other aspects of the 

Reduction (other than the Capital Reduction Consideration set out herein). Our opinion is necessarily based 

upon information available to us, and financial, stock market and other conditions and circumstances existing, 

as of the date hereof. 

 

Citigroup Global Markets India Private Limited has been engaged as a financial advisor by TML in connection 

with the proposed Reduction only for the purposes of our opinion and will receive a fee for our services in 

connection with the delivery of this opinion. In addition, TML has agreed to indemnify us and related parties 

against certain liabilities arising out of our engagement. Please note that Citigroup Global Markets India Private 

Limited is a financial services company engaged in the securities and financial advisory businesses. Our 

securities business is engaged in securities underwriting, trading and brokerage activities, as well as providing 

investment banking, financing and financial advisory services. We and our affiliates have provided in the past 

and currently provide financial advisory and/ or capital markets related services to TML and its affiliates in the 

ordinary course of business (including in relation to delisting of certain securities of TML listed outside India), 

and are acting as the book running lead manager in connection with the initial public offerings of the affiliates 

of TML, respectively, in each case unrelated to the proposed Reduction, for which services, we and our affiliates 

have received and expect to receive compensation. We have also had certain discussions with TML in the past 

in relation to its capital re-structuring for which no compensation has been paid, or is due, to us. In the future, 

Citi may continue to provide other financial advisory services and/or capital markets related services to TML 

and its affiliates for which we may receive compensation. In the ordinary course of our business, we and our 

affiliates may actively trade or hold the securities of TML for our own account or for the account of our 

customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in such securities. In addition, we 

and our affiliates (including Citigroup Inc. and its affiliates) may maintain relationships with TML and its 

affiliates. 

 

Our opinion expressed herein is provided for the information of the Board of Directors of TML in its evaluation 

of the proposed Reduction, and may not be used by or relied upon by any other person for any purpose. Our 

opinion is not intended to be and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder, creditor or other person 

as to how such shareholder, creditor or other person should vote or act on any matters relating to the proposed 

Reduction or any other matter. This opinion may not be disclosed, referred to, or communicated (in whole or in 

part) to any third party, nor shall any public reference to us be made, for any purpose whatsoever except (i) with 

our prior written consent in each instance, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; (ii) as required to be 

disclosed by TML in relation to the Scheme of Arrangement (including inter alia, to the relevant stock exchanges, 
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the Registrar of Companies and National Company Law Tribunal or other judicial, regulatory or government 

authorities, as may be required from time to time); and (iii) as required to be disclosed on the website of TML and 

the stock exchanges solely to the extent required in terms of applicable laws including the SEBI Scheme Circular 

and SEBI Scheme Circular - Debt and as a part of the explanatory statement to be circulated to the shareholders 

and/ or creditors of TML. We accept no responsibility to any person other than the Board of Directors of TML in 

relation to the contents of this opinion even if it is disclosed to such person with our consent or otherwise in 

accordance with the preceding sentence. It is understood that this opinion is given only as of the date hereof and 

we do not have any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this opinion. 

 

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, our experience as investment bankers, our work as described above and 

other factors we deemed relevant, we are of the opinion that, as of the date hereof, the Capital Reduction 

Consideration, as determined by the Valuer pursuant to their valuation exercise and as set forth in the Report, is 

fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of TML solely in their capacity as 

holders of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and disregarding any interest any holder of ‘A’ Ordinary Shares may have in any 

other equity securities of TML.  

 

 

  



 

 

 

REPORT ON COMPLAINTS 

Period of Compliant Report: September 14, 2023 to October 4, 2023 

Part A 

Sr. 
No. 

                                            Particulars       Number 

1. Number of complaints received directly NIL 

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/ Securities 
Exchange Board  of India (‘SEBI’)  

1 

3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2)  1 

4. Number of complaints resolved  1 

5. Number of complaints pending NIL 

 

Part B 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of complainant  Date of complaint            Status 
(Resolved/Pending) 

1. Mr Sunil V M September 30, 2023 Resolved 

2. N.A N.A N.A 

3. N.A N.A N.A 

 

For Tata Motors Limited 

 

 
Maloy Kumar Gupta 
Company Secretary 
A24123 
October 13, 2023  



 

 

 



National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra East,  
Mumbai – 400051 
Kind Attn: Ms Flora Matmari 

September 13, 2023 
Sc no. - 17812 

Dear Sir, 

Ref:  Scheme of Arrangement between Tata Motors Limited and its Shareholders and 
Creditors (‘Scheme’) as per Regulation 37 and 59A of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”) 

Sub: ‘Report on Complaints’ in terms of Para 6 of Part I(A) of Annexure IV to the SEBI 
Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 
(“SEBI Master Circular”)  

In continuation to our application no.36808 filed with exchange on August 3, 2023  towards 
the Scheme under Regulation 37 and 59A of Listing Regulations, documents of which 
were uploaded by NSE on the NSE website viz. www.nseindia.com on August 21, 
2023, please find enclosed the Report on Complaints in the format specified in the SEBI 
Master Circular. 

The Report on Complaints is also being uploaded on the website of the Company, i.e. 
www.tatamotors.com as per the requirement of the said circular. 

You are requested to take the above document on record and process our application. 

Thanking yo u, 

Yours faithfully, 

For Tata Motors Limited 

Maloy Kumar Gupta 
Company Secretary  

Encl: Complaint report 



 

 

 

REPORT ON COMPLAINTS 

Period of Compliant Report: August 21, 2023 to September 11, 2023 

Part A 

Sr. 
No. 

                                            Particulars       Number 

1. Number of complaints received directly NIL 

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/ Securities 
Exchange Board  of India (‘SEBI’)  

NIL 

3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2)  NIL 

4. Number of complaints resolved  NIL 

5. Number of complaints pending NIL 

 

Part B 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of complainant  Date of complaint            Status 
(Resolved/Pending) 

1. N.A N.A N.A 

2. N.A N.A N.A 

3. N.A N.A N.A 

 

For Tata Motors Limited 

 

 
Maloy Kumar Gupta 
Company Secretary 
A24123 
September 13, 2023  



B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

8th floor, Business Plaza,  
Westin Hotel Campus,  
36/3-B, Koregaon Park Annex, 
Mundhwa Road, Ghorpadi, 
Pune - 411 001, India 
Telephone: +91 (20) 6747 7300 
Fax: +91 (20) 6747 7100 

  Registered Office: 

B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into B S R & Co. LLP (a 
Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 

 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco 
Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of Tata Motors Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Tata Motors Limited (the “Company”)and its joint 
operation which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the standalone 
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in 
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit and 
other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on the standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Recognition of deferred tax asset on unused tax losses 

See Note 28 to standalone financial statements 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Annexure 13A
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As detailed in note 28 of the standalone 
financial statements, during the year, the 
Company has recognised deferred tax asset 
(‘DTA’) of Rs. 1,615.42 crores on unabsorbed 
depreciation and long-term capital losses. 
 
The Company’s ability to recover the deferred 
tax assets is assessed by the management at 
the end of each reporting period which is based 
on an assessment of the probability that future 
taxable income will be available against which 
the carried forward unused tax losses can be 
utilized. 
  
As per the assessment done by the 
management and election of tax planning 
opportunities available with the Company, the 
management believes that the carried forward 
unused tax losses will get offset against the 
capital gains projected by the Company in 
future years on sale of certain investments in 
subsidiaries held by the Company. 
  
Thus, auditing the Company's assessment of 
the recoverability of deferred tax assets is 
dependent on the Company's ability to 
generate future taxable gains through sale of 
these investments. The valuation of these 
investments is subject to significant judgments 
and estimates applied by the management. 
This is considered to be a key audit matter, 
considering the past history of losses in the 
Company and complexity of the accounting 
requirements for recognition of deferred tax 
assets. 

In view of the significance of the matter we applied 
the following audit procedures in this area to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence. 
 
Test of Controls: 
We tested the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of key controls over the key inputs and 
assumptions, used in valuation of its investments 
proposed to be sold as part of the tax planning 
opportunities. 
 
Test of details: 

• Evaluated the appropriateness of the 
assumptions applied to key inputs in valuation of 
the investments. 

• Involved independent valuation specialists in 
testing the appropriateness of the valuation 
model including evaluating whether the 
comparable companies considered in the 
valuation are appropriate 

• Performed necessary procedures to verify the 
accuracy of amounts disclosed in the financial 
statements and adequacy of disclosures made 
for compliance with applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards and accounting principles 
generally accepted in India 

 

Other Information 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 

 166



B S R & Co. LLP 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued) 

Tata Motors Limited 

Page 3 of 16 
 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective 
Management and Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of each 
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.  

The respective Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each 
company. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entity included in 
the standalone financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company and its 
joint operation company incorporated in India as on 31 March 2023, taken on record by the Board 
of Directors of the respective companies, none of the directors of the companies is disqualified 
as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and its joint operation company incorporated in India and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

a. The standalone financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 
2023 on the financial position of the Company and its joint operation - Refer Note 37 to the 
standalone financial statements. 
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b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts –
Refer Note 49(ii) to the standalone financial statements.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company or its joint operation company incorporated in
India.

d (i) The management of the Company and its joint operation company incorporated in India whose 
financial statements has been audited under the Act has represented to us that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 48(iv) to the standalone financial statements, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company and its joint operation company 
incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company and its joint operation company incorporated 
in India (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management of the Company and its joint operation company incorporated in India whose
financial statements has been audited under the Act has represented to us that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 48(v) to the standalone financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Company and its joint operation company incorporated in India
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company and its joint operation
company incorporated in India shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. As stated in Note 21(B)(e) to the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors 
of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval 
of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in 
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend. The 
final dividend paid by the joint operation company during the year, in respect of the same 
declared for the previous year, is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it 
applies to payment of dividend. The interim dividend declared and paid by the joint operation 
company during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act.

f. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company 
and its joint operation company incorporated in India only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: We 
draw attention to Note 35(d) to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
according to which the managerial remuneration payable to certain non-executive directors of the 
Company (amounting to Rs. 3.75 crores) and consequently the total managerial remuneration for the 
financial year (amounting to Rs. 10.14 crores) exceed the prescribed limits under Section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act,2013 by Rs. 3.28 crores. As per the provisions of the Act, the 
excess remuneration is subject to approval of the shareholders which the Company proposes to 
obtain in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Further, with respect to the joint operation 
company included in the standalone financial statements, in our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable 
to the joint operation company incorporated in India since it is not a public company. The Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required 
to be commented upon by us. 

 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 
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(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification 
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in 
a phased manner over a period of three years.  In accordance with this programme, certain 
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of 
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its assets.  No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of 
the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically 
verified by the management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, 
written confirmations have been obtained and for inward goods-in-transit subsequent evidence 
of receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such 
verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were 
appropriate.  No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the 
book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the 
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account 
of the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or 
granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has granted loans to 
employees and companies and made investments in companies, in respect of which the 
requisite information is as below.  The Company has not made any investments in or granted 
any loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. 

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations 
given to us the Company has provided loans as below: 
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Particulars Loans 
(Rs. in crores) 

Aggregate amount during the year 
Subsidiaries* 
Others 
- Employees 

  
80.75 

 
76.48 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 
Subsidiaries* 
Others 
- Employees 

  
679.30 

 
71.59 

 

*As per the Companies Act, 2013 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year and the terms and 
conditions of the grant of loans during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of 
the Company. The Company has not provided any guarantees or security or granted any 
advances in the nature of loans during the year. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the receipts have been regular except 
in case of two wholly-owned subsidiaries outside India where cumulative principal amount of Rs 
619 crores and cumulative interest amount of Rs 162 crores which was due for repayment in 
earlier years has not been collected as at 31 March 2023, since management believes that 
these amounts are not recoverable as these subsidiaries are in losses and the amounts have 
been provided for in the financial statements of the Company. Loan amounting to Rs 15 crores 
has been given to another wholly owned subsidiary which is repayable on demand. As informed 
to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of the loan during the year. Thus, there has 
been no default on the part of the party to whom the money has been lent. The payment of 
interest has been regular. Further, the Company has given advance in the nature of loans to 
three suppliers as mentioned below: 

Name of the entity Amount (Rs. 
Crores) 

Remarks 

Ganage Pressings Private Limited 5.00 

Rojee Tasha Stampings Private 
Limited 

21.00 

These amounts were due for 
repayment in earlier years 
but have not been collected 
as at 31 March 2023. The 
Company is in litigation with 
these parties. 

Autoline Industries Limited 18.70 These amounts were due for 
repayment in earlier years 
but have been collected 
during the current year. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect 
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of loans given except in case of two wholly-owned subsidiaries outside India and two suppliers 
as reported in para iii(c) above. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature 
of loans to any party during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling 
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdues of existing loans given to same parties. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 
period of repayment except for the following loans or advances in the nature of loans to its 
Promoters and related parties as defined in Clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”):. 

 

  Related Parties 
(Rs. in crores) 

Aggregate of loans 
- Repayable on demand (A) 
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of 
Repayment (B) 

  
35.75 

- 

Total (A+B)  35.75 

Percentage of loans 23% 

 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security 
given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been complied with. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year. In respect 
of unclaimed deposits, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the 
Act and the rules framed thereunder. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 
148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods and services provided by it and are of the 
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. 
However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine 
whether these are accurate or complete. 

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and 
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been 
subsumed into GST. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), 
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other 
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, except 
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for Provident fund dues referred to in Note 37 to the standalone financial statements. With regard 
to the contribution under the Employee’s Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976 (the scheme), 
the Company has sought exemption from making contribution to the scheme since it has its own 
Life Cover Scheme. The Company has made an application on August 31, 2020 seeking an 
extension of exemption from contribution to the Scheme for a period of 3 years, approval of 
which is awaited. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or 
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. We draw attention to Note 37 to the financial statements 
which more fully explains the matter regarding nonpayment of provident fund contribution 
pursuant to Supreme Court judgement dated 28 February 2019. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory 
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows: 

 

Name of 
the statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Gross 
Demand 
(Rs. in 
crore) 

Paid 
under 

protest 
(Rs. in 
crore) 

Period to 
which the 

amount relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

0.46 0.46 1991-92 and 
1995-96 

High Court 

85.01 85.01 AY 2006-07 to 
AY 2012-13 
and erstwhile 
Tata Finance 
Limited 
matters 

Income Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income tax 

125.49* 59.74 AY 2003-04, AY 
2013-14, 2016-
2017 and 
erstwhile Tata 
Motors 
Drivelines 
Limited AY 
2016-17 

Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

42.96 0.15 1991-92 to 
1993-94, 2002-
03, 2005-06, 
2006-07, 2009-
10 to 2011-12 

High Court Central 
Excise 
Act, 1944 

Duty of 
excise 

396.01 17.04 1991-92, 1992-
93,1994-95, 

The 
Custom,Excise 
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Name of 
the statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Gross 
Demand 
(Rs. in 
crore) 

Paid 
under 

protest 
(Rs. in 
crore) 

Period to 
which the 

amount relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

1996-97,1997-
98 and 1999-
2000 to 2017-
18 

and Service Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal 

7.29 0.93 1999-00 to 
2017-18 

Appellate 
Authority upto 
Commissioner's 
level 

1,086.69 10.79 2004-05 to 
2013-14 

High Court 

166.71 6.57 2004-05 to 
2017-18 

The 
Custom,Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal 

Finance Act, 
2014 

Service tax 

7.78 0.51 2010-11 to 
2016-17 

Appellate 
Authority upto 
Commissioner's 
level 

13.18 -   1995-96 Supreme Court 

281.41 51.13 1984-85 to 
1988-89, 1990-
91, 1992-93, 
2001-02 to 
2005-06, 2007-
08 to 2016-17 

High Court 

373.47 18.43 1986-87, 1989-
90, 1996-97, 
2002-03 to 
2017-18 

The 
Custom,Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal 

Sales Tax Sales Tax 

476.28 38.07 1979-80, 1986-
87 and 1989-90 
to 2017-18 

Appellate 
Authority upto 
Commissioner's 
level 

3.90 3.90 2011-12 Supreme Court Customs 
Act, 
1962 

Duty of 
customs 

7.97 3.11 2008-09 High Court 
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Name of 
the statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Gross 
Demand 
(Rs. in 
crore) 

Paid 
under 

protest 
(Rs. in 
crore) 

Period to 
which the 

amount relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

17.56 0.12 2018-19 The Goods and 
Services Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal 

Goods and 
Services 
Tax 

Goods and 
Services 
Tax 

14.18 0.56 2017-18 to 
2020-21 

Appellate 
Authority upto 
Commissioner's 
level 

 

* This includes demand of Rs. 80.25 crores for FY 2022-23 (AY 2003-04) for which the Company has 
received a favourable order from Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) dated 29 March 2023, order 
giving effect to the order of CIT(A) is awaited by the Company. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, 
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of inter-corporate deposits/ 
loans amounting to Rs 5,398.75 crores which are repayable on demand, such inter-corporate 
deposits / loans have not been demanded for repayment during the current year, and with 
respect to these inter-corporate deposits / loans the Company has not defaulted in payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. In respect of other loans, according to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to 
any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, as at 31 March 2023 we report that the funds raised on short 
term basis of Rs 11,873.32 crores have been used for long term investment. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act). 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the year except that we have been informed 
about one instance, estimated to aggregate Rs. 6.71 crores, involving certain individuals, 
authorised service centers and a dealer who benefited from unauthorized redemption of loyalty 
benefits payments. The Company has recovered Rs. 1.31 crores out of the total amount involved 
and is in process of recovering the balance amounts 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during 
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions 
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, 
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors 
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions 
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has more than one CIC 
as part of the Group. The Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of 
India and one CIC which is not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
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other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 (5) are not applicable to the 
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 
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 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022 
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 Partner 

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103334 
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Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Motors 
Limited (“the Company”) and such company incorporated in India under the Act which is its joint operation 
company as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
In our opinion, the Company and such company incorporated in India which is its joint operation company 
have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies 
considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (the “Guidance Note”). 

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 
  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

 179



B S R & Co. LLP 

 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial 
statements of Tata Motors Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Continued) 

Page 16 of 16 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the standalone financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 
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(₹ in crores)

Notes 2023 2022
I. ASSETS

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 (b) 11,707.87                     11,733.44                   
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 (c) 575.65                          585.21                         
(c) Right of use assets 4 (b) 421.27                          332.45                         
(d) Other intangible assets 5 (b) 2,413.18                       2,009.87                      
(e) Intangible assets under development 5 (c) 509.30                          882.03                         
(f) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 6 27,976.80                     27,917.45                   
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7 1,204.82                       1,338.94                      
(ii) Loans and advances 9 114.40                          48.43                           
(iii) Other financial assets 11 2,405.23                       1,992.52                      

(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 28 1,477.26                       -                               
(i) Non-current tax assets (net) 868.22                          777.68                         
(j) Other non-current assets 13 596.82                          662.24                         

50,270.82                     48,280.26                   
(2) CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Inventories 15 (b) 3,027.90                       3,718.49                      
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 8 3,142.96                       5,143.08                      
(ii) Trade receivables 16 2,307.72                       2,111.78                      
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 18 (b) 1,121.43                       2,450.23                      
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 19 293.22                          155.20                         
(v) Loans and advances 10 132.29                          139.37                         
(vi) Other financial assets 12 255.25                          809.51                         

(c) Other current assets 14 1,219.18                       1,091.95                      
11,499.95                     15,619.61                   

TOTAL ASSETS 61,770.77                     63,899.87                   
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY  
(a) Equity share capital 20 766.02                          765.88                         
(b) Other equity 21,703.83                     19,178.27                   

22,469.85                     19,944.15                   
LIABILITIES
(1) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 10,445.70                     14,102.74                   
(ii) Lease liabilities 305.26                          237.84                         
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 414.44                          460.37                         

(b) Provisions 27 (b) 1,588.75                       1,474.11                      
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 28 51.16                            173.72                         
(d) Other non-current liabilities 29 692.08                          514.13                         

13,497.39                     16,962.91                   
(2) CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 8,426.74                       9,129.91                      
(ii) Lease liabilities 100.99                          58.58                           
(iii) 24

(a) 114.67                          146.10                         
(b) 7,047.93                       5,956.00                      

(iv) Acceptances 5,839.39                       7,883.96                      
(v) Other financial liabilities 26 1,300.18                       1,113.26                      

(b) Provisions 27 (c) 408.89                          608.06                         
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 53.66                            49.67                           
(d) Other current liabilities 30 2,511.08                       2,047.27                      

25,803.53                     26,992.81                   
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 61,770.77                     63,899.87                   

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For B S R & Co. LLP N CHANDRASEKARAN [DIN: 00121863] P B BALAJI
Chartered Accountants Chairman Group Chief Financial Officer
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

SHIRAZ VASTANI GIRISH WAGH [DIN: 03119361] MALOY KUMAR GUPTA [ACS: 24123]
Partner Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 103334
UDIN: 23103334BGYMRR6797
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12, 2023 Date: May 12, 2023

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
Balance Sheet

See accompanying notes to financial statements

As at March 31,

Trade payables 
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
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(₹ in crores)

Notes 2023
Revenue from operations
Revenue 65,298.84                       46,880.97                        
Other operating revenue 458.49                             382.71                             

I. Total revenue from operations 31 (b) 65,757.33                       47,263.68                        
II. Other Income 32 (b) 820.94                             659.91                             
III. 66,578.27                       47,923.59                        
IV. Expenses

(a) 42,226.81                       31,693.11                        
(b) 6,561.32                          5,030.00                          
(c) 484.69                             (403.87)                            
(d) Employee benefits expense 33 4,021.63                          3,601.51                          
(e) Finance costs 34 2,047.51                          2,121.73                          
(f) Foreign exchange loss (net) 279.76                             136.81                             
(g) Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,766.86                          1,760.57                          
(h) Product development/Engineering expenses 899.06                             593.90                             
(i) Other expenses 35 7,819.74                          6,018.71                          
(j) Amount transferred to capital and other accounts 36 (1,066.73)                        (905.42)                            

65,040.65                       49,647.05                        
V. Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 1,537.62                          (1,723.46)                         
VI. Exceptional items

(a) Employee separation cost 1.36                                 8.35                                  
(b) -                                   50.00                               
(c) Provision/reversal for loan given to/investment in/cost of closure of subsidiary companies 4.55                                 (139.24)                            
(d) 276.91                             -                                    
(e) Others 49 (iii) -                                   (2.52)                                

VII. Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) 1,254.80                          (1,640.05)                         
VIII. Tax expense/(credit) (net) 28

(a) Current tax 81.60                               51.18                               
(b) Deferred tax (1,554.93)                        48.00                               

Total tax expense/(credit) (net) (1,473.33)                        99.18                               
IX. Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 2,728.13                          (1,739.23)                         
X. Profit/(loss) before tax for the year from discontinued operations 45 -                                   392.51                             
XI. Tax expense (net) of discontinued operations 28

(a) Current tax -                                   44.14                               
(b) Deferred tax -                                   -                                    

Total tax expense -                                   44.14                               
XII. Profit for the year after tax from discontinued operations (X-XI) 45 -                                   348.37                             
XIII. Profit/(loss) for the year (IX+XII) 2,728.13                          (1,390.86)                         
XIV. Other comprehensive income/(loss):

(A) (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:
(a) (61.43)                              (57.66)                              
(b) (134.12)                            371.29                             

(ii) 34.96                               (32.33)                              
(B) (i)  (99.69)                              1.62                                  

(ii) 9.93                                 (0.57)                                
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of taxes (250.35)                            282.35                             

XV. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (XIII+XIV) 2,477.78                          (1,108.51)                         

XVI. Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS) 38
Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations (EPS)
(A) Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :

(i) ₹ 7.11                                 (4.54)                                
(ii) ₹ 7.11                                 (4.54)                                

(B) ‘A’ Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :
(i) ₹ 7.21                                 (4.54)                                
(ii) ₹ 7.21                                 (4.54)                                

Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued operations (EPS)
(A) Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :

(i) ₹ -                                   0.90                                  
(ii) ₹ -                                   0.90                                  

(B) ‘A’ Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :
(i) ₹ -                                   1.00                                  
(ii) ₹ -                                   1.00                                  

Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing and discontinued operations (EPS)
(A) Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :

(i) ₹ 7.11                                 (3.63)                                
(ii) ₹ 7.11                                 (3.63)                                

(B) ‘A’ Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :
(i) ₹ 7.21                                 (3.63)                                
(ii) ₹ 7.21                                 (3.63)                                

See accompanying notes to financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For B S R & Co. LLP N CHANDRASEKARAN [DIN: 00121863] P B BALAJI
Chartered Accountants Chairman Group Chief Financial Officer
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

SHIRAZ VASTANI GIRISH WAGH [DIN: 03119361] MALOY KUMAR GUPTA [ACS: 24123]
Partner Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 103334
UDIN: 23103334BGYMRR6797
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12, 2023 Date: May 12, 2023

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss

2022

Total Expenses (IV)

Year ended March 31,

Purchases of products for sale
Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and products for sale

Income tax credit/(expense) relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit obligations (net)

Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - gains/(losses) in cash flow hedges

Basic
Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Income tax credit/(expense) relating to items that will be reclassified to profit and loss

Cost of slump sale of PV undertaking

Total Income (I+II)

Provision for Intangible assets under development

Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Basic
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(₹ in crores)

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations 2,728.13                       (1,739.23)         
Profit for the year from discontinued operations -                                 348.37              
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,766.86                       2,724.93          
Allowances for trade and other receivables 105.12                           42.71                
Discounting of warranty and other provisions (128.53)                         -                    
Inventory write down (net) 32.21                             25.25                
Provision for Intangible assets under development 276.91                           -                    
Provision/(reversal) for loan given to/investment and cost of closure in subsidiary companies/joint venture (net) 4.55                               (699.15)            
Accrual for share-based payments 20.46                             18.04                
Profit on sale of assets (net) (including assets scrapped / written off) (88.47)                            (70.95)               
Profit on sale of investments at FVTPL (net) (71.82)                            (109.82)            
Marked-to-market gain on investments measured at FVTPL (6.81)                              (10.16)               
Tax expense/(credit) (net) (1,473.33)                      143.32              
Finance costs 2,047.51                       2,300.73          
Interest income (245.42)                         (323.59)            
Dividend income (187.52)                         (80.08)               
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (net) 230.40                           112.69              

2,282.12                       4,073.92          
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in following assets and liabilities 5,010.25                       2,683.06          

(306.46)                         (1,015.62)         
126.28                           (245.40)            
(98.21)                            (240.50)            
658.37                           (1,201.08)         

(957.24)                         5,285.19          
620.22                           (56.72)               
(88.17)                            289.73              
(21.46)                            (60.79)               

4,943.58                       5,437.87          
(168.15)                         (155.94)            

4,775.43                       5,281.93          
Cash flows from investing activities:

(761.29)                         (1,191.03)         
Payments for other intangible assets (936.07)                         (639.64)            

122.70                           99.57                
2,078.75                       (3,560.47)         

(191.18)                         (870.91)            
-                                 234.09              

(45.00)                            (51.10)               
131.83                           -                    
(15.00)                            30.00                

(500.00)                         (600.00)            
800.00                           1,300.00          

(276.64)                         (540.87)            
141.78                           2,259.30          
185.27                           301.49              
187.52                           80.08                
922.67                           (3,149.49)         

(Increase)/decrease in short term inter corporate deposit (net)

Deposits/restricted deposits with banks
Realisation of deposits/restricted deposits with banks
Interest received
Dividend received
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

Realisation of deposits with financial institution
Deposits/restricted deposits with financial institution

                  Year ended March 31,

Trade receivables
Loans and advances and other financial assets

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Payments for property, plant and equipments

Provisions

Other current and non-current liabilities

Other current and non-current assets
Inventories
Trade payables and acceptances

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement

Other financial liabilities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Income taxes paid (net)

Investments in subsidiary companies

Loan given to subsidiary companies/payment for costs of closure in subsidiary companies

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments
Investments in Mutual Fund (purchased)/sold (net) 

Proceeds from sale of defence business 

Return of Investment by subsidiary company

F-3
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(₹ in crores)

2023 2022
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares and share application pending allotment (net of issue expenses) 19.60                             18.61                        

8.99                                1,999.79                   
(4,808.33)                      (3,482.07)                 

(106.51)                          (97.77)                       
52.35                             5,137.27                   

(937.10)                          (4,936.80)                 
825.77                           3,270.78                   
(68.33)                            (151.63)                     

-                                  (1.53)                         
(2,007.76)                      (2,272.49)                 
(7,021.32)                      (515.84)                     
(1,323.22)                      1,616.60                   
2,450.23                        2,365.54                   

Cash outflow as a part of slump sale of PV undertaking (refer note 45) -                                  (1,200.00)                 
Adjustment due to conversion of joint operation into joint venture -                                  (341.21)                     

(5.58)                              9.30                          
1,121.43                        2,450.23                   

Non-cash transactions:
317.14                           185.40                      

In terms of our report attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP N CHANDRASEKARAN [DIN: 00121863] P B BALAJI
Chartered Accountants Chairman Group Chief Financial Officer
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

SHIRAZ VASTANI GIRISH WAGH [DIN: 03119361] MALOY KUMAR GUPTA [ACS: 24123]
Partner Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 103334
UDIN: 23103334BGYMRR6797
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12, 2023 Date: May 12, 2023

                  Year ended March 31,

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement

Interest paid [including discounting charges paid, ₹425.37 crores (March 31, 2022  ₹492.62 crores)]

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 
Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Net change in other short-term borrowings (with maturity up to three months) 

Dividend paid 
Repayment of lease liabilities (including interest)

Proceeds/(payment) from Option Settlement of long term borrowings

For and on behalf of the Board

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, (opening balance) 

Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, (closing balance) 

Liability towards property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets purchased on credit/deferred credit 

F-4

GIRISH 
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WAGH

Digitally signed 
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WAGH 
Date: 2023.05.12 
18:59:12 +05'30'
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1. Background and operations

2. Significant accounting policies

a. Statement of compliance

b. Basis of preparation

Joint operations

c. Use of estimates and judgments

i) Note 3 and Note 5 - Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets- useful life and impairment
ii) Note 28 - Recoverability/recognition of deferred tax assets
iii) Note 27 - Provision for product warranty
iv) Note 33(B) - Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") as amended from
time to time.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 12, 2023.

Tata Motors Limited referred to as (“the Company” or “Tata Motors”), designs, manufactures and sells a wide range of automotive vehicles.
The Company also manufactures engines for industrial and marine applications.

The Company is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Mumbai, India. As at March 31,
2023, Tata Sons Pvt Limited, together with its subsidiaries owns 46.32% of the Ordinary shares and 7.66% of ‘A’ Ordinary shares of the
Company, and has the ability to significantly influence the Company’s operations.

Although not required by Ind AS, the Company has provided in note 46 additional information of Tata Motors Limited on a standalone
basis excluding its interest in its two Joint Operations viz. Tata Cummins Private Limited (including its subsidiary company) and Fiat India
Automobiles Private Limited (which ceased to be a joint operation w.e.f. January 1, 2022).

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

Certain of the Company’s activities, are conducted through joint operations, which are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. As per Ind AS
111 - Joint arrangements, in its separate financial statements, the Company being a joint operator has recognised its share of the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of these joint operations incurred jointly with the other partners, along with its share of income from the
sale of the output and any assets, liabilities and expenses that it has incurred in relation to the joint operation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions,
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. 
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d. Cost recognition

e.

f. Segments

g. Going concern

h. Impairment 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In evaluating the forecasts, the Company has taken into consideration both the sufficiency of liquidity to meet obligations as they fall
due as well as potential impact on compliance with financial covenants during the forecast period. These forecasts indicate that,
based on cash generated from operations, the existing funding facilities and inter corporate deposits from subsidiaries, the Company
will have sufficient liquidity to operate and discharge its liabilities as they become due, without breaching any relevant covenants and
the need for any mitigating actions.

Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and are classified according to their nature. Expenditure are capitalized where
appropriate, in accordance with the policy for internally generated intangible assets and represents employee costs, stores and other
manufacturing supplies, and other expenses incurred for construction and product development undertaken by the Company.

Material and other cost of sales as reported in the statement of profit and loss is presented net of the impact of realised foreign
exchange relating to derivatives hedging cost exposures.

Based on the evaluation described above, management believes that the Company has sufficient financial resources available to it at
the date of approval of these financial statements and that it will be able to continue as a ‘going concern’ in the foreseeable future
and for a period up to September 30, 2024.

Foreign currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of Tata Motors Limited.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are re-measured into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement of transactions and translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of
Profit or Loss except to the extent, exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency
borrowings, are capitalized as part of borrowing costs.

The Company primarily operates in the automotive business and has a single segment of commercial vehicles. The Company has
opted for an exemption as per para 4 of Ind AS 108. Segment information is thus given in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The Company has performed an assessment of its financial position as at March 31, 2023 and forecasts of the Company for a period
of eighteen months from the date of these financial statements (the ‘Going Concern Assessment Period’ and the ‘Foreseeable
Future’).
In developing these forecasts, the Company has modelled a base case, which has been further sensitised using severe but plausible
downside scenarios. The base case covers the Going Concern Assessment Period and considers the estimated on-going impact of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict as well as a cautious view of the impact of near-term supply chain challenges related to global semi-conductor
shortages. It also accounts for other end-market and operational factors throughout the Going Concern Assessment Period. The base
case assumes continued recovery in industry volumes based upon external industry forecasts. This has been further sensitized using
more severe but plausible scenarios considering external market commentaries and other factors impacting the global economy and
automotive industry. Management do not consider more extreme scenarios than the ones assessed to be plausible.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of Profit and Loss.
An asset or cash-generating unit impaired in prior years is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of a reversal of impairment loss recognized in prior years.
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i. Recent accounting pronouncements

i.

ii.

iii.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose the material accounting policies rather than significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together
with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general-purpose financial statements. 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below: 

The Company is assessing the impact of these changes and will accordingly incorporate the same in the financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2024.

Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the
scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty.
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3. Property, plant and equipment
(a) Accounting policy

Type of Asset
Buildings, Roads, Bridge and culverts
Plant, machinery and equipment
Computers and other IT assets
Vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and office appliances

(b) Property, plant and equipment (₹ in crores)

Land Buildings Plant, machinery 
and equipments

Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Computers 
& other IT 

assets

Plant, machinery 
and equipments

Buildings

Cost as at April 1, 2022 4,082.34      2,787.50     16,692.29            129.90        173.45        461.46        35.30                         4.02                24,366.26      
Additions -                37.97           834.29                  1.59             3.79             85.74           0.77                           -                  964.15           
Disposals/adjustments -                (14.89)          (386.16)                9.71             (46.08)         (2.90)            (0.05)                         (4.02)              (444.39)          
Cost as at March 31, 2023 4,082.34      2,810.58     17,140.42            141.20        131.16        544.30        36.02                         -                  24,886.02      
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2022 -                (1,060.30)    (10,973.61)           (104.51)       (119.95)       (346.34)       (27.01)                       (1.11)              (12,632.82)    
Depreciation for the year -                (82.79)          (806.18)                (5.19)            (16.38)         (40.97)         (1.73)                         -                  (953.24)          
Disposal/adjustments -                5.30             361.28                  (4.85)            42.24           2.74             0.09                           1.11                407.91           
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023 -                (1,137.79)    (11,418.51)           (114.55)       (94.09)         (384.57)       (28.65)                       -                  (13,178.15)    
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 4,082.34      1,672.79     5,721.91              26.65           37.07           159.73        7.37                           -                  11,707.87      

Cost as at April 1, 2021 4,869.08      3,925.12     31,358.48            225.86        264.14        522.77        37.66                         4.02                41,207.13      
Additions (refer note below) -                51.82           1,175.92              0.36             31.64           36.18           -                             -                  1,295.92        
Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited 
(refer note 45) (786.74)        (819.42)       (12,708.01)           (67.12)         (21.07)         (67.54)         (2.36)                         -                  (14,472.26)    
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint 
Venture -                (360.97)       (2,800.70)             (22.87)         (12.60)         (15.00)         -                             -                  (3,212.14)       
Disposals/adjustments -                (9.05)            (333.40)                (6.33)            (88.66)         (14.95)         -                             -                  (452.39)          
Cost as at March 31, 2022 4,082.34      2,787.50     16,692.29            129.90        173.45        461.46        35.30                         4.02                24,366.26      

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021 -                (1,443.92)    (19,873.20)           (153.56)       (176.68)       (379.14)       (26.13)                       (1.03)              (22,053.65)    
Depreciation for the year -                (82.25)          (790.56)                (5.90)            (31.02)         (39.91)         (1.39)                         (0.08)              (951.11)          
Depreciation for discontinued operations (refer note 45) -                (19.42)          (450.77)                (3.21)            (4.78)            (1.47)            -                             -                  (479.65)          
Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited 
(refer note 45) -                334.75         8,182.04              36.07           13.49           60.75           0.51                           -                  8,627.61        
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint 
Venture -                148.28         1,632.45              18.11           6.49             14.45           -                             -                  1,819.78        
Disposal/adjustments -                2.26             326.43                  3.98             72.55           (1.02)            -                             -                  404.20           
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 -                (1,060.30)    (10,973.61)           (104.51)       (119.95)       (346.34)       (27.01)                       (1.11)              (12,632.82)    
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 4,082.34      1,727.20     5,718.68              25.39           53.50           115.12        8.29                           2.91                11,733.44      

Note:
Include assets of ₹152.51 crores capitalized during August 24, 2021 to December 31, 2021 which is pertaining to PV undertaking. (refer note 45)

The useful lives is reviewed at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimates.

Freehold land is measured at cost and is not depreciated.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED

8 to 20 years
4 to 6 years
4 to 10 years
5 to 15 years

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Owned assets Given on lease

Total

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Interest cost incurred for constructed assets is capitalised up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if
no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset.

Cost includes purchase price, non-recoverable taxes and duties, labour cost and direct overheads for self-constructed assets and other direct costs incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method (SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage, operating conditions, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support. Taking into account these factors, the Company has decided to retain the useful life hitherto adopted for various categories of property, plant and equipments, which are
different from those prescribed in Schedule II of the Act.

 Estimated useful life (years)
4 to 60 years

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in the statement of profit and loss.

Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(₹ in crores)

(c)
2023 2022

Balance at the beginning 585.21          1,400.82        
Additions (refer note below) 954.59          1,341.40        

(964.15)         (1,295.92)      
Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (refer note 45) -                 (733.65)          
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint Venture -                 (127.44)          
Balance at the end 575.65          585.21           

Note:

(d)

Up to 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years Total

526.53        18.71          13.02                       17.39             575.65           
-              -              -                           -                 -                 

526.53        18.71          13.02                       17.39             575.65           

Up to 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years Total

416.53        66.00          40.98                       61.70             585.21           
-              -              -                            -                 -                 

416.53        66.00          40.98                       61.70             585.21           

(e)

Up to 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years Total

Project in Progress
-              -              -                           -                 -                 

Other Projects* 192.98        15.53          9.60                         3.36               221.47           
192.98        15.53          9.60                         3.36               221.47           

Up to 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years Total

Project in Progress
Project 1 85.82          -              -                            -                 85.82             

242.86        7.71            -                            -                 250.57           
328.68        7.71            -                           -                 336.39           

*Individual projects less than ₹ 50 crores have been clubbed together in other projects.

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2023

Additions for the year ended March 31, 2022 include assets of ₹ 275.41 crores purchased during August 24, 2021 to December 31, 2021 which is pertaining to PV undertaking.
(refer note 45)

As at March 31, 2022

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Expected Completion schedule of Capital work-in-progress where cost or time overrun has exceeded original plan

Original plan is considered as that plan which is approved and on the basis of which implementation progress is evaluated. Such original plan includes management’s estimates and
assumptions w.r.t future business, economy / industry and regulatory environments.

As at March 31, 2022
To be completed

Other Projects*

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital work-in-progress For the year ended March 31, 

Capitalised during the year

Ageing of Capital work-in-progress

As at March 31, 2022

To be completed

Project 1

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
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4.   Leases
(a) Accounting policy

Lessee:

•

•
•

Lessor:

(b)

At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease, based on contractual terms and substance of the lease arrangement.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Company leases a number of buildings, plant and equipment, IT hardware and software assets, certain of which have a renewal and/or purchase option in the normal course of 
the business. Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Company. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Company and not by the respective lessor. The Company assesses at lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension or termination
option. The Company re-assesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise options if there is a significant event or significant change in circumstances within its control. It is
recognised that there is potential for lease term assumptions to change in the future and this will continue to be monitored by the Company where relevant. The Company’s leases
mature between 2024 and 2032. The weighted average rate applied is  8.08 % (2022: 8.22%).

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contain a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset –this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substation right, then the asset is not identified;

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has the right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use; and
The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purposes the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the
asset if either:
               •          The Company has the right to operate the asset; or
               •          The Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purposes it will be used. 

As a practical expedient, Ind AS 116 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single
arrangement. The Company has not used this practical expedient. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises of the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and estimated dilapidation costs,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently amortised using the straight-line method over the shorter of the useful life of the leased asset or the
period of lease. If ownership of the leased asset is automatically transferred at the end of the lease term or the exercise of a purchase option is reflected in the lease payments, the
right-of-use asset is amortised on a straightline basis over the expected useful life of the leased asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at commencement date, discounted using, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments.

Lease payments include fixed payments, i.e. amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantee, the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payment of penalties for terminating the lease if the lease term considered reflects that the Company shall exercise
termination option. The Company also recognises a right of use asset which comprises of amount of initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct cost incurred by the
Company and estimated dilapidation costs.

Payment made towards short term leases (leases for which non-cancellable term is 12 months or lesser) and low value assets (lease of assets worth less than ₹0.03 crores) are
recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss as rental expenses over the tenor of such leases.
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4. (b)   Leases (continued)
The following amounts are included in the Balance Sheet :

2023 2022
Current lease liabilities 100.99                         58.58                             
Non-current lease liabilities 305.26                         237.84                           
Total lease liabilities 406.25                         296.42                           

The following amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss :

2023 2022
34.22                            49.00                             

-                                * -                                 *
Income from sub-leasing of right-of-use assets 1.85                              0.45                               

2.43                              1.46                               
5.83                                                            13.87 

*less than ₹ 50,000/-
(₹ in crores)

Land Buildings Plant, machinery and 
equipments

Vehicles Computers and other 
IT assets

Total

55.36                           219.27                         115.15                           102.27                  187.07                          679.11         
-                               55.75                            63.95                             115.99                  3.16                              238.85         

(10.85)                          (38.13)                          (38.14)                            (10.31)                   (178.20)                        (275.63)       
44.51                           236.89                         140.96                           207.95                  12.03                            642.33         
(1.97)                            (73.20)                          (73.36)                            (17.11)                   (181.01)                        (346.65)       
(0.65)                            (49.54)                          (4.05)                              -                         (2.97)                             (57.21)         

-                               -                                -                                 (38.75)                   -                                (38.75)         
-                               26.66                            14.61                             2.08                       178.20                          221.55         

(2.62)                            (96.08)                          (62.80)                            (53.78)                   (5.78)                             (221.06)       
41.89                            140.81                          78.16                              154.17                   6.25                               421.27          

91.77                            339.10                          624.98                            40.50                     203.49                           1,299.84     
-                                94.35                            41.41                             96.62                     1.75                               234.13         

(29.66)                          (139.22)                        (813.41)                          (25.11)                   (8.02)                             (1,015.42)    
(6.75)                            (0.73)                             274.31                           -                         (3.38)                             263.46         

-                                (74.23)                           (12.15)                            (9.74)                      (6.78)                             (102.90)       
55.36                           219.27                         115.15                           102.27                  187.07                          679.11         
(2.29)                            (125.85)                        (209.31)                          (2.75)                      (191.05)                         (531.25)       
(0.66)                            (43.10)                           (5.79)                              -                         (3.02)                             (52.57)          
(0.21)                            (7.98)                             (17.29)                            -                         (0.67)                             (26.14)          

-                                -                                -                                  (17.21)                   -                                 (17.21)          

0.94                              48.22                            186.18                           2.14                       5.82                               243.30         
0.25                              0.44                              (27.32)                            -                         1.13                               (25.50)          

-                                55.07                            0.16                               0.71                       6.78                               62.72           
(1.97)                            (73.20)                          (73.36)                            (17.11)                   (181.01)                        (346.65)       
53.39                            146.07                          41.78                              85.16                     6.05                               332.45          

 
Note:

ii. Include assets of ₹97.82 crores capitalized during August 24, 2021 to December 31, 2021 which is pertaining to PV undertaking. (refer note 45)

(c)

2023 2022
Current lease receivables (refer note 12) 32.18                            31.54                             
Non-current lease receivables (refer note 11) 367.15                         399.01                           
Total lease receivables 399.33                         430.55                           

The following amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss :

2023 2022
Sales Revenue for finance leases -                                278.58                           

34.75                            25.90                             

-                                -                                 

(₹ in crores)

Due in 1st Year Due in 2nd Year
Due in 3rd to 5th 

Year Due beyond 5th Year

Total 
contractual 
cash flows

Finance lease receivables                              32.18                               32.53                    114.20                            220.42           399.33 

Due in 1st Year Due in 2nd Year
Due in 3rd to 5th 

Year Due beyond 5th Year

Total 
contractual 
cash flows

Finance lease receivables                              31.54                               31.82                    105.70                            261.49           430.55 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
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(₹ in crores)

(₹ in crores)

Expenses related to low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low-value assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease payment not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Expenses related to short-term leases

As at March 31,

For the year ended March 31, 

There are certain vehicles which are being given to the customers along with operations and maintenance of the same. These are accounted as finance lease as the material risks and rewards are transferred to the lessee.

The average effective interest rate contracted approximates between 5.09% to 8.10% (2022: 5.09 % to 8.10% ) per annum.

Finance income on the net investment in finance leases

The following amounts are included in the Balance Sheet :

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of finance lease receivables:

 As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31,

For the year ended March 31, 

Income relating to variable lease payments not included in the net investment in
finance leases

Right of use assets

Cost as at April 1, 2022
Additions 
Disposals/adjustments

 As at March 31, 2022

i.  There are no leases with residual value guarantees.

Cost as at March 31, 2023
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2022
Amortisation for the year
Amortisation - considered as employee cost
Disposal/adjustments
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

Cost as at April 1, 2021
Additions (refer note (ii) below)

Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (refer note 45)
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint Venture 
Disposals/adjustments
Cost as at March 31, 2022
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021
Amortisation for the year

Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Amortisation for discontinued operations 
Amortisation - considered as employee cost

Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (refer note 45)
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint Venture 
Disposal/adjustments
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5. Other Intangible assets
(a) Accounting policy

Technical know-how
Software
Product development cost

Internally generated intangible asset
Research costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Derecognition of intangible assets

(b) Intangible assets consist of the following:
(₹ in crores)

Technical 
know how

Computer 
Software

Product 
development

Total

Cost as at April 1, 2022 478.15        518.54             4,396.93         5,393.62       
86.89          29.75               1,043.08         1,159.72       

Asset fully amortised not in use -              (0.84)                (2,422.55)        (2,423.39)      
565.04        547.45             3,017.46         4,129.95       

(363.62)       (477.43)           (2,542.70)        (3,383.75)      
(41.30)         (19.68)             (695.43)           (756.41)         

Fully amortised not in use -              0.84                 2,422.55         2,423.39       
(404.92)       (496.27)           (815.58)           (1,716.77)      
160.12        51.18               2,201.88         2,413.18       

478.15        614.30             11,536.76       12,629.21     
-              25.83               1,203.39          1,229.22       

-              (82.68)              (7,886.38)        (7,969.06)      
-              (38.91)              (456.84)            (495.75)         

478.15        518.54             4,396.93          5,393.62       

(317.39)       (568.10)            (5,341.78)        (6,227.27)      
(46.23)         (19.52)              (691.14)            (756.89)         

Amortisation for discontinued operations -              (2.73)                (455.84)            (458.57)         

-              79.31               3,584.77          3,664.08       

-              33.61               361.29             394.90          
(363.62)       (477.43)            (2,542.70)        (3,383.75)      
114.54        41.11               1,854.23          2,009.87       

Cost as at March 31, 2023
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2022
Amortisation for the year

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the intangible assets as per details below:

The amortisation period for intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed at each year-end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated
as changes in accounting estimates.

Product development costs incurred on new vehicle platform, engines, transmission and new products are recognised as intangible assets,
when feasibility has been established, the Company has committed technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and
it is probable that asset will generate future economic benefits.
The cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum of directly attributable expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria to the completion of its development.
Interest cost incurred is capitalised up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for
financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset.

8 to 10 years
4 years

Estimated amortisation period

2 to 10 years

Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Product development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. Amortisation is not recorded on
product engineering in progress until development is complete.

An item of intangible assets is derecognized on disposal or when fully amortized and no longer in use. Any gain or loss arising from
derecognition of an item of intangible assets is included in the statement of profit and loss.

Cost as at March 31, 2022

Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021

Cost as at April 1, 2021

Amortisation for the year

Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint Venture 

Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

Additions
Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (refer 
note 45)
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint Venture 

Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (refer 
note 45)

Additions

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost or fair value as on the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if
any. 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
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5. Other Intangible assets (continued)
(₹ in crores)

(c)
2023 2022

Balance at the beginning 882.03             1,605.64       
Additions (refer note below) 1,057.37         700.57          
Capitalised during the year (1,159.72)        (1,229.22)      
Provision made during the year (270.38)           -                 
Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (refer note 45) -                   (190.58)         
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint Venture -                   (4.38)             
Balance at the end 509.30             882.03          

Note:

(d)

Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years Total

Projects in progress 367.01            88.91          16.20               37.18               509.30          
Projects temporarily suspended -                  -              -                   -                   -                 
As at March 31, 2023 367.01            88.91          16.20               37.18               509.30          

Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years Total

Projects in progress 404.32            87.28          72.08               48.00               611.68          
Projects temporarily suspended 2.13                 8.21             38.47               221.54             270.35          
As at March 31, 2022 406.45            95.49          110.55             269.54             882.03          

(e)

Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years Total

Projects in progress
Project 1 -                  -              -                   -                   -                 
Other Projects* 8.47                -              -                   -                   8.47               
Projects temporarily suspended
Project 1 -                  -              -                   -                   -                 
Project 2 -                  -              -                   -                   -                 

8.47                -              -                   -                   8.47               

Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years Total

Projects in progress
Project 1 97.81              -              -                   -                   97.81             
Other Projects* 18.76              -              -                   -                   18.76             
Projects temporarily suspended
Project 1 -                   -              -                   61.31               61.31             
Project 2 -                   -              -                   209.04             209.04          

116.57            -              -                   270.35             386.92          

*Individual projects less than ₹ 50 crores have been clubbed together in other projects.

Original plan is considered as that plan which is approved and on the basis of which implementation progress is evaluated. Such original
plan includes management’s estimates and assumptions w.r.t future business, economy / industry and regulatory environments.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
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As at March 31, 2023

Expected Completion schedule of intangible assets under development where cost or time overrun has exceeded original plan

Intangible assets under development For the year  ended March 31, 

Ageing of intangible assets under development
As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2022

Additions for the year ended March 31, 2022 include assets of ₹99.96 crores purchased during August 24, 2021 to December 31, 2021
which is pertaining to PV undertaking. (refer note 45)
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6. Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates measured at cost - non-current
(a) Accounting policy

(b) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates consist of the following:
(₹ in crores)

Equity shares
i) Subsidiaries
Unquoted

9,41,70,00,000    10                         9,417.00      9,417.00      
70,00,00,000       10                         Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited 784.61         743.36         
30,30,06,000       2                           224.10         224.10         

5,30,59,549         10                         254.92         434.65         
4,50,00,000         10                         45.00           0.05              

7,900                     - Tata Technologies Inc, (USA) 0.63              0.63              
1,74,15,93,442    10                         4,028.95      3,594.95      

21,83,87,096       10                         
261.69         161.70         

2,51,16,59,418    TML Holdings Pte Ltd, (Singapore) [Note 5 and 6 below] 10,158.52    10,158.52    
13,84,523             (EUR) 31.28 Tata Hispano Motors Carrocera S.A., (Spain) 61.56           61.56            

1,220                     (IDR) 8,855                   PT Tata Motors Indonesia 0.01              0.01              
2,12,000               (MAD) 1,000                   Tata Hispano Motors Carroceries Maghreb S.A., (Morocco) 57.72           57.72            

1,83,59,203         (SGD) 1 Tata Precision Industries Pte. Ltd, (Singapore) 40.53           40.53            
50,00,000             10                         19.31           19.31            

-                         -                       TMNL Motor Services Nigeria Ltd -                0.00              #
98,97,908             10                         13.00           13.00            
50,00,000             10                         

2.52              2.52              
50,00,000             10                         TML Smart City Mobility Solutions Limited 5.00              -                

25,375.07    24,929.61    
Advance towards investments -                0.01              

(171.92)        25,203.15    (219.82)        24,709.80       

ii) Associates
Quoted

29,82,214             10                         Automobile Corporation of Goa Ltd 108.22         108.22         

Unquoted
16,000                  (TK) 1,000                   NITA Co. Ltd (Bangladesh) 1.27              1.27              

4,54,28,572         10                         Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery Company Private Ltd 238.50         238.50         
5,23,33,170         10 Tata AutoComp Systems Ltd 77.47           425.46         77.47            425.46            

(iii) Joint Venture (JV) 
Unquoted

12,22,57,983       100                       Fiat India Automobiles Private Ltd 2,334.65      2,334.65         

(iv) Subsidiaries
Cumulative convertible preference shares (unquoted)

-                         -                       TMF Holdings Limited [Note 3 below] -                434.00            

Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (unquoted)
13,54,195             100 TML Business Services Ltd 13.54           13.54              

Total 27,976.80    27,917.45      
# Less than ₹ 50,000

Notes:
(1) Market  Value  of quoted  investments 214.09         278.55            
(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Description

2023 2022

Less: Provision for impairment

Jaguar Land Rover Technology and Business Services India (P) Ltd. (Formerly known as JT Special 
Vehicle (P) Ltd.)

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited 

Tata Motors Insurance Broking and Advisory Services Ltd

Brabo Robotics and Automation Ltd 

TML Business Services Limited [Note 7 below]

TMF Holdings Limited [Note 2 and 3 below]
Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Tata Marcopolo Motors Limited) [8,33,00,000 
shares acquired during the year]

TML CV Mobility Solutions Limited 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
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Number As at March 31,Face value per 
unit

(Fully Paid up)

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in Subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associates, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Tata Technologies Limited 

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between, two wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, viz., TML Distribution Company Limited (TMLD) and TML Business Services Limited (TMLBSL) and the Company,
under order issued by NCLT dated March 11, 2022, with appointed date of April 1, 2021, TMLD has been merged with TMLSBL. TMLBSL has issued 117,22,50,000 equity share of face value of ₹10 each fully paid-up
in lieu of 22,50,00,000 equity shares of ₹10 each fully paid-up held by the Company in TMLD. Further, as per the scheme, TMLBSL has done the reduction of its share capital by cancellation and extinguishment of
128,28,88,145 equity shares of ₹10 each fully paid-up aggregating to ₹1,282.89 crores and has paid ₹131.83 crores to the Company for such cancellation and extinguishment. The amount of ₹131.83 crores is
return of capital.

Includes option pricing value for call/ put option provided by the Company towards perpetual debt issued by TMF Holdings Limited.

The Company has given a letter of comfort to State Bank of India, Bahrain for USD 100 million (₹821.83 crores as on March 31, 2023) against Credit Facility given to TML Holding PTE Ltd., Singapore and a letter of
comfort to Bank of Baroda, London for GBP 100 million (₹1,016.45 crores as on March 31, 2023) against the SBLC Facility extended to TML Holding PTE Ltd., Singapore.

The Company has given a letter of comfort to Citi Corp International for USD 300 million (₹2,465.48 crores as on March 31, 2023) and USD 425 million (₹3,492.76 crores as on March 31, 2023) to TML Holding PTE
Ltd., Singapore against ECB Bonds. 

The Company has given a letter of comfort to Bank of China, Shanghai Branch for RMB 5 billion (₹5,980.75 crores as at March 31, 2023) against loan granted by the bank to Jaguar Land Rover (China) Investment
Co. Ltd.

Converted 4,34,00,000 Cumulative convertible preference shares (unquoted) of ₹ 100 each into 9,33,00,000 Equity shares of ₹10 each in the ratio of 2.15:1 issued by TMF Holdings Limited.
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7. Investments-non-current (₹ in crores)

Investment in equity shares measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Quoted

5,49,62,950      1                           Tata Steel Ltd 574.37      718.49      

Unquoted
75,000 1,000                   Tata International Ltd 162.58                     111.58         

1,383 1,000                   Tata Services Ltd 0.14                         0.14             
350 900                      The Associated Building Company Ltd 0.01                         0.01             

1,03,10,242 100 Tata Industries Ltd 198.10                     191.26         
33,600 100 Kulkarni Engineering Associates Ltd -                           -               
12,375 1,000                   Tata Sons Pvt Ltd 85.34                       95.20           

2,25,00,001 10 Haldia Petrochemicals Ltd 125.78                     199.80         
2,40,000 10 Oriental Floratech (India) Pvt. Ltd -                           -               

43,26,651 15                        Tata Capital Ltd 58.45                       22.41           
50,000 10 NICCO Jubilee Park Ltd. 0.05                         630.45      0.05             620.45      

Total 1,204.82   1,338.94   

Note:
a) Investment in equity shares measured at fair value through other comprehensive income also include: (Amount in ₹)

50 5 Jamshedpur Co-operative Stores Ltd. 250                          250            
16,56,517   (M$)        1 Tatab Industries Sdn. Bhd., (Malaysia) 1                               1                

4 25000 ICICI Money Multiplier Bond 1                               1                
100 10 Optel Telecommunications 1,995                       1,995        

(₹ in crores)
b)

(1) Book Value of quoted investments        574.37        718.49 
(2) Book Value of unquoted investments 630.45      620.45      
(3) Market Value of quoted investments 574.37      718.49      

8. Investments-current

Unquoted
-                      -                       3,142.96   5,143.08   

Total 3,142.96   5,143.08   

Note:
(₹ in crores)

2023
Book Value of unquoted investments     3,142.96 5,143.08   

As at March 31,
2022

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022

Mutual funds

Investments in Mutual funds measured at Fair value through profit and loss
2023 2022

Number Face value per 
unit

Description As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Number

Description

Face value per 
unit

(Fully Paid up)

Number Face value per 
unit

(Fully Paid up)

As at March 31,Description

2023 2022

20222023

As at March 31,
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(₹ in crores)
9. Loans and advances- non current

Unsecured :
(a) Loans to employees, considered good 34.63       12.01       
(b) Loan to subsidiaries

Considered good 57.04        12.04        
Credit impaired 607.26     607.26      

664.30     619.30      
Less : Allowances for credit impaired balances (607.26)    57.04       (607.26)    12.04       

(c) Dues from subsidiary companies, credit impaired
Tata Hispano Motors Carrocera S.A. 53.74        53.74        

Less : Allowances for credit impaired balances (53.74)      -           (53.74)      -           
(d) Others

Considered good 22.73        24.38        
Credit impaired -            2.60          

22.73        26.98        
Less : Allowances for credit impaired balances -            22.73       (2.60)         24.38       

          Total 114.40    48.43       

10. Loans and advances- current

Secured :
Finance receivables -           13.42       

Unsecured :
(a) Advances and other receivables 114.52    98.52       

(b) Intercorporate deposits 
      Considered good 15.00       -           

(c) Dues from subsidiary companies (Note below)
     Considered good 2.77          27.43        
     Credit impaired -            0.20          

2.77          27.63        
     Less : Allowances for credit impaired balances -            2.77         (0.20)         27.43       

          Total 132.29    139.37     

Note:

Dues from subsidiary company:
(a) -           19.69       
(b) -           5.03         
(c) Tata Motors (SA) (Proprietary) Ltd 1.11         1.08         
(d) Tata Motors Nigeria Ltd -           0.20         
(e) Jaguar Land Rover Ltd 0.06         0.67         
(f) Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited -           0.44         
(g) Tata Motors Finance Solutions Ltd 0.01         -           
(h) TML Smart City Mobility Solutions Ltd 1.17         -           
(i) TML Smart City Mobility Solutions J&K Private Ltd 0.22         -           
(j) TML CV Mobility Solutions Limited 0.20         0.52         

2.77         27.63       

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022

2023 2022

TML Business Services Ltd 

(net of allowances for credit impaired balances of ₹51.90 crores and ₹72.02 crores as at March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively)

(net of allowances for credit impaired balances of ₹5.25 crores and ₹5.25 crores as at March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively)

2023 2022

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited 
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(₹ in crores)
11. Other financial assets - non-current

2023 2022
(a) Derivative financial instruments 902.68                675.60                  
(b) Restricted deposits 5.21                     8.62                      
(c) Finance lease receivable 367.15                399.01                  
(d) Government incentives 1,075.35             843.66                  
(e) Recoverable from suppliers 18.32                  32.26                    
(f) Security deposits (net of allowances for credit impaired balances 35.19                  32.38                    

of ₹1.15 crores and ₹1.15 crores as at March 31, 2023 and 
March 31, 2022, respectively)

(g) Others 1.33                     0.99                      
          Total 2,405.23             1,992.52              

12. Other financial assets - current
2023 2022

(a) Derivative financial instruments 38.72                  45.50                    
(b) Interest accrued on loans and deposits 2.17                     7.51                      
(c) Deposit with financial institutions -                       300.00                  
(d) Finance lease receivable 32.18                  31.54                    
(e) Government incentives 151.57                348.54                  
(f) Recoverable from suppliers 28.15                  74.93                    
(g) Security deposits 2.46                     1.49                      

          Total 255.25                809.51                  

13. Other non-current assets
2023 2022

(a) Capital advances 60.13                  76.78                    
(b)

479.26                494.39                  

(c) Recoverable from Insurance companies 17.45                  85.86                    
(d) Employee benefits 31.91                  -                        
(d) Others 8.07                     5.21                      

          Total 596.82                662.24                  

14. Other current assets
2023 2022

(a) Advance to suppliers and contractors 730.48                514.39                  

(b) 331.51                392.52                  

(c) Prepaid expenses 112.13                161.80                  
(d) Recoverable from Insurance companies 3.33                     0.23                      
(e) Employee benefits 2.06                     1.18                      
(f) Others 39.67                  21.83                    

          Total 1,219.18             1,091.95              

Taxes recoverable, statutory deposits and dues from government    (net 
of allowances for credit impaired balances of ₹84.02 crores and ₹83.66 
crores as at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively)

(net of allowances for credit impaired balances of ₹41.18 crores and 
₹39.34 crores as at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively)

                 As at March 31,

TATA MOTORS LIMITED

                 As at March 31,

Taxes recoverable, statutory deposits and dues from government 
(net of allowances for credit impaired balances of ₹31.66 crores and 
₹31.66 crores as at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively)

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

                 As at March 31,

                 As at March 31,
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15. Inventories (₹ in crores)
(a) Accounting policy

(₹ in crores)
(b) Inventories consist of the following:

2023 2022
(a) Raw materials and components 1,096.27            1,263.95      
(b) Work-in-progress 299.33               427.66          
(c) Finished goods 1,430.52            1,786.87      
(d) Stores and spare parts 136.33               135.22          
(e) Consumable tools 19.16                 21.15            
(f) Goods-in-transit - Raw materials and components 46.29                 83.64            

          Total 3,027.90            3,718.49      

16. Trade receivables (unsecured)
2023 2022

Receivables considered good 2,307.72            2,111.78      
Credit impaired receivables 554.93               430.24          

2,862.65            2,542.02      
Less : Allowance for credit impaired receivables (554.93)              (430.24)        
          Total 2,307.72            2,111.78      

17. Allowance for trade receivables, loans and other receivables

2023 2022
Balance at the beginning 1,325.97            1,511.80      
Allowances made during the year * 105.32               42.71            
Provision for loan/intercorporate deposits  given to subsidiary companies -                     4.04              
Written off (0.20)                  (62.89)          
Transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (refer note 45) -                     (169.69)        
Balance at the end 1,431.09            1,325.97      

* Includes ₹33.77 crores netted off in revenue (₹32.26 crores for the year ended March 31, 2022)

18. Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Accounting policy

(b) Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
2023 2022

(a) Cash on hand 0.04                   0.03              
(b) Cheques on hand 154.54               110.28          
(c) Balances with banks 626.85               330.63          
(d) Deposits with banks 340.00               2,009.29      

1,121.43            2,450.23      

19. Other bank balances
2023 2022

With upto 12 months maturity:
(a) Earmarked balances with banks (refer note below) 293.17               155.15          
(b) Bank deposits 0.05                   0.05              

          Total 293.22               155.20          

Note:
Earmarked balances with banks as at March 31, 2023 of ₹270.00 crores (as at March 31, 2022 ₹135.00 crores) is held as security in relation
to repayment of borrowings.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at March 31, 

As at March 31, 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, components and consumables are ascertained on a
moving weighted average basis. Cost, including fixed and variable production overheads, are allocated to work-in-progress and finished
goods determined on a full absorption cost basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of up to three
month that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

During the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded inventory write-down expenses of ₹32.21 crores and ₹25.25 
crores, respectively.

For the year  ended March 31, 

Cost of inventories (including cost of purchased products) recognized as expense during the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022
amounted to ₹ 54,083.75 crores and ₹ 43,334.20 crores, respectively.

As at March 31, 

As at March 31, 
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(₹ in crores)
20. Equity Share Capital

2023 2022
(a) Authorised:

(i) 400,00,00,000  Ordinary shares of ₹2 each 800.00                     800.00              
(as at March 31, 2022: 400,00,00,000 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each)

(ii) 100,00,00,000  'A' Ordinary shares of ₹2 each 200.00                     200.00              
(as at March 31, 2022: 100 ,00,00,000 ‘A’ Ordinary shares of ₹2 each)

(iii) 30,00,00,000  Convertible Cumulative Preference shares of ₹100 each 3,000.00                  3,000.00           
(as at March 31, 2022: 30,00,00,000 shares of ₹100 each)
          Total 4,000.00                  4,000.00           

(b) Issued: [Note (h)]
(i) 3,32,18,36,884 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each 664.37                     664.23              

(as at March 31, 2022: 3,32,11,54,566 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each)
(ii) 50,87,36,110  'A' Ordinary shares of ₹2 each 101.75                     101.75              

(as at March 31, 2022: 50,87,36,110 ‘A’ Ordinary shares of ₹2 each)
          Total 766.12                     765.98              

(c) Subscribed and called up: [Note (h)]
(i) 3,32,13,44,325 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each 664.27                     664.13              

(as at March 31, 2022: 3,32,06,62,007 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each)
(ii) 50,85,02,896  'A' Ordinary shares of ₹2 each 101.70                     101.70              

(as at March 31, 2022: 50,85,02,896 ‘A’ Ordinary shares of ₹2 each)
765.97                     765.83              

(d) Calls unpaid - Ordinary shares
(0.00)                        * (0.00)                  *

(e) Paid-up (c+d): 765.97                     765.83              
(f) Forfeited - Ordinary shares 0.05                          0.05                   

Total (e+f) 766.02                     765.88              

(g) The movement of number of shares and share capital
(No. of shares) (₹ in crores) (No. of shares) (₹ in crores)

(i) Ordinary shares
Balance as at April 1 332,06,62,007 664.13     332,03,07,765 664.06              
Add: Allotment of shares on exercise of stock options by employees 6,82,318                0.14          3,54,242                  0.07                   
Balance as at March 31 332,13,44,325 664.27     332,06,62,007 664.13              

(ii) 'A' Ordinary shares
Balance as at April 1 50,85,02,896 101.70     50,85,02,896 101.70              
Balance as at March 31 50,85,02,896 101.70     50,85,02,896 101.70              

*less than ₹ 50,000/-

(h)

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The entitlements to 4,92,559 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each (as at March 31, 2022 : 4,92,559 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each) and 2,33,214 'A' Ordinary shares of ₹2 each
(as at March 31, 2022: 2,33,214 'A' Ordinary shares of ₹2 each) are subject matter of various suits filed in the courts / forums by third parties for which final order
is awaited and hence kept in abeyance.

Year ended March 31, 2022Year ended March 31, 2023

310 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each (₹1 outstanding on each) and 260 Ordinary 
shares of ₹2 each (₹0.50 outstanding on each) 

As at March 31, 

(as at March 31, 2022: 310 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each (₹1 outstanding on 
each) and 260 Ordinary shares of ₹2 each (₹0.50 outstanding on each) 
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(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :
(i) Ordinary shares and ‘A’ Ordinary shares both of ₹2 each :

•

•

•

(ii) American Depository Shares (ADSs) and Global Depository Shares (GDSs) :

•

(j) Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the issued share capital :

(i) Ordinary shares :
(a) Tata Sons Private Limited 43.72% 1,45,21,13,801 43.73% 1,45,21,13,801
(b) Life Insurance Corporation Of India 5.21% 17,30,87,356              4.75% 15,77,82,041     
(c) Citibank N.A. as Depository * * # 17,09,78,800 

(ii) 'A' Ordinary shares :
(a) Tata Sons Private Limited 7.57% 3,85,11,281                7.57% 3,85,11,281 
(b) ICICI Prudential Equity & Debt Fund 20.49% 10,41,76,790              15.86% 8,06,52,318 

# held by Citibank, N.A. as depository for American Depository Receipts (ADRs) and Global Depository Receipts (GDRs)
* Less than 5%

(k) Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years
(a)
(b) The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
(c) The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.

(l) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Promoter name

(i) Ordinary shares :
Tata Sons Private Limited 1,45,21,13,801 43.72% 1,45,21,13,801 43.73% -                      

(ii) 'A' Ordinary shares :
Tata Sons Private Limited 3,85,11,281            7.57% 3,85,11,281                7.57% -                      

Promoter name

(i) Ordinary shares :
Tata Sons Private Limited 1,45,21,13,801 43.73% 1,45,21,13,801 43.73% -                      

(ii) 'A' Ordinary shares :
Tata Sons Private Limited 3,85,11,281            7.57% 3,85,11,281                7.57% -                      

No. of Shares No. of Shares

As at March 31, 

% of Issued 
Share Capital

% of Issued
Share Capital

The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash.

2023
As at March 31, % change during 

the year2022
No. of Shares % of Issued 

Share Capital

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The holders of ‘A’ Ordinary
shares shall be entitled to receive dividend for each financial year at five percentage point more than the aggregate rate of dividend declared on Ordinary shares
for that financial year.
In the event of liquidation, the shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion
to their shareholdings.

The Company has two classes of shares – the Ordinary shares and the ‘A’ Ordinary shares both of ₹2 each (together referred to as shares). In respect of every
Ordinary share (whether fully or partly paid), voting rights shall be in the same proportion as the capital paid up on such Ordinary share bears to the total paid up
Ordinary share capital of the Company. In case of every ‘A’ Ordinary share, if any resolution is put to vote on a poll or by postal ballot at any general meeting of
shareholders, the holder shall be entitled to one vote for every ten ‘A’ Ordinary shares held as per the terms of its issue and if a resolution is put to vote on a show
of hands, the holder of ‘A’ Ordinary shares shall be entitled to the same number of votes as available to holders of Ordinary shares.

The Company notified the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) on November 9, 2022 of its intent to: (i) voluntarily delist its American Depositary Shares (the
“ADSs”), each representing five (5) Ordinary Shares of the Company, par value of ₹2 per share (the “Ordinary Shares”), from the NYSE; (ii) deregister such ADSs, its
Ordinary Shares underlying such ADSs, and its ‘A’ Ordinary Shares, par value of ₹2 per share, issued in connection with the 2015 rights offering by the Company
(“‘A’ Ordinary Shares”, and together with the ADSs and the Ordinary Shares underlying such ADSs, the “Securities”) from the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”); and (iii) terminate its reporting obligations under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). 
Accordingly, the Company filled a Form 25 with the SEC on January 13, 2023 to delist its ADSs from the NYSE and the last trading day of the ADSs on the NYSE was
January 23, 2023. Once the Company satisfies the conditions for deregistration, the Company will file a Form 15F with the SEC to deregister the Securities and to
terminate its reporting obligations under the Exchange Act. Thereafter, all the Company’s reporting obligations under the Exchange Act will be suspended. The
deregistration and termination of its reporting obligations under the Exchange Act is effective ninety (90) days after filing of the Company’s Form 15F.

No. of Shares % of Issued 
Share Capital

As at March 31, % change during 
the year2022 2021

No. of Shares % of Issued 
Share Capital

No. of Shares % of Issued 
Share Capital
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21. A) Other components of equity
(a) The movement of Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income is as follows:

(₹ in crores)

2022
Balance at the beginning 606.03                  287.70                 
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (134.12)                371.29                 
Income tax relating to loss/gain arising on other comprehensive income where applicable 39.47                    (52.96)                 
Balance at the end 511.38                  606.03                 

(b) The movement of Hedging reserve is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at the beginning (13.80)                   (101.17)               
Gain/(loss) recognised on cash flow hedges 71.59                    136.87                 
Income tax relating to gain/(loss) recognised on cash flow hedges (20.09)                   (47.83)                 
(Gain)/loss reclassified to profit or loss 0.90                      (2.57)                    
Income tax relating to (gain)/loss reclassified to profit or loss (0.23)                     0.90                     
Balance at the end 38.37                    (13.80)                 

(c) The movement of Cost of Hedging reserve is as follows: 

2023 2022
Balance at the beginning (87.12)                   (0.80)                    
Gain/(loss) recognised on cash flow hedges (306.09)                (133.90)               
Income tax relating to gain/(loss) recognised on cash flow hedges 77.03                    46.78                   
(Gain)/loss reclassified to profit and loss 133.90                  1.22                     
Income tax relating to gain/(loss) reclassified to profit and loss (46.78)                   (0.42)                    
Balance at the end (229.06)                (87.12)                 

(d) Summary of Other components of equity:

2022
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 511.38                  606.03                 
Hedging reserve 38.37                    (13.80)                 
Cost of hedging reserve (229.06)                (87.12)                 
Total 320.69                  505.11                 

(B) Notes to reserves
a) Capital redemption reserve

b) Debenture redemption reserve (DRR)

c) Securities premium
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium.
d) Retained earnings

f) Share-based payments reserve
Share-based payments reserve represents amount of fair value, as on the date of grant, of unvested options and vested options not exercised till date,
that have been recognised as expense in the statement of profit and loss till date.

The Companies Act requires that where a company issues debentures, it shall create a debenture redemption reserve out of profits of the Company
available for payment of dividend. The company is required to maintain a Debenture Redemption Reserve of 25% of the value of debentures issued, either
by a public issue or on a private placement basis. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised by the Company except
to redeem debentures. No DRR is required for debentures issued after August 16, 2019.

Year ended March 31,
2023

For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of ₹ 2.00 per share on Ordinary shares and ₹ 2.10 per share 
on 'A' Ordinary shares subject to approval from shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and if approved, would result in a cash outflow of ₹ 771.07
crores (March 31, 2022: Nil).

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Indian Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act”) requires that where a company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities
premium account, a sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased shall be transferred to a capital redemption reserve account and details of
such transfer shall be disclosed in the balance sheet. The capital redemption reserve account may be applied by the Company, in paying up unissued
shares of the company to be issued to shareholders of the company as fully paid bonus shares. Tata Motors Limited established this reserve pursuant to
the redemption of preference shares issued in earlier years.

e) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the excess of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the consideration paid/received or vice versa in a common control
sale/transfer of business/investment.

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, add/(less) any transfers from/(to) general reserve, securities premium and
debenture redemption reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined
benefit obligations, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss. 

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,
2023

e) Dividends
Any dividend declared by Tata Motors Limited is based on the profits available for distribution as reported in the statutory financial statements of Tata
Motors Limited (standalone) prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India or Ind AS. Indian law permits the declaration
and payment of dividend out of profits for the year or previous financial year(s) as stated in the statutory financial statements of Tata Motors Limited
(Standalone) prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India, or Ind AS after providing for depreciation in accordance with
the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act. However, in the absence of the said profits, it may declare dividend out of free reserves, subject to
certain conditions as prescribed under the Companies (Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, in certain years the net income
reported in this Financial Statements may not be fully distributable.
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(₹ in crores)
22. Long-term borrowings

2023
Secured:
(a)

-                       998.64             
(b) Term loans:

(i) from financial institutions -                       1,345.11          
(ii) others (refer note 23 I (i) (a) below) 46.31                   40.64                

46.31                   2,384.39          

Unsecured:
(a)

2,096.88             2,895.88          
(b) Term loan from banks

(i)
1,850.00             2,883.33          

(ii) External commercial borrowings (ECB) 1,943.80             1,788.35          
(at floating interest rate) (refer note 23 I (iv) below)

(c) Senior Notes (refer note 23 I (iii) below) 4,508.71             4,150.79          
10,399.39           11,718.35        

          Total 10,445.70           14,102.74        

23. Short-term borrowings
2023

Secured:
Loans from banks (refer note II (i) below) -                       568.14             

-                       568.14             

Unsecured:
(a) Loans from banks (refer note II (i) below) -                       75.80                
(b) 5,398.75             4,466.00          

(c) Commercial paper (refer note II (iii) below) -                       895.03             
(d) Collaterized debt obligations (refer note II (iv) below) 528.17                 -                    

5,926.92             5,436.83          

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note below) 2,499.82             3,124.94          
          Total 8,426.74             9,129.91          

Note:
Details of Current maturities of long-term borrowings : 2023
(i) Non Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) (refer note  I (ii) below) 800.00                 899.94             
(ii) Non Convertible Debentures (Secured) (refer note  I (ii) below) 999.82                 -                    
(iii) Loans from financial institutions (Secured) -                       1,050.00          
(iv) Buyers Credit (Capex) (Unsecured) (refer note  I (v) below) 700.00                 1,175.00          

2,499.82             3,124.94          

I. Information regarding long-term borrowings
(i) 

(a)

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022

2022
                 As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Privately placed Non-Convertible Debentures (refer
note 23 I (ii) below)

Privately placed Non-Convertible Debentures (refer 
note 23 I (ii) below)

Buyer's line of credit (at floating interest rate) (refer 
note 23 I (v) below)

The term loan of ₹112.82 crores (recorded in books at ₹46.30 crores) is due for repayment from the quarter
ending June 30, 2030 to December 31, 2037, along with a simple interest of 0.01% p.a. The loan is secured by
bank guarantee for the due performance of the conditions as per the terms of the agreement.

Inter corporate deposits from subsidiaries and associates (refer note II (ii) 
below)

Nature of security (on loans including interest accrued thereon) :

                 As at March 31,
2022
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(ii) Schedule of repayment and redemption for Non-Convertible Debentures :
(₹ in crores)

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) Redeemable on
As at March 31, 

2023
Secured :
8.80% Non-Convertible Debentures (2023) May 26, 2023 1,000.00 
Debt issue cost (0.18)
Total 999.82 

Unsecured : Redeemable on
As at March 31, 

2023
8.50% Non-Convertible Debentures (2027) January 29, 2027 250.00 
8.50% Non-Convertible Debentures (2026) December 30, 2026 250.00 
6.60% Non-Convertible Debentures (2026) May 29, 2026 500.00 
6.95% Non-Convertible Debentures (2026) March 31, 2026 500.00 

September 12, 2024 200.00 
August 20, 2024 300.00 

9.54% Non-Convertible Debentures (2024) June 28, 2024 100.00 
November 10, 2023 400.00 *

9.31% Non-Convertible Debentures (2023) September 29, 2023 200.00 *
9.27% Non-Convertible Debentures (2023) June 30, 2023 200.00 *
Debt issue cost (3.12)
Total 2,896.88 

* Classified as Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 23) being maturity before March 31, 2024.

(iii)
Redeemable on Amount

2023 2022

5.750% Senior Notes October 30, 2024 USD 250 2,049.47           1,886.33               
5.875% Senior Notes May 20, 2025 USD 300 2,459.24           2,264.46               

4,508.71           4,150.79               

(iv)

(v)

II. Information regarding short-term borrowings
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

III. Collateral

Assets pledged as collateral/security against borrowings 2023 2022
Inventory -                     648.00                   
Property, plant and equipment 1,250.00           4,250.00               
Total 1,250.00           4,898.00               

(i)

(₹ in crores)

2023 2022

(i) Incremental borrowing done (a) -                     2,000.00               
(ii) -                     500.00                   
(iii) -                     1,000.00               
(iv) -                     -                         
(v) Reasons for short fall, if any, in mandatory borrowings through debt securities

Loan from bank is availed as per the requirements of the Company at interest rates mutually agreed at the time of drawing the facility with interest rates varying from 5.90% -
7.00%

As at March 31,
(₹ in crores)

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

-                     

Actual borrowings done through debt securities (c)
Shortfall in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities, if any (d) = (b) - (c)

Annual disclosure for reporting of fund raising of issuance of Debt Securities by Large Corporate :

Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities (b) = (25% of a)

-                         

Year ended March 31,

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9.77% Non-Convertible Debentures (2024) 
9.81% Non-Convertible Debentures (2024) 

9.35% Non-Convertible Debentures (2023) 

The 8.80% Non-convertible Debentures are secured by a charge over Company's leasehold land together with building structures, plant and machinery, fixtures and other
assets.

Commercial paper are unsecured short-term papers issued at discount bearing no coupon interest. The yield on commercial paper issued by the Company ranges from 4.58%
to 4.67%

Inter-corporate deposits from subsidiaries and associates are unsecured bearing interest rate at 5% to 7.05%.

The external commercial borrowings of USD 250 million (₹1,943.80 crores)  bearing floating interest rate of 3 months LIBOR+128bps is due for repayment in June 2025.

Schedule of repayment of Senior Notes:

Loans, cash credits, overdrafts and buyers line of credit from banks bearing fixed interest rate from 4.00% to 7.45% are secured by hypothecation of existing current assets of
the Company viz. stock of raw materials, stock in process, semi-finished goods, stores and spares not relating to plant and machinery (consumable stores and spares), bills
receivable and book debts including receivable from hire purchase / leasing and all other moveable current assets except cash and bank balances, loans and advances of the
Company both present and future.

(₹ in crores)
As at March 31,Currency

(in million)

The buyer's line of credit from banks bearing floating interest ranging from 6.30% to 8.80%, amounting to ₹1,850.00 crores is repayable within a maximum period of
seven years from the drawdown dates. All the repayments are due from period ending September 30, 2024 to November 30, 2026. The Buyer’s line of credit of ₹700.00 
crores classified under Short Term Borrowings-current being maturity before March 31, 2024.
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V. Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities (₹ in crores)

Short-term 
borrowings

 Long-term 
borrowings 

*  Total 

Balance at April 1, 2021 2,542.50          19,206.22           21,748.72        
Proceeds from issuance of debt 5,137.27          1,999.79              7,137.06          
Repayment of financing (1,666.02)         (3,482.07)            (5,148.09)        
Foreign exchange -                    211.00                 211.00             
Amortisation / EIR adjustments of prepaid borrowings (net) 3.72                  (163.70)                (159.98)            
Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to Joint Venture (12.50)              (543.56)                (556.06)            
Balance at March 31, 2022 6,004.97          17,227.68           23,232.65        

Balance at March 31, 2022            6,004.97             17,227.68         23,232.65 
Proceeds from issuance of debt 52.35                                     8.99                 61.34 
Repayment of financing             (111.33)             (4,808.33)          (4,919.66)
Foreign exchange                        -                    503.39               503.39 
Amortisation / EIR adjustments of prepaid borrowings (net)               (19.07)                     13.79                 (5.28)
Balance at March 31, 2023 5,926.92          12,945.52           18,872.44       

* includes current maturities of long term borrowings 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
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24. Trade payables
(₹ in crores)

Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed dues -               -               -             -                         -               -                
(b) Undisputed dues 88.04           22.26           4.25           0.12                       -               114.67          

Total 88.04           22.26           4.25           0.12                       -               114.67          

Outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed dues -               -               0.01           -                         0.02             0.03              
(b) Undisputed dues 4,866.87      2,102.78      51.91         16.94                    9.40             7,047.90      

Total 4,866.87      2,102.78      51.92         16.94                    9.42             7,047.93      

Balance as at March 31, 2023       4,954.91       2,125.04          56.17                      17.06               9.42        7,162.60 

Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed dues -               -               -             -                         -               -                
(b) Undisputed dues 87.17           40.55           2.00           5.69                       10.70           146.11          

Total 87.17           40.55           2.00           5.69                       10.70           146.11          

Outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed dues -               -               -             0.09                       -               0.09              
(b) Undisputed dues 4,886.68      1,029.13      8.44           5.25                       26.40           5,955.90      

Total 4,886.68      1,029.13      8.44           5.34                       26.40           5,955.99      

Balance as at March 31, 2022       4,973.85       1,069.68          10.44                      11.03             37.10        6,102.10 

25. Other financial liabilities – non-current
2023 2022

(a) Derivative financial instruments 142.03                  77.00            
(b) Liability towards employee separation scheme 89.01                    109.50          
(c) Option premium payable 122.79                  209.28          
(d) Others 60.61                    64.59            

Total 414.44                  460.37          

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Not due Overdue
Total

                 As at March 31,

Not due Overdue
Total
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(₹ in crores)
26. Other financial liabilities – current

2023 2022
(a) 303.09             348.48             
(b) Liability for capital expenditure (refer note below) 372.53             119.38             
(c) Deposits and retention money 433.45             452.06             
(d) 40.95                2.79                  
(e)

(i) Unpaid dividends 1.48                  1.48                  
(ii) Unpaid debentures and interest thereon 0.18                  0.18                  

(f) Liability towards employee separation scheme 24.12                29.18               
(g) Option premium payable 104.14             95.02               
(h) 20.24                64.69               

          Total 1,300.18          1,113.26          

Note:

27. Provisions
(a) Accounting policy

Product warranty expenses

(b) Provisions-non current
(₹ in crores)

2023 2022
(a) 871.80             771.45             
(b) 716.95             702.66             

          TotalTotal 1,588.75          1,474.11          

(c) Provisions-current

2023 2022
(a) 389.84             572.96             
(b) 14.53                11.85               
(c) 4.52                  23.25               

Total 408.89             608.06             
Note:
Warranty provision movement

Year ended 
March 31, 2023

Warranty
1,275.62          
1,059.99          

(1,104.32)        
(124.50)            

Balance at the end 1,106.79          
Current 389.84             
Non-current 716.95             

                 As at March 31,

Provision used during the year

Employee benefits obligations
Warranty

Impact of discounting

Warranty

Others

Balance at the beginning
Provision made during the year

Employee benefits obligations

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liability towards Investors Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 not due

Derivative financial instruments

                 As at March 31,

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

                 As at March 31,

Estimates are made of the expected reimbursement claim based upon historical levels of recoveries from supplier, adjusted for inflation and applied to
the population of vehicles under warranty as on Balance Sheet date. Supplier reimbursements are recognised as separate asset.

Provision for onerous obligations
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the contract. It is recognized when the Company has entered into a binding legal agreement for the
purchase of components from suppliers that exceeds the benefits from the expected future use of the components and the Company sells the finished
goods using the components at a loss.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money ismaterial, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.

The estimated liability for product warranties is recognised when products are sold or when new warranty programmes are initiated. These estimates
are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible
future warranty claims, customer goodwill and recall complaints. The timing of outflows will vary depending on when warranty claim will arise, being
typically up to six years. The Company also has back-to-back contractual arrangement with its suppliers in the event that a vehicle fault is proven to be a
supplier’s fault.

Others

Includes ₹19.54 crores (₹21.49 crores as at March 31, 2022) outstanding towards principal and interest provision on dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises as per MSMED ACT 2006.
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28. Income taxes

(a) Accounting policy

(b)
(₹ in crores)

2023 2022
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,254.80           (1,640.05)     
Profit/(Loss) before tax from discontinued operations -                     392.51          
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,254.80           (1,247.54)     

315.81              (440.02)        
1.15                   (244.31)        

67.61                 47.41            
(1,757.24)         -                

Deferred tax assets recognised on Long term capital loss (refer note 2 below) (150.48)             -                
(364.72)             (585.31)        

-                     (0.88)             
292.30              -                

Profit on Sale of PV undertaking -                     1,282.92      
122.24              83.51            

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss (1,473.33)         143.32          

Note:
(1)

(2)

The company has opted for the New Tax Regime inserted by section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Act”) and enacted by the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019 ("the Ordinance") which is applicable from Financial year beginning April 1, 2019. It has accordingly applied the tax rate as applicable under the
provision of section 115BAA of the Act, in the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss except when they relate to items
that are recognised outside of profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case tax is also recognised outside profit and
loss. Current income taxes are determined based on respective taxable income of each taxable entity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed
separately for each taxable entity. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is
based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards can be utilised. 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company recognised Deferred Tax Assets on previously unrecognised unused unabsorbed depreciation and long term
capital losses incurred in the current year based on the probability of sufficient taxable profit in future periods, mostly those arising from planned divestments
which will yield capital gains against which such unabsorbed depreciation and capital loss will be set off. Accordingly, ₹1,615.42 Crores deferred tax has been
recognised as at March 31, 2023.

Impact of change in rates on moving to new tax regime (refer note 1 and 2 below)

Deferred tax assets recognised on Unabsorbed Depreciation and others (refer note 2 below)

Income tax expense at tax rates applicable to individual entities

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Utilisation/credit of unrecognised tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and other tax benefits

Undistributed earnings of joint operations
Provision/reversal for loan given to/investment in/cost of closure of subsidiary companies

The reconciliation of income tax expense calculated as per tax rates applicable to individual entities with income tax expense is as follows:

Year ended March 31,

Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences arising from interests in joint arrangements are not recognised if the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Others

Profit on sale of investments in a subsidiary company and other investments
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28. Income taxes (continued)
(₹ in crores)

(c) Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:
Opening 
balance

Impact of change in 
tax rates recognised 

in statement of 
profit and loss (Refer 

Note 28 (b) (1)

Recognised in 
statement of 

profit and loss

Recognised 
in/reclassified 

from OCI

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax assets:
Unabsorbed depreciation 2,221.74     (873.80)                        1,485.39         -                     2,833.33      
Other tax losses - Long term capital loss -                -                                150.49             -                     150.49         
Expenses deductible in future years:
- provisions, allowances for doubtful receivables and others 404.47         (113.05)                        22.78               -                     314.20         
Compensated absences and retirement benefits 158.29         (42.35)                          24.90               (4.51)                 136.33         
Derivative financial instruments 106.48         (29.78)                          108.51             9.93                   195.14         
Unrealised profit on inventory (0.84)            -                                (0.97)                -                     (1.81)            
Others 100.69         (27.80)                          (2.74)                -                     70.15           
Total deferred tax assets 2,990.83     (1,086.78)                    1,788.36         5.42                   3,697.83      
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 2,075.35     (564.86)                        33.42               -                     1,543.91      
Intangible assets 787.61         (220.62)                        (24.72)              -                     542.27         
Undistributed earnings in joint operations 90.93           40.07                            8.13                 * -                     139.13         
Others 210.67         (49.07)                          (75.70)              (39.47)               46.42           
Total deferred tax liabilities 3,164.56     (794.48)                        (58.87)              (39.47)               2,271.73      
Net Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (173.73)       (292.30)                        1,847.23         44.89                1,426.10      
Deferred tax assets 1,477.26      
Deferred tax liabilities 51.16           

* Net of ₹ 59.48 crores reversed on dividend distribution by Joint Operation.

As at March 31, 2023 unrecognised deferred tax assets expire unutilised based on the year of origination as follows:

March 31, (₹ in crores)
2025 418.88         
2027 306.01         
2028 829.14         
Thereafter 456.26         

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:
(₹ in crores)

Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in profit and 

loss

Recognised 
in/reclassified from 

OCI

Adjustments 
due to 

conversion of 
Joint 

Operation to 
Joint Venture

Movement 
due to assets 
and liabilities 
transferred to   
Tata Motors 
Passenger 

Vehicles Ltd

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax assets:
Unabsorbed depreciation 2454.41 (115.18)       -                                (40.09)              (77.40)               2,221.74      
Business loss carry forwards 1715.83 13.30           -                                -                    (1,729.13)         -                
Expenses deductible in future years: -                
- provisions, allowances for doubtful receivables and others 488.57 (11.09)          -                                (0.68)                (72.33)               404.47         
Compensated absences and retirement benefits 159.35 (21.51)          20.64                            (0.19)                -                     158.29         
Minimum alternate tax carry-forward 0.77 -                -                                -                    -                     0.77              
Derivative financial instruments 119.9 (12.85)          (0.57)                             -                    -                     106.48         
Unrealised profit on inventory 2.97 1.10             -                                (4.91)                -                     (0.84)            
Others 119.59 (2.37)            -                                (16.05)              (1.25)                 99.92           
Total deferred tax assets 5,061.39     (148.60)       20.07                            (61.92)              (1,880.11)         2,990.83      
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 2603.99 44.42           -                                (55.55)              (517.52)             2,075.35      
Intangible assets 2451.61 (300.13)       -                                (1.28)                (1,362.59)         787.61         
Undistributed earnings in joint operations 222.28 47.41           -                                (178.76)           -                     90.93           
Others 50.01 107.70         52.97                            -                    -                     210.67         
Total deferred tax liabilities 5,327.89     (100.60)       52.97                            (235.59)           (1,880.11)         3,164.55      
Deferred tax liabilities (266.50)       (48.00)          (32.90)                          173.67             -                     (173.72)        

As at March 31, 2023, unrecognised deferred tax assets amount to ₹2,010.29 crores which can be carried forward to a specified period. These relate primarily to other
deductible temporary differences and business losses. The deferred tax asset has not been recognised on the basis that its recovery is not probable in the foreseeable future.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
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(₹ in crores)
29. Other non-current liabilities

2023 2022
(a) Contract liabilities (note (a) below) 637.58                  430.95               
(b) Government incentives 23.23                    32.81                  
(c) Employee Benefit Obligations - Funded 20.35                    39.45                  
(d) Others 10.92                    10.92                  

Total 692.08                  514.13               

30. Other current liabilities

2023 2022
(a) Contract liabilities (note (a) below) 1,022.84               922.20               
(b) 1,263.05               933.09               
(c) Government incentives (note (b) below) 178.09                  153.84               
(d) Others 47.10                    38.14                  

Total 2,511.08               2,047.27            

Note:

(a) 2023 2022
               1,353.15 1,452.35            
                 (498.54) (363.24)              

Assets transferred to Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited                             -   (383.84)              
                   881.12 800.00               

Amount refunded to customers                    (75.31) (152.12)              
               1,660.42              1,353.15 

2023 2022
Advances received from customers Current                    749.89 763.48               
Deferred revenue Current                    272.95 158.72               

        Non-current                    637.58 430.95               
               1,660.42 

(b) Government incentives include ₹167.96 crores as at March 31, 2023 (₹143.16 crores as at March 31, 2022) grants relating to
property, plant and equipment related to duty saved on import of capital goods and spares under the Exports Promotion
Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme. Under such scheme, the Company is committed to export prescribed times of the duty saved
on import of capital goods over a specified period of time. In case such commitments are not met, the Company would be
required to pay the duty saved along with interest to the regulatory authorities.

Opening contract liabilities 

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contract liabilities

Statutory dues (GST,VAT etc)

As at March 31,

Performance obligations in respect of amount received in respect of future maintenance service and extended warranty will
be fulfilled over a period of 6 years from year ending March 31, 2023 till March 31, 2029.

Amount received in advance during the year

Closing contract liabilities

Amount recognised in revenue

             1,353.15 

As at March 31,
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31. Revenue recognition
(a) Accounting policy

(₹ in crores)
(b) Revenue From Operations

2023 2022
(a) Sale of products (refer note 1 and 2 below)

(i) Vehicles 54,581.45        39,555.18       
(ii) Spare parts 7,172.69          4,881.81          
(iii) Miscellaneous products 2,274.62          1,733.92          
Total Sale of products 64,028.76        46,170.91       

(b) Sale of services 1,270.08          710.06             
Revenue 65,298.84        46,880.97       

(c) Other operating revenues (refer note 3 below) 458.49             382.71             
          Total 65,757.33        47,263.68       

Note:
(1) (14,222.59)      (9,963.06)        

(2) (0.44)                (0.98)                

(3) 102.75                             65.48 

Year ended March 31,

The Company generates revenue principally from-

i)  Sale of products - commercial vehicles and vehicle parts
The Company recognises revenues from sale of products measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration), when it
satisfies its performance obligation at a point in time which is when products are delivered to dealers or when delivered to a carrier for export
sales, which is when control including risks and rewards and title of ownership pass to the customer, and when there are no longer any
unfulfilled obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered
by the Company as part of the contract.
The Company offers sales incentives in the form of variable marketing expense to customers, which vary depending on the timing and
customer of any subsequent sale of the vehicle. This sales incentive is accounted for as a revenue reduction and is constrained to a level that
is highly probable not to reverse the amount of revenue recognised when any associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The Company
estimates the expected sales incentive by market and considers uncertainties including competitor pricing, ageing of retailer stock and local
market conditions.
The consideration received in respect of transport arrangements for delivering of vehicles to the customers are recognised net of their costs
within revenues in the income statement.

Includes exchange loss (net) on hedges reclassified from hedge reserve to 
statement of profit and loss

Includes profit on sale of properties

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Includes variable marketing expenses netted off against revenue

Sales of services include certain performance obligations that are satisfied over a period of time. Any amount received in advance in respect
of such performance obligations that are satisfied over a period of time is recorded as a contract liability and recorded as revenue when
service is rendered to customers.

Refund liabilities comprise of obligation towards customers to pay for discounts and sales incentives.

Revenues are recognised when collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

ii)  Sale of services - maintenance service and extended warranties for commercial vehicles.
Income from sale of maintenance services and extended warranties are recognised as income over the relevant period of service or extended
warranty.
When the Company sells products that are bundled with maintenance service or extended period of warranty, such services are treated as a
separate performance obligation only if the service or warranty is optional to the customer or includes an additional service component. In
such cases, the transaction price allocated towards such maintenance service or extended period of warranty based on relative standalone
selling price and is recognised as a contract liability until the service obligation has been met. The price that is regularly charged for an item
when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In the absence of such evidence, the primary method used to
estimate standalone selling price is the expected cost plus a margin, under which the Company estimates the cost of satisfying the
performance obligation and then adds an appropriate margin based on similar services.

The Company operates certain customer loyalty programs under which customer is entitled to reward points on the spend towards
Company’s products. The reward points earned by customers can be redeemed to claim discounts on future purchase of certain products or
services. Transaction price allocated towards reward points granted to customers is recognised as a deferred income liability and transferred
to income when customers redeem their reward points.
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32. Other income
(a) Accounting policy

Government Grants and Incentives

(b) Other income (₹ in crores)

2023 2022
(a) Interest income 245.42            276.57            
(b) Dividend income (refer note below) 187.52            80.08              
(c) Government incentives 309.37            183.29            
(d) Profit on sale of investments at FVTPL (net) 71.82              109.82            
(e) Market-to-market Investments measured at FVTPL 6.81                 10.16              

          Total 820.94            659.91            
Note:

Includes :
(a) Dividend from subsidiary companies and associates 145.17            53.03              
(b) From investment measured at FVTOCI 42.35              27.05              

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31,

Other income includes export and other recurring and non-recurring incentives from Government (referred as “incentives”).

Government grants are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the relevant conditions and the 
grant will be received.
Government grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, either on a systematic basis when the Company recognises, as
expenses, the related costs that the grants are intended to compensate or, immediately if the costs have already been incurred.
Government grants related to assets are deferred and amortised over the useful life of the asset. Government grants related to income are
presented as an offset against the related expenditure, and government grants that are awarded as incentives with no ongoing performance 
obligations to the Company are recognised as income in the period in which the grant is received.
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33. Employee benefits expense (₹ in crores)

2023 2022
(a) 3,364.21              2,993.01             
(b) 232.45                 218.75                
(c) 424.97                 389.75                

          Total 4,021.63              3,601.51             

*

(A) Share based payments
Accounting policy

(i)

2023 2022
            66,62,551            68,04,003 

                           -                 3,35,209 
          (30,45,214)             (1,22,419)
             (7,53,622)             (3,54,242)
            28,63,715            66,62,551 

            42,95,573            99,93,827 
            14,31,858            33,31,276 

 372 - 490  392 - 530 
 3 months  3 - 15 months 

Assumption factor 2023 2022
Risk free rate 7%-8% 7%-8%
Expected life of option 2-4 years 2-4 years
Expected volatility 33%- 37% 33%- 37%

                  170.60                  170.60 

Option exercisable at the end of the year

Equity-settled share option plan
Tata Motors Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme 2018
The Company has allotted share based incentives to certain employees during the year ended March 31, 2019, under Tata Motors Limited Employee Stock
Options Scheme 2018 approved by Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). As per the scheme, the number of shares that will vest is conditional upon
certain performance measures determined by NRC. The performance is measured over vesting period of the options granted which ranges from 3 to 5 years.
The performance measures under this scheme include growth in sales, earnings and free cash flow. The options granted under this scheme is exercisable by
employees till one year from date of its vesting. The Company has granted options at an exercise price of ₹345/-. Option granted will vest equally each year
starting from three years from date of grant up to five years from date of grant. Number of shares that will vest range from 0.5 to 1.5 per option granted
depending on performance measures. 

Year ended March 31,

Option exercisable at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

The amount of ₹20.46 crores and ₹16.73 crores has accrued for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively towards share based payments.

Forfeited/Expired during the year
Exercised during the year

The Company recognises compensation expense relating to share based payments in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment. Stock options
granted by the Company to its employees are accounted as equity settled options. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of options granted that is
determined on the date of grant, is charged to statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the vesting period of options which is the
requisite service period, with a corresponding increase in equity.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31,

Salaries, wages and bonus *

Staff welfare expenses
Contribution to provident fund and other funds

 Number of shares to be issued for outstanding options 
(conditional on performance measures)

Minimum
Maximum

Expected volatility during the expected term of the options is based on historical volatility of the observed market prices of the Company’s publicly-
traded equity shares during a period equivalent to the expected term of the options.

Estimate
Year ended March 31,

Share price for options exercised during the year
Remaining contractual life

Share price

The Company has estimated fair value of options using Black Scholes model. The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of options 
granted.
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Share based payments (continued)
(ii) Share-based Long Term Incentive Scheme 2021

PSUs and ESOs are excercisable within one year from the date of vesting.

Reconciliation of outstanding ESOs/ PSUs ESOs PSUs ESOs PSUs
No of options No of options No of options No of options

(i) Option exercisable at the beginning of the year 8,39,650                           9,64,569                                   -                          -                          
(ii) granted during the year -                                     6,59,186                                   8,39,650                9,64,569                
(iii) forfeited during the year (78,822)                             (92,349)                                     -                          -                          
(iv) exercised during the year -                                     -                                             -                          -                          
(v) Option exercisable at the end of the year 7,60,828                           15,31,406                                 8,39,650                9,64,569                
(vi) Remaining contractual life 16 Months 28 Months 28 Months 28 Months

Assumption factor
Granted during Year 

ended March 31, 2023
PSUs ESOs PSUs

Risk free interest rate 5.3% 5.3% 5.3%
Expected life of option 4 years 3.8 years 3.8 years
Expected volatility 52.0% 50.7% 50.7%
Share price                                     453.40                  376.40                  376.40 

(B) Employee benefits
(a) Accounting policy
(i) Gratuity

Tata Motors Limited and its Joint operation have an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a
lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days salary
payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. Tata Motors Limited makes annual contributions to gratuity funds
established as trusts. Tata Motors Limited account for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

The Company has granted Performance Stock Units (“PSUs”) and Employee Stock Options (“ESOs”) to its employees under the Tata Motors Limited Share-
based Long Term Incentive Scheme 2021 (“TML SLTI Scheme 2021” or “Scheme”). 

As per the scheme, the number of shares that will vest is conditional upon certain performance measures determined by Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC). The performance is measured over vesting period of the options granted. The performance measures under this scheme include growth
in sales, earnings and free cash flow. The options granted under this scheme is exercisable by employees till one year from date of its vesting. The
Company has granted options at an exercise price of ₹338/- for ESOs and ₹2/- for PSUs. Option granted will vest after three years from date of grant.
Number of shares that will vest range from 0.5 to 1.2 per option granted depending on performance measures.

Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022

Granted during Year ended March 
31, 2022

The Company has estimated fair value of options using Black Scholes model. The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of options
granted.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expected volatility during the expected term of the options is based on historical volatility of the observed market prices of the Company’s publicly-traded
equity shares during a period equivalent to the expected term of the options.
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(ii) Superannuation

(iii) Bhavishya kalyan yojana (BKY)

(iv) Provident fund and family pension

(v) Post-retirement medicare scheme

(vi) Compensated absences

(vii) Remeasurement gains and losses

(viii) Measurement date

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The present value of the defined benefit liability and the related current service cost and past service cost are measured using projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the post-employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors, it is determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/(income) for pensions include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions.Any
changes in these assumptions will impact upon the carrying amount of post-employment benefit obligations. Key assumptions and sensitivities for post
employment benefit obligations are disclosed in note below.

Tata Motors Limited have two superannuation plans, a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. An eligible employee on April 1, 1996 could
elect to be a member of either plan.
Employees who are members of the defined benefit superannuation plan are entitled to benefits depending on the years of service and salary drawn. The
monthly pension benefits after retirement range from 0.75% to 2% of the annual basic salary for each year of service. Tata Motors Limited account for
superannuation benefits payable in future under the plan based on an actuarial valuation.
With effect from April 1, 2003, this plan was amended and benefits earned by covered employees have been protected as at March 31, 2003. Employees
covered by this plan are prospectively entitled to benefits computed on a basis that ensures that the annual cost of providing the pension benefits would
not exceed 15% of salary.
During the year ended March 31, 2015, the employees covered by this plan were given a one-time option to exit from the plan prospectively.
Furthermore, the employees who opted for exit were given one- time option to withdraw accumulated balances from the superannuation plan.

The Company maintains a separate irrevocable trust for employees covered and entitled to benefits. The Company contributes up to 15% or ₹1,50,000
whichever is lower of the eligible employee’s salary to the trust every year. The Company recognises such contribution as an expense when incurred and
has no further obligation beyond this contribution.

Bhavishya Kalyan Yojana is an unfunded defined benefit plan for employees of Tata Motors Limited. The benefits of the plan include pension in certain
cases, payable up to the date of normal superannuation had the employee been in service, to an eligible employee at the time of death or permanent
disablement, while in service, either as a result of an injury or as certified by the appropriate authority. The monthly payment to dependents of the
deceased/disabled employee under the plan equals 50% of the salary drawn at the time of death or accident or a specified amount, whichever is greater.
Tata Motors Limited account for the liability for BKY benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

The Company provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to
certain limits, for future encashment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilised leave at each balance sheet date on the basis of
an independent actuarial valuation.

Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on assets (excluding interest) relating to retirement
benefit plans, are recognised directly in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurement recorded in other comprehensive
income is not reclassified to statement of Profit and Loss.

Actuarial gains and losses relating to long-term employee benefits are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

The measurement date of retirement plans is March 31.

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of Tata Motors Limited and joint operations are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered
employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary). The contributions, as specified under the law, were made to the provident fund and pension fund
set up as an irrevocable trust or to respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident Fund under the State Pension scheme.
The interest rate, payable to the members of the trust, was not to be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central Government under
the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, if any, was made good by the Company. The embedded interest
rate guarantee is considered to be defined benefit.
The provident fund trust and pension trust set up by Tata Motors Limited (the "Company") have lost its exempt status w.e.f. April 1, 2022, due to
incurrence of losses for three consecutive years by the Company, as per its standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards. Accordingly, the Company has surrendered the provident fund exemption and transferred the assets and obligations of the trust to
the government managed provident fund. With this transfer of assets and obligations, the Company will no longer be obligated to provide any interest
rate guarantee and accordingly, the provident fund is considered as a defined contribution scheme from April 1, 2022. As regards pension, the Company
is still maintaining the pension fund, as an ad interim measure, since EPFO has still not accepted the transfer of pension fund/corpus to its statutory
pension fund. 

Under this unfunded scheme, employees of Tata Motors Limited receive medical benefits subject to certain limits on amounts of benefits, periods after
retirement and types of benefits, depending on their grade and location at the time of retirement. Employees separated from the Company as part of an
Early Separation Scheme, on medical grounds or due to permanent disablement are also covered under the scheme. Tata Motors Limited account for the
liability for post-retirement medical scheme based on an actuarial valuation.
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(b) Employee benefits consists of the following:

(i) Defined Benefit Plan

Pension and post retirement medical plans

2023 2022 2023 2022
Change in defined benefit obligations :
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 1,103.17    1,189.05   249.65            171.78               
Current service cost 66.60         70.07        11.91              7.79                    
Interest cost 75.36         74.31        17.30              11.03                 
Remeasurements  (gains) / losses

(0.81)          4.25          0.30                5.86                    

11.48         7.12          13.58              26.24                 

14.22         77.40        19.50              32.70                 
Transfer out of liability (13.91)        (256.65)     (2.24)               (11.83)                
Benefits paid from plan assets (52.74)        (67.75)       -                  -                      
Benefits paid directly by employer (10.22)        (10.26)       (14.97)             (16.87)                
Past service cost- plan amendments -             30.47        32.84              22.94                 

-             (14.84)       -                  -                      
1,193.15    1,103.17   327.87            249.65               

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 915.46       1,100.28   -                  -                      

-             (14.10)       -                  -                      
Interest income 67.11         70.40        -                  -                      

(2.25)          9.13          -                  -                      
Employer’s contributions 136.63       42.55        -                  -                      
Transfer out of liability (12.07)        (225.05)     -                  -                      
Benefits paid (52.74)        (67.75)       -                  -                      
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 1,052.14    915.46      -                  -                      

2023 2022 2023 2022

Amount recognised in the balance sheet consists of
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,193.15    1,103.17   327.87            249.65               
Fair value of plan assets 1,052.14    915.46      -                  -                      

(141.01)      (187.71)     327.87            249.65               
Asset ceiling (3.69)          (3.34)         -                  -                      
Net liability (144.70)      (191.05)     327.87            249.65               
Amounts in the balance sheet:
Non–current assets 31.91         0.16          -                  -                      
Non–current liabilities (176.61)      (191.21)     327.87            249.65               
Net liability (144.70)      (191.05)     327.87            249.65               

* Includes Gratuity, Superannuation and BKY

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Pension Benefits *

Actuarial (gains)/.losses arising from changes in 
demographic assumptions
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in 
experience adjustments

Defined benefit obligation, end of the year

Post retirement medical Benefits

Post retirement medical Benefits

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following tables sets out the funded and unfunded status and the amounts recognised in the financial statements for
the pension and the post retirement medical plans in respect of Tata Motors and joint operations:

Pension Benefits *
As at March 31, As at March 31,

(₹ in crores)

Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to 
Joint Venture

Adjustments due to conversion of Joint Operation to 
Joint Venture 

Return on  plan assets, (excluding 
amount included in net Interest expense)
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Information for funded plans with a defined benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

2023 2022

Defined benefit obligation 38.51        887.73             
Fair value of plan assets 34.08        863.41             

Information for funded plans with a defined benefit obligation less than plan assets:

2023 2022

Defined benefit obligation 982.47      48.87               
Fair value of plan assets 1,018.06  52.05               

Information for unfunded plans:

2023 2022 2023 2022

Defined benefit obligation 172.17    166.57    327.87      249.65             

Net pension and post retirement medical cost consist of the following components:

2023 2022 2023 2022

Service cost 66.60      70.07      11.91        7.79                 
Net interest cost 8.24        3.92        17.30        11.03               
Past service cost- plan amendments -          30.47      32.84        22.94               
Net periodic cost 74.84      104.46    62.05        41.76               

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligation recognised in other comprehensive income.

2023 2022 2023 2022

Remeasurements

2.25        (9.13)       -            -                   

(0.81)       4.25        0.30          5.86                 

11.48      7.12        13.58        26.24               
0.35        0.49        -            -                   

14.22      77.40      19.50        32.70               
Total recognised in other comprehensive income 27.49      80.12      33.38        64.81               

102.34    184.57    95.43        106.57             

* Includes Gratuity, Superannuation and BKY

Total recognised in statement of  comprehensive income

Pension Benefits * Post retirement medical Benefits

Pension Benefits *

As at March 31,

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in experience 
adjustments on plan liabilities

As at March 31,

Pension Benefits *
As at March 31,

Post retirement medical Benefits

Return on  plan assets, (excluding amount included in net 
Interest expense)

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension Benefits *
(₹ in crores)

Post retirement medical Benefits

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

Asset ceiling

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions

As at March 31,

Pension Benefits *
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The assumptions used in accounting for the pension and post retirement medical plans are set out below:

2023 2022 2023 2022

Discount rate 7.1% - 7.3% 6.5% - 7.1% 7.3% 7.2%
Rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees 6.0% - 12.0% 6.0% - 9.0% NA NA
Increase in health care cost NA NA 6.0% 6.0%

Plan Assets
The fair value of Company’s pension plan asset as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 by category are as follows:

2023 2022
Asset category:
Cash and cash equivalents 10.6% 2.5%
Debt instruments (quoted) 67.3% 66.6%
Debt instruments  (unquoted) 0.5% 0.0%
Equity instruments (quoted) 8.5% 8.0%
Deposits with Insurance companies 13.1% 22.8%

100.0% 100.0%
* Includes Gratuity, Superannuation and BKY

Assumption Change in assumption

Discount rate Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Salary escalation rate Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Health care cost Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

(ii) On November 4, 2022, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, in the case of Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation and Anr. Etc. vs. Sunil Kumar B. and
Ors. Etc., passed a judgment upholding the validity of the 2014 amendment to the Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995 and allowed the members of
statutory pension fund as on September 1, 2014, to exercise the joint option for contribution into the pension fund beyond the statutory limit. The
Hon’ble Supreme Court has clearly laid down that it was not addressing the case of the exempted establishments in the said judgment.
The Company has been operating its provident fund and pension scheme as an exempted establishment. The Company has been legally advised that due
to the incurrence of losses for three consecutive years, the Company has lost its provident fund and pension fund exemption status w.e.f. April 1, 2022.
While the Employees Provident Fund Organization (“EPFO”) has already accepted the transfer of entire Provident Fund/ corpus into its statutory
provident fund, the Company is still maintaining the pension fund, as an ad interim measure, since EPFO has still not accepted the transfer of pension
fund/ corpus to its statutory pension fund. 
Pending the transfer of the pension fund, the Company had communicated to its employees that if they wish to avail the option of contributing beyond
the statutory limit, they may choose to apply on the EPFO portal to exercise the option, subject to EPFO accepting the joint option. This is also subject to
EPFO’s decision on applicability, calculation formula, contribution, amount of higher pension and transfer of corpus from statutory provident fund to the
statutory pension fund. The EPFO, in compliance with the Supreme Court judgment, has issued various circulars, calling upon eligible pensioners to
exercise joint option, however, with no mention with regard to the treatment of the members of the exempted pension funds.
Considering all of the above, and more particularly the fact that the EPFO is in the process of providing clarity on various key elements referred to above,
the non-applicability of the Supreme Court judgement to exempted establishments and the legal advice on status of the exemption, the Company
believes that no provision is warranted on this matter as of March 31, 2023.

₹ 75.55  crores ₹ 15.59 crores

₹ 41.64 crores ₹ 7.88 crores
₹ 34.67 crores ₹ 6.44 crores

₹ 116.06 crores ₹ 19.54 crores
₹ 134.41 crores ₹ 20.97 crores

₹ 83.92  crores ₹ 17.45 crores

Impact on defined benefit obligation Impact on service cost and interest 
cost

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension Benefits * Post retirement medical Benefits

Pension Benefits *

The Company’s policy is driven by considerations of maximising returns while ensuring credit quality of the debt instruments. The asset allocation for plan
assets is determined based on investment criteria prescribed under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961, and is also subject to other exposure limitations. The
Company evaluates the risks, transaction costs and liquidity for potential investments. To measure plan asset performance, the Company compares actual
returns for each asset category with published bench marks.

As at March 31,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2023 is 10.3 years ( March 31, 2022 : 11.7 years).
The Company expects to contribute ₹59.54 crores to the funded pension plans in the year ending March 31, 2024.
The table below outlines the effect on the service cost, the interest cost and the defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1% in
the assumed rate of discount rate, salary escalation and health care cost:

As at March 31, As at March 31,
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Provident Fund

(₹ in crores)
Particulars

2023 2022
Change in benefit obligations:
Defined benefit obligations at the beginning 4,040.00             4,320.88             
Balance transferred to government managed provident fund (3,918.93)            -                       
Service cost 4.10                     125.22                
Employee contribution 7.30                     287.68                
Acquisitions (credit) / cost -                       (799.07)               
Transfer in / Transfer out 1.29                     -                       
Interest expense 8.85                     353.32                
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in experience adjustments on plan liabilities 1.58                     (78.83)                 
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from demographic assumptions -                       3.31                     
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (4.01)                   143.83                
Benefits paid (5.53)                   (316.32)               
Defined benefit obligations at the end 134.65                4,040.00             

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 4,108.08             4,235.50             
Balance transferred to government managed provident fund (3,990.88)            -                       
Acquisition Adjustment -                       (799.07)               
Transfer in / Transfer out 1.29                     -                       
Interest income 8.58                     347.83                
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income (2.99)                   227.47                
Contributions (employer and employee) 11.41                   412.67                
Benefits paid (5.53)                   (316.32)               
Fair value of plan assets at the end 129.96                4,108.08             

Amount recognised in the balance sheet consists of 2023 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation 134.65                4,040.00             
Fair value of plan assets 129.96                4,108.08             
Effect of asset ceiling -                       (71.90)                 
Net liability (4.69)                   (3.82)                    

Non-Current liability (4.69)                   (3.82)                    

As at March 31, 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED

The following tables set out the funded status of the defined benefit provident fund plan of Tata Motors Limited and Joint Operation and the
amounts recognized in the Company's financial statements.

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31,
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(₹ in crores)

Net periodic cost for Provident Fund consists of following components: 2023 2022
Service cost                                   4.10                               125.22 
Net interest cost / (income)                                   0.27                                   5.48 
Net periodic cost                                   4.37                               130.70 

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligation recognised in other comprehensive income
2023 2022

Remeasurements
Return on  plan assets, (excluding amount included in net Interest expense)                                   2.99                             (227.47)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in experience adjustments on plan liabilities                                   1.58                               (78.83)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions                                 (4.01)                               143.83 
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from demographic assumptions                                       -                                     3.31 
Effect of asset ceiling                                       -                                   71.90 
Total recognised in other comprehensive income                                   0.56                               (87.26)
Total recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income                                   4.93                                 43.44 

Particulars 2023 2022
Discount rate 7.3% 7.1%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.5% 8.0%
Remaining term to maturity of portfolio 19.0 13.5

The breakup of the plan assets into various categories as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars
2023 2022

Central and State government bonds -                                   42.7%
Government debt instruments 50.7% -                                   
Other debt instruments 40.1% -                                   
Equity  instruments 9.2% -                                   
Public sector undertakings and Private sector bonds -                                   32.3%
Others -                                   25.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

(ii)

2023 2022
Superannuation 16.61 18.36
Provident fund 124.67 6.55
Family pension 38.32 52.88

                              179.60                                 77.79 

Year ended March 31,

The Company's contribution to defined contribution plan aggregated to ₹179.60 crores and ₹77.79 crores for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively as below:

TATA MOTORS LIMITED

The assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of the Provident Fund is set out below:

The asset allocation for plan assets is determined based on investment criteria prescribed under the relevant regulations.

The Company expects to contribute ₹12.55 crores to the defined benefit provident fund plan in Fiscal 2024.

As at March 31, 2023, the defined benefit obligation would be affected by approximately ₹10.37 crores on account of a 1.00% decrease in the expected rate of
return on plan assets.

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

As at March 31, 

As at March 31, 
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34. Finance costs
(₹ in crores)

2023 2022
(a) Interest 1,672.59                1,818.74            

Add: Exchange fluctuation considered as interest cost 1.37                        1.31                   
Less: Transferred to capital account (66.48)                    (114.79)              

1,607.48                1,705.26            
(b) Discounting charges 440.03                   416.47               

2,047.51                2,121.73            

(₹ in crores)
35. Other expenses

2023 2022
(a) 1,292.71                1,039.05            
(b) 424.32                   406.36               
(c) 420.98                   344.78               
(d) 1,142.31                1,025.95            
(e) 439.71                   321.49               
(f) 996.23                   717.36               
(g) 770.44                   705.47               
(h) 71.55                      32.70                 
(i) 2,261.49                1,425.55            

          Total 7,819.74                6,018.71            

^ (60.74)                    (78.37)                
Note:

2023 2022
(a)

(i) 5.37                        5.51                   
(ii) 2.00                        3.39                   
(iii)

0.53                        0.58                   
0.05                        0.05                   

(iv) 0.27                        0.38                   
(v) 1.27                        0.09                   

^ Amount paid to KPMG Assurance and Consulting Services LLP
(b) Cost Auditors' Remuneration  (excluding GST)

Cost Audit Fees 0.25                        0.25                   
(c) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure 

2023 2022
Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year                              -                           -   
Amount of expenditure incurred on*:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any assets                              -                           -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above                       20.81                   23.70 

Shortfall at the end of the year                              -                           -   
Total of previous year shortfall                              -                           -   
Reason for shortfall  NA  NA 
Nature of CSR activities

(d)

(₹ in crores)
36. Amount transferred to capital and other accounts

2023 2022
(a) (145.87)                  (101.67)              
(b) (464.67)                  (322.76)              
(c) (456.19)                  (480.99)              

          Total (1,066.73)               (905.42)              

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Power and fuel
Freight, transportation, port charges etc.

Works operation and other expenses (note below)

Processing charges

Information technology/computer expenses

Publicity
Warranty expenses ^

 Year ended March 31,

Note: 
The weighted average rate for capitalisation of interest relating to general borrowings were approximately 6.85% and 6.82% for the years ended March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Year ended March 31,

Product development/Engineering expenses

Other Services 

Audit fees for financial statements as per IFRS (including SOX certification) ^

Taxation Matters

Intangible asset under development

 Year ended March 31,

Capital work in progress

 Education, skilling, health, environmental sustainability, Rural Development, COVID-19 relief activities 

 Year ended March 31,

*spent by Tata Motors Ltd on standalone basis excluding interest in the joint operations, towards various schemes of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as
prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
Remuneration payable to non- executive independent directors aggregating ₹5.50 crores (₹2.35 crores for the year March 31, 2022) includes ₹3.28 crores
(₹Nil for the year March 31, 2022) of remuneration in respect of Mr. O P Bhatt ₹0.88 crores, Ms. Hanne Birgitte Sorensen ₹0.88 crores, Mr. Mitsuhiko
Yamashita  ₹0.63 crores and Mr. Al Noor Ramji ₹0.89 crores, which are subject to approval of shareholders.

Allowances made for trade and other receivables (net)

 Year ended March 31,

Audit Fees 

Net of estimated recovery from suppliers

Auditors' Remuneration (excluding GST)

Tax Audit / Transfer Pricing Audit

Works operation and other expenses include:

Reimbursement of travelling and out-of-pocket expenses

In other Capacities :
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37.

The Sales Tax authorities have raised demand for Check post/ Entry Tax liability at various states amounting to ₹309.47 crores as at March 31, 2023 (₹501.38 crores
as at March 31, 2022). The company is contesting this issue.

Income Tax

As at March 31, 2023, there are pending litigation for various matters relating to customs, excise duty and service taxes involving demands, including interest and
penalties, of ₹398.26 crores (₹610.78 crores as at March 31, 2022). These demands challenged the basis of valuation of the Company’s products and denied the
Company’s claims of Central Value Added Tax, or CENVAT credit on inputs. 

Customs, Excise Duty and Service Tax

As at March 31, 2023, there are contingent liabilities towards matters and/or disputes pending in appeal amounting to ₹161.94 crores (₹216.10 crores as at March
31, 2022).

Sales Tax/VAT
The total sales tax demands (including interest and penalty), that are being contested by the Company amount to ₹932.77 crores as at March 31, 2023 (₹1,225.74
crores as at March 31, 2022). The details of the demands for more than ₹100 crores are as follows:

The Sales Tax Authorities have raised demand of ₹231.09 crores as at March 31, 2023 (₹324.00 crores as at March 31, 2022) towards rejection of certain statutory

forms for concessional lower/nil tax rate (Form F and Form C) on technical grounds and few other issues such as late submission, single form issued against different

months / quarters dispatches / sales, etc. and denial of exemption from tax in absence of proof of export for certain years. The Company has contended that the

benefit cannot be denied on technicalities, which are being complied with. The matter is pending at various levels.

The Sales Tax authorities have denied input tax credit and levied interest and penalty thereon due to varied reasons aggregating to ₹267.49 crores as at March 31,
2023 (₹283.62 crores as at March 31, 2022). The reasons for disallowing credit was mainly due to Taxes not paid by Vendors, incorrect method of calculation of set off
as per the department, alleging suppression of sales as per the department etc. The matter is contested in appeal.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has a right of appeal to the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), or CIT (A), the Dispute Resolution Panel, or DRP, and to the Income Tax Appellate

Tribunal, or ITAT, against adverse decisions by the assessing officer, DRP or CIT (A), as applicable. The income tax authorities have similar rights of appeal to the ITAT

against adverse decisions by the CIT (A) or DRP. The Company has a further right of appeal to the Bombay High Court or the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India against

adverse decisions by the appellate authorities for matters involving substantial question of law. The income tax authorities have similar rights of appeal.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and assertions and monitors the
legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a
potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered
possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes
probable.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The Company believes that none of the contingencies
described below would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

The Company is involved in legal proceedings, both as plaintiff and as defendant. There are claims which the Company does not believe to be of material nature,
other than those described below.

The Company has ongoing disputes with income tax authorities relating to tax treatment of certain items. These mainly include disallowed expenses, the tax
treatment of certain expenses claimed by the Company as deductions and the computation of, or eligibility of, the Company’s use of certain tax incentives or
allowances.

Commitments and contingencies

Most of these disputes and/or disallowances, being repetitive in nature, have been raised by the income tax authorities consistently in most of the years.

Litigation
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TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has entered into various contracts with vendors and contractors for the acquisition of intangible assets of a capital nature amounting to ₹82.91 crores as at March
31, 2023, (₹102.29 crores as at March 31, 2022), which are yet to be executed.

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified
for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. There are interpretative challenges and considerable uncertainty, including
estimating the amount retrospectively. Pending the directions from the EPFO, the impact for past periods, if any, is not ascertainable reliably and consequently no financial effect
has been provided for in the financial statements. The Company has complied with this on a prospective basis, from the date of the SC order. Also refer note 33 (B) (b) (ii) for
pension.

Commitments
The Company has entered into various contracts with vendors and contractors for the acquisition of plant and machinery, equipment and various civil contracts of a capital
nature amounting to ₹634.96 crores as at March 31, 2023 (₹587.13 crores as at March 31, 2022), which are yet to be executed.

Other claims

Other Taxes and Dues
Other amounts for which the Company may contingently be liable aggregate to ₹305.04 crores as at March 31, 2023 (₹242.66 crores as at March 31, 2022). Following are the
cases involving more than ₹100 crores:
As at March 31, 2023, property tax amounting to ₹150.58 crores (₹100.07 crores as at March 31, 2022) has been demanded by the local municipal authorities in respect of
vacant land of the Company in the plant in Pimpri (including residential land), Chinchwad and Chikhali. The Company had filed Special Leave Petition (SLP) before the Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India against an unfavorable decision of the Bombay High Court. The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India had disposed of the SLP and remanded the matter back to
the local municipal corporation for fresh adjudication. After fresh hearing, the municipal authority again passed the same order as it had passed earlier, which the Company has
challenged before the Civil Court. The Civil Court has passed an injunction order restraining the municipal authority from taking any action of recovery.   
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38. Earnings/(loss) per Share (“EPS”)
(a) Accounting policy

(b) EPS - Continuing operations
2023 2022

(a) Profit/(loss) after tax ₹ crores 2,728.13                 (1,739.23)               
(b) The weighted average number of Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. 3,32,11,46,115     3,32,04,02,491     
(c) The weighted average number of 'A' Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. 50,85,02,896        50,85,02,896        
(d) The nominal value per share (Ordinary and 'A' Ordinary) ₹ 2                               2                               
(e) Share of profit / (loss) for Ordinary shares for Basic EPS ₹ crores 2,361.48                 (1,508.25)               
(f) Share of profit / (loss) for 'A' Ordinary shares for Basic EPS * ₹ crores 366.65                    (230.98)                   
(g) Earnings per Ordinary share (Basic) ₹ 7.11                         (4.54)                       
(h) Earnings per 'A' Ordinary share (Basic) ₹ 7.21                         (4.54)                       
(i) Profit after tax for Diluted EPS ₹ crores 2,728.13                 #
(j) The weighted average number of Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. 3,32,11,46,115     #
(k) Add: Adjustment for  shares held in abeyance Nos. 4,92,559                 #
(l) Add: Adjustment for Options relating to ESOP/PSP Nos. 12,82,388              #
(m) The weighted average number of Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS Nos. 3,32,29,21,062     #
(n) The weighted average number of 'A' Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. 50,85,02,896        #
(o) Add: Adjustment for 'A' Ordinary shares held in abeyance Nos. 2,33,214                 #
(p) The weighted average number of 'A' Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS Nos. 50,87,36,110        #
(q) Share of profit for Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS ₹ crores 2,361.50                 #
(r) Share of profit for 'A' Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS * ₹ crores 366.63                    #
(s) Earnings per Ordinary share (Diluted) ₹ 7.11                         (4.54)                       
(t) Earnings per 'A' Ordinary share (Diluted) ₹ 7.21                         (4.54)                       

(c) EPS - Discontinued operations 2023 2022
(a) Profit/(loss) after tax ₹ crores -                           348.37                    
(b) The weighted average number of Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. -                           3,32,04,02,491     
(c) The weighted average number of 'A' Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. -                           50,85,02,896        
(d) The nominal value per share (Ordinary and 'A' Ordinary) ₹ -                           2
(e) Share of profit / (loss) for Ordinary shares for Basic EPS ₹ crores -                           297.69                    
(f) Share of profit / (loss) for 'A' Ordinary shares for Basic EPS * ₹ crores -                           50.68                      
(g) Earnings per Ordinary share (Basic) ₹ -                           0.90                         
(h) Earnings per 'A' Ordinary share (Basic) ₹ -                           1.00                         
(i) Profit after tax for Diluted EPS ₹ crores -                           348.37                    
(j) The weighted average number of Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. -                           3,32,04,02,491     
(k) Add: Adjustment for  shares held in abeyance Nos. -                           4,92,559                 
(l) Add: Adjustment for Options relating to ESOP/PSP Nos. -                           4,98,268                 
(m) The weighted average number of Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS Nos. -                           3,32,13,93,318     
(n) The weighted average number of 'A' Ordinary shares for Basic EPS Nos. -                           50,85,02,896        
(o) Add: Adjustment for 'A' Ordinary shares held in abeyance Nos. -                           2,33,214                 
(p) The weighted average number of 'A' Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS Nos. -                           50,87,36,110        
(q) Share of profit for Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS ₹ crores -                           297.69                    
(r) Share of profit for 'A' Ordinary shares for Diluted EPS * ₹ crores -                           50.68                      
(s) Earnings per Ordinary share (Diluted) ₹ -                           0.90                         
(t) Earnings per 'A' Ordinary share (Diluted) ₹ -                           1.00                         

*

#

39. Capital Management

The following table summarises the capital of the Company: (₹ in crores)

2023 2022
22,660.54              20,045.07              

8,426.74                 9,129.91                 
10,445.70              14,102.74              
18,872.44              23,232.65              
41,532.98              43,277.72              

22,469.85              19,944.15              
(38.37)                     13.80                      
229.06                    87.12                      

22,660.54              20,045.07              

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31,

'A' Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend @ 5% points more than the aggregate rate of dividend determined by the Company on Ordinary Shares
for the financial year. 
Since there is a loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 in continued operations, potential equity shares are not considered as dilutive and hence Diluted EPS is
same as Basic EPS.

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid up shares are
included as fully paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up. Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares and
dilutive potential shares, except where the result would be antidilutive.

Year ended March 31,

Equity as reported above

Equity
Short-term borrowings and current maturities of long-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings
Total borrowings
Total capital (Debt + Equity)

Hedging reserve
Cost of Hedge reserve

Total equity as reported in balance sheet

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.
Total borrowings includes all long and short-term borrowings as disclosed in notes 22 and 23 to the financial statements. Equity comprises all components excluding
(profit)/loss on cash flow hedges.

As at March 31,

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding
requirements are met through equity, non-convertible debentures, senior notes and other long-term/short-term borrowings. The Company’s policy is aimed at combination
of short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the Company.
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40. Financial instruments
(a) Accounting policy

(i) Recognition:

Initial measurement

Financial assets are classified into three categories

Classification and measurement – financial liabilities:

(ii) Determination of fair value:

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the quoted
bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation
techniques include discounted cash flow method and other valuation methods.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Debt instruments): Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual cash flows as well as to sell the financial asset, are classified in this category.
Subsequently, these are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses being recognised in other comprehensive income apart from any
expected credit losses or foreign exchange gains or losses, which are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or received).

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. 
Financial guarantee contracts: These are initially measured at their fair values and, are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined or the amount initially recognised less, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at

amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in profit and loss.

Other financial liabilities: These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Equity instruments: Equity instruments: An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial assets at amortised cost: Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect
such contractual cash flows are classified in this category. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment losses.
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Equity instruments): These include financial assets that are equity
instruments and are designated as such upon initial recognition irrevocably. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment has been established.
When the equity investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained earnings.

Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the category in which they are classified.
Classification and measurement – financial assets
Classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which the instruments are held as well as the characteristics of their contractual
cash flows. The business model is based on management’s intentions and past pattern of transactions. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. The Company reclassifies
financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are initially recognised at its fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments
are recognised in determining the carrying amount, if it is not classified as at fair value through profit or loss. However, trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs of financial instruments carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.
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40. Financial instruments (continued)
(a) Accounting policy

(iii)

(iv) Impairment of financial assets:

(v) Hedge accounting:

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in the periods in which the forecast transactions
affect profit or loss or as an adjustment to a non-financial item (e.g. inventory) when that item is recognised on the balance sheet. These
deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example through cost of goods sold).
For forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained there until the forecast
transaction occurs.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is immediately transferred to the
statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to highly
probable forecast transactions. The Company designates these forward contracts in a cash flow hedging relationship by applying the hedge
accounting principles. The Company also uses interest rate swaps to hedge its variability in cash flows from interest payments arising from
floating rate liabilities i.e. when interests are paid according to benchmark market interest rates.
Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are
generally recognised in profit or loss.
At inception of the hedge relationship, the Company documents the economic relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging instrument are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of the hedged
item. The Company documents its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedging transactions. The Company designates
only the intrinsic value of foreign exchange options in the hedging relationship. The Company designates amounts excluding foreign currency
basis spread in the hedging relationship for both foreign exchange forward contracts and cross- currency interest rate swaps. Changes in the
fair value of the derivative contracts that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve within other comprehensive income (net of tax), and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
loss.
Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the statement of Profit and Loss in the periods in which the forecasted transactions occurs.

For forwards and options, forward premium and the time value are not considered part of the hedge. These are treated as cost of hedge and
the changes in fair value attributable to forward premium is recognised in the other comprehensive income along with the changes in fair value
determined to be effective portion of the hedge.
Effective portion of fair value changes of interest rate swaps that are designated as hedges against interest rate risk arising from floating rate
debt are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. When a financial instrument is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to the statement of profit and loss unless it was an equity instrument
electively held at fair value through other comprehensive income. In this case, any cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained
earnings. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company reviews the facts and
circumstances around each asset before making a determination. Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities.
Financial liabilities are decrecognised when these are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that is at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Expected credit losses are forward looking and are measured in a way that is unbiased and represents a probability-
weighted amount, takes into account the time value of money (values are discounted using the applicable effective interest rate) and uses
reasonable and supportable information.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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                  Year ended March 31,
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022.

(₹ in crores)

Financial assets

Cash, and other 
financial assets 

at amortised 
cost

Investments - 
FVTOCI

Investments - 
FVTPL

Derivatives 
other than in 

hedging 
relationship (at 

fair value 
through profit 

or loss)

Derivatives in 
hedging 

relationship 
(at fair value)

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

(a) Investments - non-current -                       1,338.94       -                         -                       -                   1,338.94         1,338.94         
(b) Investments - current -                       -                 5,143.08              -                       -                   5,143.08         5,143.08         
(c) Trade receivables 2,111.78            -                 -                         -                       -                   2,111.78         2,111.78         
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 2,450.23            -                 -                         -                       -                   2,450.23         2,450.23         
(e) Other bank balances 155.20                -                 -                         -                       -                   155.20             155.20             
(f) Loans and advances - non-current 48.43                  -                 -                         -                       -                   48.43               48.43               
(g) Loans and advances - current 139.37                -                 -                         -                       -                   139.37             139.37             
(h) Other financial assets - non-current 1,316.92            -                 -                         258.95                 416.65             1,992.52         1,992.52         
(i) Other financial assets - current 764.01                -                 -                         29.04                   16.46               809.51             809.51             

Total 6,985.94            1,338.94       5,143.08              287.99                 433.11             14,189.06       14,189.06       

Financial liabilities

Derivatives
other than in 

hedging 
relationship (at 

fair value)

Derivatives in 
hedging 

relationship (at 
fair value)

Other 
financial 

liabilities (at 
amortised 

cost)

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

(a) Long-term borrowings (including Current maturities of long-term borrowings) -                         -                       17,227.68       17,227.68       17,475.16       
(b) Lease liabilities- non current -                         -                       237.84             237.84             241.20             
(c) Short-term borrowings -                         -                       6,004.97         6,004.97         6,004.97         
(d) Lease liabilities- current -                         -                       58.58               58.58               58.58               
(e) Trade payables -                         -                       6,102.10         6,102.10         6,102.10         
(f) Acceptances -                         -                       7,883.96         7,883.96         7,883.96         
(g) Other financial liabilities - non-current 56.69                    20.31                   383.37             460.37             460.37             
(h) Other financial liabilities - current 2.18                      0.61                     1,110.47         1,113.26         1,113.26         

Total 58.87                    20.92                   39,008.97       39,088.76       39,339.60       

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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                  Year ended March 31,
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022.

(₹ in crores)

Financial assets

Cash, and other 
financial assets 

at amortised 
cost

Investments - 
FVTOCI

Investments - 
FVTPL

Derivatives 
other than in 

hedging 
relationship (at 

fair value 
through profit 

or loss)

Derivatives in 
hedging 

relationship 
(at fair value)

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

(a) Investments - non-current -                       1,338.94       -                         -                       -                   1,338.94         1,338.94         
(b) Investments - current -                       -                 5,143.08              -                       -                   5,143.08         5,143.08         
(c) Trade receivables 2,111.78            -                 -                         -                       -                   2,111.78         2,111.78         
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 2,450.23            -                 -                         -                       -                   2,450.23         2,450.23         
(e) Other bank balances 155.20                -                 -                         -                       -                   155.20             155.20             
(f) Loans and advances - non-current 48.43                  -                 -                         -                       -                   48.43               48.43               
(g) Loans and advances - current 139.37                -                 -                         -                       -                   139.37             139.37             
(h) Other financial assets - non-current 1,316.92            -                 -                         258.95                 416.65             1,992.52         1,992.52         
(i) Other financial assets - current 764.01                -                 -                         29.04                   16.46               809.51             809.51             

Total 6,985.94            1,338.94       5,143.08              287.99                 433.11             14,189.06       14,189.06       

Financial liabilities

Derivatives
other than in 

hedging 
relationship (at 

fair value)

Derivatives in 
hedging 

relationship (at 
fair value)

Other 
financial 

liabilities (at 
amortised 

cost)

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

(a) Long-term borrowings (including Current maturities of long-term borrowings) -                         -                       17,227.68       17,227.68       17,475.16       
(b) Lease liabilities- non current -                         -                       237.84             237.84             241.20             
(c) Short-term borrowings -                         -                       6,004.97         6,004.97         6,004.97         
(d) Lease liabilities- current -                         -                       58.58               58.58               58.58               
(e) Trade payables -                         -                       6,102.10         6,102.10         6,102.10         
(f) Acceptances -                         -                       7,883.96         7,883.96         7,883.96         
(g) Other financial liabilities - non-current 56.69                    20.31                   383.37             460.37             460.37             
(h) Other financial liabilities - current 2.18                      0.61                     1,110.47         1,113.26         1,113.26         

Total 58.87                    20.92                   39,008.97       39,088.76       39,339.60       

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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                 As 

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

(₹ in crores)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(a) Investments 3,717.33     -               630.45        4,347.78     
(b) Derivative assets -               941.40        -               941.40        

Total 3,717.33     941.40        630.45        5,289.18     
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
(a) Derivative liabilities -               182.98        -               182.98        

Total -               182.98        -               182.98        

Financial assets measured at fair value
(a) Investments 5,861.57     -               620.45        6,482.02     
(b) Derivative assets -               721.10        -               721.10        

Total 5,861.57     721.10        620.45        7,203.12     
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
(a) Derivative liabilities -               79.79           -               79.79           

Total -               79.79           -               79.79           

* Movement due to change in fair value of unquoted Investment in equity shares measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Level 1 Total
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
(a) Long-term borrowings (including Current maturities of long-term borrowings) 4,466.03     8,498.75     -               12,964.78  
(b) Short-term borrowings -               5,926.92     -               5,926.92     
(c) Option premium accrual -               226.93        -               226.93        

Total 4,466.03     14,652.60  -               19,118.63  

Total
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
(a) Long-term borrowings (including Current maturities of long-term borrowings) 4,241.13     13,234.03  -               17,475.16  
(b) Short-term borrowings -               9,129.91     -               9,129.91     
(c) Option premium accrual -               304.29        -               304.29        

Total 4,241.13     22,668.23  -               26,909.36  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 * Total
As at March 31, 2022

Level 2 Level 3 *

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Total

Derivatives are fair valued using market observable rates and published prices together with forecast cash flow information where applicable.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described
below.

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of quoted equity shares, quoted corporate debt instruments and mutual fund investments.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e; as prices) or indirectly (i.e; derived from prices). This level of hierarchy include Company’s over-the-
counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by
prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The investments in certain unquoted equity instruments which are held for medium or long-term strategic purpose and are not held for trading. Upon the application of Ind AS
109, the Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as the management believe that this provides a more meaningful presentation
for medium or long-term strategic investments, than reflecting changes in fair value in profit or loss.

                 As at March 31, 2023
Level 1

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of fair value of financial instruments that are not measured at fair value on recurring basis, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 categories:

Level 2 Level 3

Other short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortised cost which is approximately equal to their fair value.

                 As at March 31, 2023

The fair value of borrowings which have a quoted market price in an active market is based on its market price and for other borrowings the fair value is estimated by discounting
expected future cash flows, using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return, adjusted for the credit spread considered by the lenders for instruments of similar
maturity.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore,
substantially for all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in
sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported
at each year end.

As at March 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
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(b) Offsetting

(₹ in crores)

Financial 
instruments

Cash 
collateral 
(received/ 
pledged)

Financial assets
(a) 941.40        -                    941.40            (39.68)            -              901.72        
(b) Trade receivables 2,616.43     (308.71)            2,307.72         -                 -              2,307.72     
(c) Loans and advances-current 194.86        (62.57)               132.29            -                 -              132.29        

Total 3,752.69     (371.28)            3,381.41         (39.68)            -              3,341.73     
Financial liabilities
(a) 182.98        -                    182.98            (39.68)            -              143.30        
(b) Trade payables 7,533.88     (371.28)            7,162.60         -                 -              7,162.60     

Total 7,716.86     (371.28)            7,345.58         (39.68)            -              7,305.90     

Financial 
instruments

Cash 
collateral 
(received/ 
pledged)

Financial assets
(a) 721.10        -                    721.10            (9.68)              -              711.42        
(b) Trade receivables 2,291.96     (180.18)             2,111.78         -                  -              2,111.78     
(c) Loans and advances-current 157.12        (17.75)               139.37            -                  -              139.37        

Total 3,170.18     (197.93)             2,972.25         (9.68)              -              2,962.57     
Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments 79.79          -                    79.79              (9.68)              -              70.11          
(b) Trade payables 6,300.03     (197.93)             6,102.10         -                  -              6,102.10     

Total 6,379.82     (197.93)             6,181.89         (9.68)              -              6,172.21     

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to offsetting where there is currently a legally enforceable right to set off recognised
amounts and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability, simultaneously.

Amounts subject to an 
enforceable master netting 

arrangement

Certain derivative financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to master netting arrangements, whereby in the case of insolvency,
derivative financial assets and financial liabilities will be settled on a net basis. 

The following table discloses the amounts that have been offset, in arriving at the balance sheet presentation and the amounts that are
available for offset only under certain conditions as at March 31, 2023:

Gross 
amount 

recognised

Gross amount 
recognised as 
set off in the 

balance sheet

Net amount 
presented in 
the balance 

sheet

The following table discloses the amounts that have been offset in arriving at the balance sheet presentation and the amounts that are
available for offset only under certain conditions as at March 31, 2022:

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts subject to an 
enforceable master netting 

arrangement

Net amount 
after 

offsetting

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments

Net amount 
after 

offsetting

Gross 
amount 

recognised

Gross amount 
recognised as 
set off in the 

balance sheet

Net amount 
presented in 
the balance 

sheet
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                  Year ended March 31,
(c) Financial risk management

• 

• 

(i) Market risk

(i) (a) Foreign currency exchange rate risk:

(₹ in crores)
U.S. dollar GBP Others 1 Total

Financial assets 276.14        80.38          42.28        398.80      
Financial liabilities 6,735.99     7.89             73.70        6,817.58  

1

U.S. dollar GBP Others 2 Total
Financial assets 267.59        5.74             47.94        321.27      
Financial liabilities 6,126.39     81.59           127.22      6,335.20   

2

(Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/(loss) before tax basis.)

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company would result in decrease/increase
in the Company’s net profit/(loss) before tax by approximately ₹32.13 crores and ₹633.52 crores for financial assets and financial liabilities respectively for
the year ended March 31, 2022.

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity and
credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments.

The Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets and
liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the board of directors. The risk management framework aims
to:

Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial

instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity price

fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

The exposure as indicated below is mitigated by some of the derivative contracts entered into by the Company as disclosed in (iv) derivative financial
instruments and risk management below.

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure (other than risk arising from derivatives disclosed at clause (iv) below) as of
March 31, 2023:

Others mainly include currencies such as the Euro, Chinese yuan, South african rand, Singapore Dollar, Thai bahts and Bangladesh taka.

10% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company would result in decrease/increase
in the Company’s net profit/(loss) before tax by approximately ₹39.88 crores and ₹681.76 crores for financial assets and financial liabilities respectively for
the year ended March 31, 2023.

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure (other than risk arising from derivatives disclosed at clause (iv) below) as of
March 31, 2022:

Achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, balance
sheet, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency.

Others mainly include currencies such as the Euro, Chinese yuan, South african rand, Singapore Dollar, Thai bahts and Bangladesh taka.

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company operates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuations in
exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate to fluctuations in U.S. dollar, Euro and GBP against the respective functional currencies of the
Company.

The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks. It hedges a part of these risks by 
using derivative financial instruments in accordance with its risk management policies.

The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange and other derivative instruments primarily to hedge foreign exchange and interest
rate exposure. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company’s cost of exports and cost of borrowings and consequently may
increase the cost of financing the Company's capital expenditures.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of each currency and a
simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 10% while keeping the other variables as constant.
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                  Year ended March 31,
(i) (b) Interest rate risk

(Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/(loss) before tax basis).

(i) (c) Equity Price risk
Equity Price Risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities.

(Note: The impact is indicated on equity before consequential tax impact, if any).

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will lead to changes in fair value of financial instruments or changes
in interest income, expense and cash flows of the Company.

The fair value of some of the Company’s investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income exposes the
Company to equity price risks. These investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities. The fair value of
Company's investment in quoted equity securities as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 was ₹574.37 crores and ₹718.49 crores,
respectively. A 10% change in equity price as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 would result in a pre- tax impact of ₹57.44 crores and 
₹71.85 crores, respectively.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilities. The Company’s interest rate exposure is
mainly related to debt obligations. The Company also uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the
liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like short term loans.
As at March 31, 2023 and 2022, financial liabilities of ₹4,493.80 crores and ₹5,954.82 crores, respectively, were subject to variable
interest rates. Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in decrease/increase in
profit/(loss) before tax of ₹44.94 crores and ₹59.55 crores for the year ended March 31, 2023 and  2022, respectively.

The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantaneous parallel shifts in the yield curve. Although some assets and
liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing, these may not react correspondingly to changes in market interest
rates. Also, the interest rates on some types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate with changes in market interest rates, while
interest rates on other types of assets may change with a lag.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also
assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that
date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

F-53

 233



(ii
)

Cr
ed

it 
ris

k

Cr
ed

it 
qu

al
ity

 o
f f

in
an

cia
l a

ss
et

s a
nd

 im
pa

irm
en

t l
os

s
Th

e 
ag

ei
ng

 o
f t

ra
de

 re
ce

iva
bl

es
 a

s o
f b

al
an

ce
 sh

ee
t d

at
e 

is 
gi

ve
n 

be
lo

w
. T

he
 a

ge
 a

na
ly

sis
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
du

e 
da

te
.

(₹
 in

 cr
or

es
)

Tr
ad

e 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s
Up

 to
 6

 
m

on
th

s
6 

m
on

th
s t

o 
1 

ye
ar

1-
2 

ye
ar

s
2-

3 
ye

ar
s

M
or

e 
th

an
 3

 
ye

ar
s

Up
 to

 6
 

m
on

th
s

6 
m

on
th

s t
o 

1 
ye

ar
1-

2 
ye

ar
s

2-
3 

ye
ar

s
M

or
e 

th
an

 3
 

ye
ar

s
Un

di
sp

ut
ed

(a
)

Co
ns

id
er

ed
 g

oo
d

1,
09

0.
95

    
 

47
5.

03
    

    
    

16
2.

94
    

    
 

57
.7

2
    

  
67

.0
8

    
  

45
4.

00
    

    
   

2,
30

7.
72

    
 

1,
14

5.
96

    
38

7.
22

    
  

14
.5

4
    

    
    

    
81

.7
3

    
  

86
.7

0
    

  
39

5.
13

    
    

  
2,

11
1.

28
    

    
(b

)
-

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

  
-

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

  
-

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
   

 
-

    
    

    
    

  
(c

)
Cr

ed
it 

im
pa

ire
d

10
4.

60
    

    
21

.8
5

    
    

    
   

32
.4

9
    

    
   

21
.6

3
    

  
29

.7
4

    
  

16
8.

42
    

    
   

37
8.

73
    

    
33

.3
3

    
    

 
27

.5
5

    
    

42
.5

3
    

    
    

    
16

.3
4

    
  

27
.8

7
    

  
11

8.
41

    
    

  
26

6.
03

    
    

   

Di
sp

ut
ed

(a
)

Co
ns

id
er

ed
 g

oo
d

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
  

-
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
  

0.
50

    
    

-
    

    
    

   
 

0.
50

    
    

    
    

(b
)

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
  

-
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
  

-
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
    

    
  

(c
)

Cr
ed

it 
im

pa
ire

d
-

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
0.

58
    

    
0.

19
    

    
17

5.
43

    
    

   
17

6.
20

    
    

-
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
    

 
0.

41
    

    
5.

85
    

    
15

7.
95

    
    

  
16

4.
21

    
    

   
To

ta
l

1,
19

5.
55

    
 

49
6.

88
    

    
    

19
5.

43
    

    
 

79
.9

3
    

  
97

.0
1

    
  

79
7.

85
    

    
   

2,
86

2.
65

    
 

1,
17

9.
29

    
41

4.
77

    
  

57
.0

7
    

    
    

   
 

98
.4

8
    

  
12

0.
92

    
67

1.
49

    
    

  
2,

54
2.

02
    

    

(5
54

.9
3)

    
   

(4
30

.2
4)

    
    

  
To

ta
l

2,
30

7.
72

    
  

2,
11

1.
78

    
    

 

35
5.

21
    

    
 

15
0.

49
    

    
    

11
2.

13
    

    
 

45
.3

9
    

  
53

.6
9

    
  

47
3.

94
    

    
   

1,
19

0.
86

    
 

22
5.

13
    

   
23

8.
84

    
  

31
.7

9
    

    
    

    
56

.3
7

    
  

50
.1

8
    

  
37

5.
56

    
    

  
97

7.
87

    
    

   

TA
TA

 M
OT

OR
S 

LI
M

IT
ED

NO
TE

S 
FO

RM
IN

G 
PA

RT
 O

F F
IN

AN
CI

AL
 S

TA
TE

M
EN

TS

Cr
ed

it
ris

k
is

th
e

ris
k

of
fin

an
cia

ll
os

s
ar

isi
ng

fro
m

co
un

te
rp

ar
ty

fa
ilu

re
to

re
pa

y
or

se
rv

ice
de

bt
ac

co
rd

in
g

to
th

e
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

lt
er

m
s

or
ob

lig
at

io
ns

.C
re

di
tr

isk
en

co
m

pa
ss

es
bo

th
th

e
di

re
ct

ris
k

of
de

fa
ul

ta
nd

th
e

ris
k

of
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n
of

cr
ed

itw
or

th
in

es
s a

s w
el

l a
s c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

ris
ks

.
Fi

na
nc

ia
li

ns
tr

um
en

ts
th

at
ar

e
su

bj
ec

tt
o

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

ns
of

cr
ed

it
ris

k,
pr

in
cip

al
ly

co
ns

ist
of

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

cla
ss

ifi
ed

as
fa

ir
va

lu
e

th
ro

ug
h

pr
of

it
an

d
lo

ss
,t

ra
de

re
ce

iva
bl

es
,l

oa
ns

an
d

ad
va

nc
es

an
d

de
riv

at
ive

fin
an

cia
li

ns
tr

um
en

ts
.T

he
Co

m
pa

ny
st

riv
es

to
pr

om
pt

ly
id

en
tif

y
an

d
re

du
ce

co
nc

er
ns

ab
ou

tc
ol

le
ct

io
n

du
e

to
a

de
te

rio
ra

tio
n

in
th

e
fin

an
cia

lc
on

di
tio

ns
an

d
ot

he
rs

of
its

m
ai

n
co

un
te

rp
ar

tie
sb

y
re

gu
la

rly
m

on
ito

rin
g

th
ei

rs
itu

at
io

n
ba

se
d

on
th

ei
rf

in
an

cia
lc

on
di

tio
n.

No
ne

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 re
su

lt 
in

 m
at

er
ia

l c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 o

f c
re

di
t r

isk
s.

Ex
po

su
re

 to
 cr

ed
it 

ris
k

Th
e

ca
rr

yi
ng

am
ou

nt
of

fin
an

cia
la

ss
et

s
re

pr
es

en
ts

th
e

m
ax

im
um

cr
ed

it
ex

po
su

re
.T

he
m

ax
im

um
ex

po
su

re
to

cr
ed

it
ris

k
w

as
₹1

0,
34

6.
83

cr
or

es
an

d
₹1

3,
56

8.
58

cr
or

es
as

at
M

ar
ch

31
,2

02
3

an
d

20
22

,r
es

pe
ct

ive
ly

,b
ei

ng
th

e
to

ta
lo

ft
he

ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f b

al
an

ce
s w

ith
 b

an
ks

, s
ho

rt
 te

rm
 d

ep
os

its
 w

ith
 b

an
ks

, t
ra

de
 re

ce
iva

bl
es

, f
in

an
ce

 re
ce

iva
bl

es
, m

ar
gi

n 
m

on
ey

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

ss
et

s e
xc

lu
di

ng
 e

qu
ity

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

.

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s t

ha
t a

re
 n

ei
th

er
 p

as
t d

ue
 n

or
 im

pa
ire

d
No

ne
of

th
e

Co
m

pa
ny

’s
ca

sh
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s,
in

clu
di

ng
sh

or
tt

er
m

de
po

sit
sw

ith
ba

nk
s,

ar
e

pa
st

du
e

or
im

pa
ire

d.
Re

ga
rd

in
g

tr
ad

e
re

ce
iva

bl
es

an
d

ot
he

rr
ec

ei
va

bl
es

,a
nd

ot
he

rl
oa

ns
or

re
ce

iva
bl

es
th

at
ar

e
ne

ith
er

im
pa

ire
d

no
rp

as
td

ue
,t

he
re

w
er

e 
no

 in
di

ca
tio

ns
 a

s a
t M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

3,
 a

nd
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

20
22

, t
ha

t d
ef

au
lts

 in
 p

ay
m

en
t o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 w

ill 
oc

cu
r.

As
 a

t M
ar

ch
 3

1,

W
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

sig
ni

fic
an

t i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 cr
ed

it 
ris

k

W
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

sig
ni

fic
an

t i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 cr
ed

it 
ris

k

Tr
ad

e
re

ce
iva

bl
es

co
ns

ist
of

a
la

rg
e

nu
m

be
ro

fv
ar

io
us

ty
pe

so
fc

us
to

m
er

s,
sp

re
ad

ac
ro

ss
ge

og
ra

ph
ica

la
re

as
.O

ng
oi

ng
cr

ed
it

ev
al

ua
tio

n
is

pe
rfo

rm
ed

on
th

e
fin

an
cia

lc
on

di
tio

n
of

th
es

e
tr

ad
e

re
ce

iva
bl

es
an

d
w

he
re

ap
pr

op
ria

te
al

lo
w

an
ce

fo
r l

os
se

s a
re

 p
ro

vid
ed

. F
ur

th
er

 th
e 

Co
m

pa
ny

, g
ro

up
s t

he
 tr

ad
e 

re
ce

iva
bl

es
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

ty
pe

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

s a
nd

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

 cr
ed

it 
ris

k 
is 

de
te

rm
in

ed
.

20
23

No
t d

ue
Ov

er
du

e
To

ta
l

20
22

Ov
er

du
e

No
t d

ue
To

ta
l

Le
ss

: A
llo

w
an

ce
 fo

r c
re

di
t i

m
pa

ire
d 

ba
la

nc
es

Tr
ad

e 
re

ce
iva

bl
e 

fro
m

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

F-
54

 234



(iii) Liquidity risk

(₹ in crores)
Financial liabilities Carrying 

amount
Due in 1st 

Year
Due in 2nd 

Year
Due in 3rd 

to 5th Year
Due after 
5th Year

Total 
contractual 
cash flows

(a) Trade payables 7,162.60    7,162.60    -              -              -              7,162.60    
(b) Acceptances 5,839.39    5,839.39    -              -              -              5,839.39    
(c) Borrowings and interest 

thereon 19,175.53  8,962.28    3,471.67    7,957.21    53.30          20,444.46  
(d) Other financial liabilities 1,228.55    956.14        139.98        116.05        52.81          1,264.98    
(e) Lease liabilities 406.25        134.86        125.72        168.77        97.57          526.92        
(f) Derivative liabilities 182.98        40.95          -              142.03        -              182.98        

Total 33,995.30  23,096.22  3,737.37    8,384.06    203.68        35,421.33  

Financial liabilities Carrying 
amount

Due in 1st 

Year
Due in 2nd 

Year
Due in 3rd 

to 5th Year
Due after 
5th Year

Total 
contractual 
cash flows

(a) Trade payables 6,102.10     6,102.10     -              -              -              6,102.10     
(b) Acceptances 7,883.96     7,883.96     -              -              -              7,883.96     
(c) Borrowings and interest 

thereon
23,581.13  10,677.39  3,535.61     12,522.71  129.74        26,865.45  

(d) Other financial liabilities 1,145.36     761.99        124.75        180.44        144.73        1,211.91     
(e) Lease liabilities 296.42        79.96          83.83          143.31        72.53          379.63        
(f) Derivative liabilities 79.79          2.79            -              77.00          -              79.79          

Total 39,088.76  25,508.19  3,744.19     12,923.46  347.00        42,522.84  

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at
March 31, 2022:

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty to meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Further, the Company has access to
funds from debt markets through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures, senior notes and other debt instruments.
The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and liquid and liquid plus schemes of mutual funds, which carry no/low
mark to market risks. The Company has also invested 15% of the amount of non-convertible debentures (taken/issued by the Company)
falling due for repayment in the next 12 months in bank deposits, to meet the regulatory norms of liquidity requirements.

The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial
flexibility.
The table below provides undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at March
31, 2023:
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                  Year ended March 31,
(iv) Derivative financial instruments and risk management

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is as follows:
(₹ in crores)

2023 2022
(a) Foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options 840.70        687.18         
(b) Commodity Derivatives (1.22)           26.16           
(c) Interest rate derivatives (81.06)         (72.03)         

          Total 758.42        641.31         

(v) Commodity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to commodity price risk arising from the purchase of certain raw materials such as aluminium, copper, platinum and
palladium. This risk is mitigated through the use of derivative contracts and fixed-price contracts with suppliers. The derivative contracts are not
hedge accounted under Ind AS 109 but are instead measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The (gain)/loss on commodity derivative contracts, recognised in the statement of profit and loss was ₹49.16 crores and ₹17.96 crores for the
years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Company also enters into interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swap agreements, mainly to manage exposure on its fixed
rate or variable rate debt. The Company uses interest rate derivatives or currency swaps to hedge exposure to exchange rate fluctuations on
principal and interest payments for borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

Specific transactional risks include risks like liquidity and pricing risks, interest rate and exchange rate fluctuation risks, volatility risks,
counterparty risks, settlement risks and gearing risks.
Fair value of derivative financial instruments are determined using valuation techniques based on information derived from observable market
data.

The Company has entered into a variety of foreign currency, interest rates and commodity forward contracts and options to manage its
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity price risk. The counterparty is generally a bank. These
financial exposures are managed in accordance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The gain/(loss) due to fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates on derivative contracts, recognised in the income statement was ₹228.36 
crores and ₹48.78 crores for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As at March 31,
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41. Related-party transactions

(₹ in crores)
Subsidiaries Joint Arrangements Associates 

and its 
subsidiaries

Tata Sons Pvt Ltd, its 
subsidiaries and joint 

arrangements

Total

A) Transactions
Purchase of products 2,676.70      2,528.59                   1,841.54        173.57                          7,220.40      
Sale of products 588.81         1,659.27                   282.55            1,234.76                       3,765.39      
Services received 646.99         0.39                           2.34                286.39                          936.11         
Services rendered 930.42         6.22                           20.55              47.21                            1,004.40      
Bills discounted 4,806.57      -                             -                  7,903.93                       12,710.50    
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13.01            -                             9.81                2.33                               25.15           
Finance given (including loans and equity) 171.95         -                             -                  -                                 171.95         
Finance given, taken back (including loans and equity) 20.75            -                             -                  -                                 20.75           
Finance taken (including loans and equity) 18,081.75    -                             143.00            -                                 18,224.75    
Finance taken, paid back (including loans and equity) 17,106.00    -                             186.00            -                                 17,292.00    
Interest expense 409.53         -                             4.23                40.69                            454.45         
Interest income 1.26              -                             -                  -                                 1.26              
Dividend income 123.49         236.34                      21.68              14.32                            395.83         

(B) Balances
Amounts receivable in respect of loans and interest thereon 679.29         -                             -                  -                                 679.29         
Amounts payable in respect of loans and interest thereon 5,350.75      -                             48.00              2.50                               5,401.25      
Trade and other receivables 302.11         199.70                      22.76              188.11                          712.68         
Trade payables 209.50         85.98                        46.67              117.32                          459.47         
Acceptances 1,167.52      -                             -                  882.11                          2,049.63      
Assets / deposits given/taken as security 0.07              -                             -                  -                                 0.07              
Provision for amount receivable (including loans) 661.00         -                             -                  -                                 661.00         

Subsidiaries Joint Arrangements Associates 
and its 

subsidiaries

Tata Sons Pvt Ltd, its 
subsidiaries and joint 

arrangements

Total

A) Transactions
Purchase of products 1,007.25      5,565.39                   3,272.49        22.82                            9,867.95      
Sale of products 538.10          1,693.00                   379.29            920.00                          3,530.39      
Services received 871.76          0.31                           10.95              196.30                          1,079.32      
Services rendered 449.82          5.23                           10.48              25.96                            491.49         
Bills discounted 336.14          -                             -                  3,697.86                       4,034.00      
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5.91              -                             25.99              8.42                               40.32           
Sale of business -                -                             -                  234.09                          234.09         
Finance given (including loans and equity) 10,342.14    -                             -                  -                                 10,342.14    
Finance given, taken back (including loans and equity) 55.00            -                             -                  -                                 55.00           
Finance taken (including loans and equity) 10,605.49    -                             148.00            -                                 10,753.49    
Finance taken, paid back (including loans and equity) 6,602.49      -                             152.00            -                                 6,754.49      
Interest expense 78.06            19.62                        5.87                87.02                            190.57         
Interest income 17.56            1.17                           -                  -                                 18.73           
Dividend income 53.02            22.95                        -                  13.32                            89.29           
Borrowing towards lease Liability -                41.40                        -                  -                                 41.40           
Repayment towards lease liability -                17.27                        -                  -                                 17.27           

(B) Balances
Amounts receivable in respect of loans and interest thereon 619.49          -                             -                  -                                 619.49         
Amounts payable in respect of loans and interest thereon 4,375.00      -                             91.00              2.90                               4,468.90      
Trade and other receivables 98.26            83.85                        50.35              157.35                          389.81         
Trade payables 150.71          111.92                      75.11              28.54                            366.28         
Acceptances 235.96          -                             -                  1,529.72                       1,765.68      
Assets / deposits given/taken as security 0.11              -                             -                  -                                 0.11              
Provision for amount receivable (including loans) 661.00          -                             -                  -                                 661.00         

TATA MOTORS LIMITED

The following table summarises related-party transactions and balances for the year ended / as at March 31, 2022:

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s related parties principally includes subsidiaries, joint operations, associates and their subsidiaries, Tata Sons Pvt Limited, subsidiaries and joint ventures of Tata Sons Pvt
Limited. The Company routinely enters into transactions with these related parties in the ordinary course of business. 

The following table summarises related-party transactions and balances for the year ended / as at March 31, 2023:

All transactions with related parties are conducted at arm's length price under normal terms of business and all amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.
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41. Related-party transactions (continued)

Details of significant transactions are given below (More than 10% of total transaction value with related parties) :

Name of Related Party Nature of relationship 2023 2022
i) Purchase of products

Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited  Subsidiary 655.96                            284.15                  
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited  Subsidiary 2,009.19                        525.92                  
Tata Cummins Private Limited Joint Arrangements 2,528.03                        1,843.36              
Fiat India Automobiles Private Limited Joint Arrangements -                                  3,739.30              

ii) Sale of products
Fiat India Automobiles Private Limited Joint Arrangements 1,546.06                        1,589.81              
Tata Advance Systems Limited

524.46                            -                        
iii) Services received

TML Business Services Limited  Subsidiary 100.93                            119.08                  
Tata Technologies Limited  Subsidiary 426.69                            448.60                  
Tata Motors European Technical Centre PLC  Subsidiary 11.03                              115.74                  

iv) Services rendered
Jaguar Land Rover Limited  Subsidiary 101.79                            110.03                  
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited  Subsidiary 689.72                            256.00                  

v) Bill discounted
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 7,903.93                        3,697.86              

Tata Motors Finance Limited  Subsidiary 4,636.80                        336.14                  
vi) Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Tata Technologies Limited  Subsidiary 12.86                              5.95                      
Tata Toyo Rediator Limited 3.49                                3.53                      
TM Automotive Seating Systems Private Limited 3.19                                11.45                    

vii) Finance given (including loans and equity)
Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited  Subsidiary 41.25                              743.36                  
Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited  Subsidiary 35.00                              -                        
TML CV Mobility Solutions Limited  Subsidiary 89.95                              -                        

vii) Finance given, taken back (including loans and equity)
Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited  Subsidiary 20.00                              -                        

viii) Finance taken (including loans and equity)
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited  Subsidiary 13,775.00                      6,055.00              
Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited  Subsidiary 92.75                              2,875.00              
Tata Technologies Limited  Subsidiary 1,839.50                        1,481.00              

ix) Finance taken, paid back (including loans and equity)
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited  Subsidiary 12,810.00                      4,285.00              
Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited  Subsidiary 534.25                            375.00                  
Tata Technologies Limited  Subsidiary 1,397.25                        1,688.50              

x) Interest expense 
Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited  Subsidiary 138.15                            22.54                    
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited  Subsidiary 170.11                            3.84                      
Tata Technologies Limited  Subsidiary 25.46                              32.47                    
Fiat India Automobiles Private Limited Joint Arrangements -                                  19.62                    

xi) Interest income
Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited  Subsidiary 1.06                                3.57                      
TML CV Mobility Solutions Limited  Subsidiary 0.18                                -                        
Tata Motors European Technical Centre PLC  Subsidiary -                                  2.22                      

xii) Dividend income
TML Business Services Limited  Subsidiary 63.49                              -                        
Tata Cummins Private Limited Joint Arrangements 236.34                            22.95                    
Tata Motors Insurance Broking and Advisory Services Ltd  Subsidiary 60.00                              40.00                    
Tata Motors Finance Limited  Subsidiary -                                  13.02                    
Tata Sons Pvt Ltd Promoter Company 12.38                              12.38                    

xiii) Slump sale of PV undertaking (Refer note 45)
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited  Subsidiary -                                  9,417.00              

Note: 

The Company is required, in terms of Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, to obtain the approval
of shareholders for the transaction of sale of products aggregating to ₹1,546.06 Crores with Fiat India Automobiles Private Limited, a joint arrangement, which has become a material
related party transaction for the year ended March 31, 2023. The Company proposes to take the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

 Tata Sons Pvt Ltd, its subsidiaries and joint 
arrangements 

 Associates and its subsidiaries 
 Associates and its subsidiaries 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31,

 Tata Sons Pvt Ltd, its subsidiaries and joint 
arrangements 
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41. Related-party transactions (continued)
(₹ in crores)

Compensation of key management personnel:
2023 2022

Short-term benefits 17.27                    29.84                     
Post-employment benefits* 0.66                      1.44                       
Employees stock option plan 4.67                      2.46                       

42.

(a)

Name of the Company

(i) Subsidiaries:
Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Tata Marcopolo Motors Limited) 15.00 35.00 
(Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited has utilised this loan for meeting its capex requirement and general corporate purposes) -  -  
Jaguar Land Rover Technology and Business Services India (P) Ltd. (Formerly known as JT Special Vehicle (P) Ltd.) -  0.75 

-  -  

TML CV Mobility Solutions Limited 45.00 45.00 
(TML CV Mobility Solutions Limited  has utilised this loan for meeting its capex requirement and general corporate purposes) -  -  
Tata Hispano Motors Carrocera S.A. 561.10 561.10 

561.10 561.10 

Tata Hispano Motors Carroceries Maghreb SA 58.39 58.39 
(Tata Hispano Motors Carroceries Maghreb SA has utilised this loan for general corporate purposes, which is partly provided) 58.39 58.39 

(b) Details of Investments made are given in notes 6, 7 and 8. 

43.

Name of the Company
2023 2022

Subsidiaries
India 100.00                  100.00                   

Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited India 100.00                  100.00                   
TML CV Mobility Solutions Limited India 100.00                  100.00                   

India 100.00                  100.00                   
Tata Motors Insurance Broking and Advisory Services Ltd India 100.00                  100.00                   

India 74.69                    74.43                     
TMF Holdings Ltd India 100.00                  100.00                   
Tata Motors Body Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Tata Marcopolo Motors Limited) India 100.00                  61.86                     
TML Holdings Pte Ltd Singapore 100.00                  100.00                   
Tata Hispano Motors Carrocera  S.A Spain 100.00                  100.00                   
Tata Hispano Motors Carroceries Maghreb S.A Morocco 100.00                  100.00                   

India 100.00                  100.00                   
Tata Precision Industries Pte Ltd Singapore 78.39                    78.39                     

India 100.00                  100.00                   
TML Smart City Mobility Solutions Limited India 100.00                  -                         

Associates
India 48.98                    48.98                     

Nita Co. Ltd Bangladesh 40.00                    40.00                     
Tata AutoComp Systems Ltd India 26.00                    26.00                     
Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery Company Private Ltd India 39.74                    39.74                     

Joint Venture (JV) 
Fiat India Automobiles Private Ltd India 50.00                    50.00

                  Year ended March 31,

Refer note 33(B) for information on transactions with post employment benefit plans.

The compensation of erstwhile CEO and Managing Director is ₹16.97 crores for the year ended March 31, 2022, which includes ₹9.63 crores of performance bonus and long term incentive for the year
ended March 31, 2021, approved in the quarter ended June 30, 2021. 
The compensation of Executive Director is ₹4.64 crores and ₹3.34 crores for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
The compensation of Group CFO is ₹13.29 crores and ₹9.12 crores for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively.

Brabo Robotics and Automation Limited 

TML Business Services Ltd

Place of business

 % direct holding 
Details of significant investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

(Tata Hispano Motors Carrocera S.A. has utilised this loan for meeting its capex requirement, grant repayment and general corporate purposes, which is fully
provided) 

(Jaguar Land Rover Technology and Business Services India (P) Ltd. has utilised this loan for meeting its capex requirement and general corporate purposes) 

Automobile Corporation of Goa Limited 

 as at March 31, Country of incorporation/

Tata Technologies Ltd 

Jaguar Land Rover Technology and Business Services India (P) Ltd. (Formerly known as JT Special 
Vehicle (P) Ltd.)

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disclosures required by Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Outstanding as at 
March 31, 2023 / 
March 31, 2022

Maximum 
amount 

outstanding 
during the year

Amount of loans / advances in nature of loans outstanding from subsidiaries on a standalone basis.

* Provisions for contribution to gratuity, leave encashment and other defined benefit are determined by actuary on an overall Company basis at the end of each year and, accordingly, have not been
considered in the above information. The amount is disclosed only at the time of payment.
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44. Transactions with struck off companies

(₹ in crores)

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions 
with struck off Company Amount of transactions Balance outstanding Relationship with the Struck 

off company

Jessica Motors Pvt. Ltd. Warranty/AMC claims -                                         0.01                            External customer
Anandji Haridas & Co Pvt Ltd Warranty/AMC claims -                                         (0.02)                           External customer
Sai Prashad Auto Pvt Ltd Warranty/AMC claims -                                         (0.00)                           # External customer
R K Reprocess Powder Coating OPC Pvt Ltd Warranty/AMC claims -                                         (0.00)                           # External customer
Aargee Equipments Pvt Ltd Material purchase (0.34)                                      (0.00)                           # External vendor

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions 
with struck off Company Amount of transactions Balance outstanding Relationship with the Struck 

off company

Jessica Motors Pvt. Ltd. Warranty/AMC claims -                                         0.01                            External customer
Axis Systems Private Limited Material purchase (0.69)                                      (0.03)                           External vendor
Aargee Equipments Pvt Ltd Material purchase (0.34)                                      (0.00)                           # External vendor
Akshay industries Private Limited Services availed                                       (0.19) (0.01)                           External vendor
Anil Enterprises Private Limited Material purchase (0.01)                                      -                              External vendor
Durga Automobiles Private Limited Services availed (0.09)                                      -                              External vendor
Harsh Enterprises Private Limited Material purchase (0.00)                                      # -                              External vendor
Interface Micro Systems Private Limited Material purchase (10.24)                                    (0.07)                           External vendor
K K Enterprises Pvt Ltd Material purchase (0.01)                                      -                              External vendor
Karnavati Motors Private Limited Services availed (0.02)                                      -                              External vendor
Lala Enterprises Pvt Ltd Services availed (0.18)                                      (0.00)                           # External vendor
Murarka Trading Company Pvt Ltd Material purchase (1.16)                                      (0.05)                           External vendor
Madhavi Constructions Private Limited Services availed (1.24)                                      -                              External vendor
Microtech Industries Limited Material purchase (0.05)                                      (0.00)                           # External vendor
Prakash Industries Limited Material purchase (8.64)                                      (0.06)                           External vendor
Prakash Motors Private Limited Services availed (0.03)                                      -                              External vendor
Pratap Motors Private Limited Services availed (0.08)                                      (0.00)                           # External vendor
Rushi Motors Private Limited Services availed (5.09)                                      (0.06)                           External vendor
Rudraksha Electricals Private Limited Material purchase (0.06)                                      -                              External vendor
Sanch Marketing Private Limited Material purchase (0.01)                                      -                              External vendor
Shiva Motors Pvt Ltd Services availed (0.20)                                      -                              External vendor
Savitri Motors Private Limited Services availed (0.02)                                      (0.01)                           External vendor
Suprabha Enterprises Private Limited Material purchase (0.52)                                      (0.03)                           External vendor
Sarna Motors Private Limited Services availed (0.01)                                      -                              External vendor
Shanti Motors Pvt Ltd Services availed (0.01)                                      -                              External vendor
Shah Associates Private Limited Material purchase (0.17)                                      (0.01)                           External vendor
Shreya Industries Private Limited Material purchase (0.16)                                      (0.06)                           External vendor
Super Transports Private Limited Services availed (0.00)                                      # -                              External vendor
Sandeep Automobiles Private Limited Services availed (0.07)                                      (0.00)                           # External vendor
Tara Tools Private Limited Material purchase (0.25)                                      (0.12)                           External vendor
Total Solutions Private Limited Material purchase (0.00)                                      # -                              External vendor
Unique Marketing Private Limited Material purchase (0.00)                                      # -                              External vendor
V Solutions Privatelimited Services availed (0.01)                                      -                              External vendor
Yadav Motors Private Limited Services availed                                       (0.04) 0.00                            # External vendor
Zenith Motors Private Limited Services availed (0.00)                                      # -                              External vendor
Active Automobiles Private Limited Services availed -                                         (0.00)                           # External vendor
Akhileshwar Packaging (India) Private Limited Services availed -                                         (0.05)                           External vendor
Constant Security Services Private Ltd Services availed -                                         0.00                            # External vendor
Parikh Inn Private Limited Services availed -                                         0.00                            # External vendor
Friends Auto(India)Pvt Ltd Material purchase -                                         0.18                            External vendor
Riddhi Motors Private Limited Services availed -                                         (0.00)                           # External vendor
S I Enterprises Private Limited Material purchase -                                         0.15                            External vendor
Shri Ganesh Industries India Private Ltd Services availed -                                         (0.00)                           # External vendor
Vaishnavi Motors Private Limited Services availed -                                         0.00                            # External vendor

# less than ₹ 50,000 /-

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table summarises the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 for
the year ended / as at March 31, 2022:

The following table summarises the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 for
the year ended / as at March 31, 2023:
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45. Discontinued operations

(₹ in crores)
Nine months ended 
December 31, 2021

I Revenue from operations 21,376.71                    
II Other Income                           411.77 

III Total Income (I+II) 21,788.48                    
IV Expenses 21,955.88                    
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)                         (167.40)

VI Exceptional items                         (559.91)
VII Profit before tax from discontinued operations (V-VI)                           392.51 

VIII Tax expense (net) from discontinued operations                             44.14 
IX Profit for the period from discontinued operations (VII-VIII)                           348.37 

Net Cash flow attributable to PV Undertaking are as follows
Nine months ended 
December 31, 2021

Cash flow from Operating activities 2,689.36                      
Cash flow used in Investing activities (847.73)                        
Cash flow used in Financing activities (383.01)                        
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent                        1,458.62 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A Scheme of Arrangement, between Tata Motors Limited and Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Transferee Company) for transfer

of the PV Undertaking of the Company to the Transferee Company, was effective from January 1, 2022. Post transfer of PV Undertaking,

the arrangement with Fiat India Automobiles Private Limited (FIAPL) is considered to be a Joint Venture of the Company.
Accordingly, the results of PV undertaking along with joint operation Fiat India Automobiles Private Limited (FIAPL) has been disclosed as
discontinued operations in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 as follows: 

The Company had stopped depreciation from the date of receipt of NCLT order. Accordingly Depreciation and Amortisation of ₹737.07
crores is not provided from August 25, 2021 to December 31, 2021.
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46. Additional information

A. Balance Sheet
(₹ in crores)

2023 2022
I. ASSETS

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, plant and equipment 11,187.42       11,201.05       
(b) Capital work-in-progress 548.03             561.34             
(c) Right of use assets 417.59             329.85             
(d) Other intangible assets 2,233.70         1,914.76          
(e) Intangible assets under development 508.78             879.77             
(f) Investments in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates 27,299.19       27,239.85       
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments 1,204.82         1,338.94          
(ii) Loans and advances 114.01             48.11               
(iii) Other financial assets 2,414.75         1,977.74          

(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 1,615.42         -                   
(i) Non-current tax assets (net) 806.57             720.22             
(j) Other non-current assets 583.08             652.68             

48,933.36       46,864.31       
(2) CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Inventories 2,765.51         3,412.51          
(b)

(i) Investments 3,035.92         5,067.48          
(ii) Trade receivables 2,175.01         2,006.57          
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,091.28         2,425.92          
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 293.17             155.15             
(v) Loans and advances 130.79             137.24             
(vi) Other financial assets 297.19             831.90             

(c) Other current assets 1,206.96         1,075.39          
10,995.83       15,112.16       

TOTAL ASSETS 59,929.19       61,976.47       
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY  
(a) Equity share capital 766.02             765.88             
(b) Other equity 20,434.25       17,887.97       

21,200.27       18,653.85       
LIABILITIES
(1) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10,445.70       14,102.74       
(ii) Lease liabilities 305.26             237.84             
(iii) Other financial liabilities 414.44             460.37             

(b) Provisions 1,535.10         1,416.66          
(c) Other non-current liabilities 659.45             477.21             

13,359.95       16,694.82       
(2) CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 7,898.57         9,054.11          
(ii) Lease liabilities 99.87               58.58               
(iii) Trade payables

(a) 91.60               136.86             
(b) 6,727.28         5,722.51          

(iv) Acceptances 6,367.56         7,883.96          
(v) Other financial liabilities 1,254.73         1,098.31          

(b) Provisions 431.57             638.24             
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 32.69               31.36               
(d) Other current liabilities 2,465.10         2,003.87          

25,368.97       26,627.80       
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 59,929.19       61,976.47       

The financial statements include the Company's proportionate share of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure in its two Joint Operations,
namely Tata Cummins Private Limited and Fiat India Automobile Private Limited (which ceased to be a joint operation w.e.f. January 1, 2022).
Below are supplementary details of Tata Motors Limited on standalone basis excluding interest in the aforesaid Joint Operations:

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Financial assets

         As at March 31,

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B. Statement of Profit and Loss
(₹ in crores)

Particulars 2023
Revenue from operations
Revenue 64,553.55            46,286.03       
Other operating revenue 455.80                  382.89             

I. Total revenue from operations 65,009.35            46,668.92       
II. Other Income 1,033.61              683.46             
III. 66,042.96            47,352.38       
IV. Expenses

(a) 42,261.55            31,669.81       
(b) 6,561.32              5,030.01         
(c) 476.10                  (386.24)           
(d) 3,867.28              3,465.71         
(e) 2,042.52              2,113.36         
(f) Foreign exchange loss (net) 280.34                  135.78             
(g) 1,683.82              1,678.28         
(h) 899.06                  593.90             
(i) 7,551.67              5,833.73         
(j) (1,048.46)             (903.16)           

64,575.20            49,231.18       
V. Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 1,467.76              (1,878.80)        
VI. Exceptional items

(a) Employee separation cost 1.36                      8.35                 
(b) -                        50.00               
(c) Provision/(Reversal) for loan given to/investment in subsidiary companies 4.55                      (139.24)           
(d) Provision for Intangible assets under development 276.91                  -                    
(e) Others (refer note 49(iii)) -                        (2.52)                

VII. Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) 1,184.94              (1,795.39)        
VIII. Tax expense/(credit) (net)

(a) Current tax 8.27                      (0.28)                
(b) Deferred tax (1,570.95)             (31.77)              
Total tax expense/(credit) (net) (1,562.68)             (32.05)              

IX. Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 2,747.62              (1,763.34)        
X. Profit/(loss) before tax for the year from discontinued operations -                        143.81             
XI. Tax expense (net) of discontinued operations

(a) Current tax -                        -                    
(b) Deferred tax -                        -                    
Total tax expense -                        -                    

XII. Profit for the year after tax from discontinued operations (X-XI) -                        143.81             
XIII. Profit/(loss) for the year (IX+XII) 2,747.62              (1,619.53)        
X. Other comprehensive income/(loss):

(A) (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:
(a) (59.77)                   (62.24)              
(b) (134.12)                371.29             

(ii) 34.54                    (31.20)              
(B) (i)  Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - gains/(losses) in cash flow hedges (99.70)                   1.62                 

(ii) 9.93                      (0.57)                
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of taxes (249.12)                278.90             

XI. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (XIII+XIV) 2,498.50              (1,340.63)        
XII. Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS)

Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations (EPS)
(a) Ordinary shares:

(i) ₹ 7.16                      (4.61)                
(ii) ₹ 7.16                      (4.61)                

(b) ‘A’ Ordinary shares:
(i) ₹ 7.26                      (4.61)                
(ii) ₹ 7.26                      (4.61)                

Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued operations (EPS)
(A) Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :

(i) ₹ -                        0.36                 
(ii) ₹ -                        0.36                 

(B) ‘A’ Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :
(i) ₹ -                        0.46                 
(ii) ₹ -                        0.46                 

Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing and discontinued operations (EPS)
(A) Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :

(i) ₹ 7.16                      7.03                 
(ii) ₹ 7.16                      7.02                 

(B) ‘A’ Ordinary shares (face value of ₹ 2 each) :
(i) ₹ 7.26                      7.13                 
(ii) ₹ 7.26                      7.12                 

Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Basic

Income tax credit/(expense) relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Basic
Diluted

Basic
Diluted

Income tax credit/(expense) relating to items that will be reclassified to profit and loss

Amount transferred to capital and other accounts
Total Expenses (IV)

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit obligations (net)

Cost of slump sale of PV undertaking

Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Product development/Engineering expenses
Other expenses

Year ended March 31,
2022

Total Income (I+II)

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and products for sale

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of products for sale
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47. Ratio

2023 2022
a) 0.84                     1.16              (27.59%)

b) 0.48                     0.01              3215.11%

c) 0.45                     0.58              (22.41%)

d) 29.76                   25.88            14.99%

e) 14.61                   10.60            37.83%

f) 3.62                     2.87              26.12%

g) (5.72)                    (5.98)             (4.43%)

h) 4.15% (2.94%) (240.98%)

i) 0.13                     (0.07)             (283.70%)

j) 0.09                     0.01              840.12%

k) 0.08                     (0.05)             (253.14%)

Notes:
i

ii
iii

iv

v

vi

vii
viii

48. Other statutory information :
(I)

(II)
(III)
(IV)

(V)

(VI)

VII)

VIII)

IX) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

Change Reason for change

Total debts includes non current and current borrowings
Equity = Equity share capital + Other equity

Debt Equity Ratio (number of times)
[Total Debt(i)/ Shareholders' Equity(ii)]

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (number of times)
[(Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax+Interest on 
Borrowings)/(Interest on Borrowings + Repayment of Borrowings(iii))]

[Raw material consumed(v) / average inventory(vi)]

Current ratio (number of times)
[Current assets (excluding Assets classified as held for sale) / Current 
liabilities (excluding Liabilities directly associated with Assets Classified as 
Held For Sale]
Trade receivable turnover (number of times)
[Revenue from operations / Average Trade receivables]

[Profit before interest and tax / Capital employed(vii)]

Net capital turnover (number of times)

[Net profit after tax / Average shareholders' equity]
Return on capital employed (number of times)

Inventory turnover (number of times) 

Trade payable turnover (number of times)
[Cost of material consumed(viii) / Average Trade payables]

Net profit margin (%)

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Repayment of borrowings includes repayment of long-term borrowings, proceeds from short-term borrowings, repayment of short-term borrowings and net change in
other short-term borrowings (with maturity up to three months).
Working capital = Current assets (excluding Assets classified as held for sale) - Current liabilities (excluding current maturities of Iong term debt, interest accrued on
borrowings and liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale).
Raw material consumed includes Cost of materials consumed, Purchases of products for sale and Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and products
for sale.
Inventory includes Raw materials and components, Work-in-progress, Finished goods, Stores and spare parts, Consumable tools and Goods-in-transit - Raw materials and
components.
Capital employed includes Shareholders' Equity, non current and current borrowings.

Return on investments (number of times)

Return on equity (number of times)

Sr No Year ended March 31,Particulars

The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in
accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Revenue from operations / Working capital(iv)]

Due to repayment of borrowings in current year
as compared to net proceeds from borrowings
in previous year

With the reduction in total debt during the year
and increase in shareholders' equity on account
of profit during the year, the ratio has
decreased compared to previous year

the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

During the year, there has been a reduction in
the average inventory levels and with higher
sales, material consumption for the year has
also increased reducing the inventory turnover
ratio
During the year, there has been a reduction in
average trade payables and with higher sales,
material consumption for the year has also
increased resulting into an increase in the trade
payable turnover ratio

Due to net profit after tax during the year

Due to net profit after tax during the year

Due to net profit after tax during the year

Due to higher profit before interest and tax
during the year

Includes Cost of material consumed and Purchases of products for sale.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. 

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

[Net profit after tax / Average investments]

[Net profit after tax / Revenue from continuing operations]

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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49. Other notes:
(i) Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(₹ in crores)

2023 2022 
(a) Amounts outstanding but not due (including capital creditors) as at March 31, 130.66             158.71              
(b) Amounts due but unpaid as at March 31, - Principal 3.55                 8.89                  
(c) Amounts paid after appointed date during the year - Principal 189.38             335.52              
(d) Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at March 31, - Interest 7.05                 5.44                  
(e) Amount of estimated interest due and payable for the period from April 1,2023

to actual date of payment or May 12, 2023 (whichever is earlier) - Interest 0.34                 0.11                  

(ii)

(iii)

In terms of our report attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP   N CHANDRASEKARAN [DIN: 00121863] P B BALAJI
Chartered Accountants   Chairman Group Chief Financial Officer
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

SHIRAZ VASTANI GIRISH WAGH [DIN: 03119361] MALOY KUMAR GUPTA [ACS: 24123]
Partner Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 103334
UDIN: 23103334BGYMRR6797
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12, 2023 Date: May 12, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

In April 2021, the Company has completed the sale of certain assets related to defence business to Tata Advanced Systems Limited (TASL) for sale consideration of ₹234.09 crores againts the Net Assets
of ₹231.57 crores resulting in a gain of ₹2.52 crores recorded as an exceptional item in Statement of Profit and Loss.

TATA MOTORS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at March 31, Particulars

The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information  available  with the Company. The amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below :

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed and
ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts (including derivative contracts) has been made in books of
account.
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Page 1 of 4

Company
Category of applicant1. *

Registrar of Companies, Mumbai

2. * Name of office of the registrar of Companies (RoC) to which application is being made

L28920MH1945PLC004520

    

Pre-fill 

TATA MOTORS LIMITED

Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody Street, NA 
Mumbai 
Maharashtra 
400001 
India 

(b) Address of the 

4. (a) Name of the company

3. (a)  Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign company

    inv_rel@tatamotors.com

5. Details of applicant (in case category is others)

(b)  Global location number (GLN) of company

registered office or 
of the principal place 
of business in India 
of the Company

(c) e-mail ID of the company

registration number (FCRN) of the company or RUN reference number 
(Service request number (SRN) of RUN)

           

                              

 

(a) Name

(b) Address Line I

Line II

(c) City

(d) State

(g) Pin code

(h) e-mail ID

Application filed for

Compounding of offences
Extension of period of annual general meeting by three months 
Scheme of arrangement, amalgamation
Others 

7. If Others, then specify

6. *

Form  for filing an application with 
Registrar of CompaniesFORM  NO. GNL-1

[Pursuant to rule 12(2) of the Companies 
(Registration offices and Fees) Rules,2014]

(e) ISO country code

(f)  Country

Note - All fields marked in   are to be mandatorily filled.*

Form language English Hindi
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(a) Whether application for compounding offence is filed in respect of

(c) Details of person(s) for whom the application is being filed

9. In case of application for compounding of offences, provide the following details

  Company Director  Manager or Secretary or CEO or CFO Other

(b) Number of person(s) for whom the application is being filed

A Scheme of Arrangement amongst Tata Motors Limited and its shareholders and creditors, under Section 230-232 
of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, for reduction of capital of the Company by way of cancellation of the entire ‘A’ 
Ordinary Shares of the Company and issuance and allotment of the Ordinary Shares, which would rank pari passu 
with the existing Ordinary Shares in the Company, as consideration for such reduction of Capital.

8.   Details of application*

 (i)

Name

Director identification number (DIN) or 
income-tax permanent account number 
(income-tax PAN) or passport number 

Pre-fill Category

 (ii) DIN or income-tax PAN or passport number Pre-fill 

Name

Category

 (iii) Pre-fill 

Name

DIN or income-tax PAN or passport number Category

 (iv) Pre-fill 

Name

DIN or income-tax PAN or passport number Category

 (v) Pre-fill 

Name

DIN or income-tax PAN or passport number Category

 (vi) Pre-fill 

Name

DIN or income-tax PAN or passport number Category

 (vii) Pre-fill 

Name

DIN or income-tax PAN or passport number Category

 (viii) Pre-fill 

Name

DIN or income-tax PAN or passport number Category
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(d) Whether application is being filed

Suo-motu  In pursuance to notice received from RoC or any other competent authority

(e) Notice number and date of notice

(g) Brief particulars as to how the default has been made good

(f) Section for which application is being filed

12. Total amount of stamp duty paid or stamp paper

  (DD/MM/YYYY)(c) Date of filing form MGT-14

(DD/MM/YYYY)   (b) Date of passing special or ordinary resolution

11.(a) Service request number of Form MGT-14

(DD/MM/YYYY)10. In case of application is made for extension of period of an AGM, mention financial

year end date in respect of which the application is being filed
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Attachments

Attach

Attach

Attach

CACAA 9MB 2024 Directions Crtfd Copy.pdf 
Ord 28032024 Recti Crtfd Copy.pdf 
NCLT APPLICATION.pdf 
CTC.pdf 
Scheme of Arrangement.pdf

Attach

Attach

5. Other attachments - if any

other competent authority
4. Copy of notice received from RoC or any 

3.   Detailed application

2. Scheme of arrangement, amalgamation

1. Board Resolution

List of attachments

*

Remove Attachment

I declare that I have been duly engaged for the purpose of certification of this form. It is hereby certified that I have gone through 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder for the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto 
and I have verified the above particulars (including attachment(s)) from the original/certified records maintained by the Company/
applicant which is subject matter of this form and found them to be true, correct and complete and no information material to this 
form has been suppressed. I further certify that:  
 

Certificate by practicing professional

The said records have been properly prepared, signed by the required officers of the Company and maintained as per the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and were found to be in order ;

i.

 All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form  ii.

Verification

26/07/202115
to sign and submit this application.

(DD/MM/YYYY)datedI have been authorised by the Board of directors' resolution number

To the best of my knowledge and belief, the information given in this application and its attachments is correct and 
complete.

I am duly authorised to sign and submit this form.

Company Secretary

DIN of the director or Managing Director or; income-tax PAN of the manager 
or authorised representative; or CEO or CFO Membership number 24123

Managing Director or director or manager or secretary or CEO or CFO (in case of an 
Indian company or an authorised representative (in case of a foreign company) or 
other)

To be Digitally signed by

Designation

10077Membership number

To be digitally signed by

Whether associate or fellow

Chartered accountant (in whole-time practice) or Cost accountant (in whole-time practice) or

Company secretary (in whole-time practice)

Associate Fellow

Certificate of practice number 6157

SubmitPrescrutinyCheck FormModify

Note: Attention is also drawn to provisions of Section 447, section 448 and 449 of the Companies Act, 2013 which
provide for punishment for fraud, punishment for false statement and punishment for false evidence respectively

This e-Form is hereby rejected
Confirm submission

(DD/MM/YYYY)Date of signing

Digital signature of the authorising officer

(DD/MM/YYYY)eForm filing dateeForm Service request number (SRN)

For office use only:

This e-Form is hereby approved

MALOY
KUMAR
GUPTA

Digitally signed 
by MALOY 
KUMAR GUPTA 
Date: 2024.03.28 
21:42:55 +05'30'

PREETI
GHIYA

Digitally signed 
by PREETI 
GHIYA
Date: 2024.03.28 
22:09:44 +05'30'
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SRN : F93972156

Received From :

Service Request Date : 28/03/2024

Name :

Address :

ANJALI Nirbhay SINGH

1303 Lodha Aurum, Grandis

Kanjur Marg

Mumbai, Maharashtra

IN - 400042

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Entity on whose behalf money is paid

Address :

Name :

India - 400001

Mumbai, Maharashtra

 Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody Street,  NA

TATA MOTORS LIMITED   

L28920MH1945PLC004520CIN: 

Full Particulars of Remittance

eFilingService Type:

Service Description

Fee For Form GNL-1

Note: The defects or incompleteness in any respect in this eForm as noticed shall be placed on the Ministry's website 
(www.mca.gov.in). In case the eForm is marked as RSUB or PUCL, please resubmit the eForm or file Form GNL-4(Addendum), 
respectively. Please track the status of your transaction at all times till it is finally disposed off. (Please refer Rule 10 of the 
Companies (Registration offices and Fees) Rules, 2014) It is compulsory to file Form GNL-4 (Addendum) electronically within 
the due date whenever the document is put under PUCL, failing which the system will treat the document as invalid and will not 
be taken on record in accordance with Rule 10(4) of the Companies (Registration offices and Fees) Rules, 2014



 

        
 

The financial details and capital evolution of the transferor company for the previous 3 years as per the audited 
Statement of Accounts: 
  
Name of the Company: Tata Motors Limited 

                                               (₹ in crores) 

Particulars 

As per last Audited 
Financial Year (Refer 

Note 1) 

1 year prior to the 
last Audited 

Financial Year (Refer 
Note 1) 

2 years prior to the 
last Audited Financial 

Year  
(Refer Note 1) 

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 

  Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS 

Equity Paid up Capital                                    
   766.02  

                              
     765.88  

                                 
      765.81  

Reserves and Surplus                                   
  21,703.83  

                              
 19,178.27  26,383.11 

Carry forward losses - - (8,092.95) 

Net Worth                                    
  22,469.85  

                              
 19,944.15  

                                 
  19,055.97  

Miscellaneous Expenditure                                   
             -    

                              
            -    

                                 
             -    

Secured Loans                                    
    1,046.13  

                              
  4,002.53  

                                 
   6,214.97  

Unsecured Loans                                    
  17,826.31  

                              
 19,230.12  

                                 
  15,533.75  

Fixed Assets                                   
  15,206.00  

                              
 15,210.55  

                                 
  28,561.88  

Income from Operations                                   
  65,757.33  

                              
 47,263.68  

                                 
  30,175.03  

Total Income                                    
  66,578.27  

                              
 47,923.59  

                                 
  30,595.02  

Total Expenditure (including 
exceptional items) 

                                  
  65,323.47  

                              
 49,563.64  

                                 
  32,869.74  

Profit/(Loss) before Tax                                   
    1,254.80  

                              
 -1,640.05  

                                 
  -2,274.72  

Profit/(Loss) after Tax                                    
    2,728.13  

                              
 -1,390.86  

                                 
  -2,395.44  

Cash profit                                    
5,069.17  

                             
2,634.76  

                                
1,528.97  

Earnings Per Share (in ₹) 
Ordinary shares 

                                
            7.11  

                              
        -3.63  

                                
          -6.59  

Earnings Per Share (in ₹) ‘A’ 
Ordinary shares 

                                
            7.21  

                              
        -3.63  

                                
          -6.59  

Book value per Share (in ₹)                                 
            2.00  

                              
         2.00  

                                
           2.00  

                    For Tata Motors Limited 
 
 

Maloy Kumar Gupta 
Company Secretary 
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